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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 7

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ gavel] Good
morni ng. My name is Daniel Dromm and |I'mthe
Chair of the Education Comm ttee of the New
York City Council. | want to preface all of the
statenments today by saying first and forenost,
nunber one, that |’ m not opposed to truly
community based charter schools, but that | do
have a deep concern about corporatized charter
networks. | want to make that distinction, and
| want you to understand that distinction
before I even read nmy opening remarks. Very
glad to see that we’ve been joined by a nunber
of organizations, but particularly, by the

coalition of comunity charter schools whose

here today and will give testinmony |ater on.
will also be asking any charter CEOs about
their salaries. | do not intend to insult
anyone, but | feel that transparency on that

issue is vitally important to the work of this
Comm ttee. | would like to also state fromthe
begi nning that there are a 183 charters in New
York City, 69 of them have the Departnment of
Education as their authorizer. Al of the

charters in New York are nonprofits. | want to
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 8
ask people to sign in with the Sergeant over
here if you intend to speak, and we will be

here to hear from everyone, no matter how | ong

that takes, and finally, I will be swearing in
all the witnesses who will be appearing before
this commttee today. 1'd like to also say that

we have been joined by nmy colleagues in the
City Council, Margaret Chin from Manhatt an,
Debbi e Rose from Staten |sland, Chaim Deutsch,

t he Chair of Nonpublic Schools Education
Committee in the City Council, Andy King from
the Bronx, Mark Treyger from Brooklyn, Vinnie
Gentile from Brooklyn, and Antoni o Reynoso from
Brooklyn as well. We’'ve al so been joined by our
Publ i c Advocate, and she will be giving remarks
after | do, and then Council Menber King wil

be giving remarks on the |egislation that we
are also having this hearing about. And we
have been joined by a hero of mne who is the
former Chair of this Conmttee, a man who

wal ked from Harlemto Albany to fight for CFE
dollars, that is Robert Jackson. Thank you
Robert Jackson for being here.

[ appl ause]
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 9

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Okay. An attack
on public education is an attack on denocracy,
says Di ane Ravich [sp?], imm nent education
hi stori an who has wi t hdrawn her support for the
corporatized charter school network mvement
after realizing the damage it is doing to our
children's future. It is worth noting that the
hi ghest perform ng nations do not have charter
school s but rather focus on equitable public
education. Indeed, this debate is ultimately
about whether we still believe as a society
t hat education is a good, that is, something so
important to all of us that we have decided to
invest collectively in its success. The main
guestion for today, therefore, is having a
parall el education system separate and unequal
a sort of educational apartheid, the solution
to public education’ s problens. Across the
country, mllionaires and billionaires who know
absol utely nothing about public education are
trying to reshape our education system not
based on educating the whol e individual, but
ultimately enriching thenselves and their

cronies. How can we stop this disturbing trend
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 10
right here and now in New York City and send a
message across the country that public
education is not for sale. When | first decided
to followny calling into the field of
education over three decades ago, | did so
because | wanted to inmpact the |lives of young
peopl e regardl ess of the circunstances they
were born into. After a stint as the director
of the Grand Houses Daycare Center in Harlem I
spent the bulk of nmy career at PS 199Q in
Sunnysi de Queens. Nearly all of nmy students
came fromrecent immgrant famlies working to
succeed here in the United States. | focused on
ensuring all the children under my care and
tut el age had what they needed to make a
positive inmpact in their own lives as well as
the world around them If any of ny coll eagues
or | ever struggled, it was not because of a
| ack of passion or comm tnment, but rather
because of constantly changi ng mandates from
above, unrelenting standardi zed testing and a
per petual |ack of resources. This last itemis
a challenge that we nust address together as a

society, not by diverting resources into the
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 11
hands of corporate profiteers, but by reform ng
the systemto address any inequities. The
i mperative that every child be provided with an
appropriate education is not just a | egal
mandate. It is a sacred principle that guides
our work as educators. Education is the great
equal i zer, and only through public education is
it possible to realize this in the lives of
every child. This hearing will exam ne how far
charter schools have cone in fulfilling their
original purpose to cut through bureaucracy, to
wel come stake hol ders and the decision making
process and to serve as incubators for
pedagogi cal innovation. Specifically, today’s
testimony fromthe Department of Education and
others will give this commttee insight into
whi ch best practices in charter schools are
bei ng used in which public schools. Inits
oversight capacity, this commttee will also
need to identify and exam ne instances where
t hese goals have not been met. We will gain
insight into the extent to which these goals
have been corrupted by the seem ng push to

di smantl e public education. Of particular
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 12
i mportance is the extent to which the charter
movement has been taken over by Wall Street
raiders and right wing extrem st seeking to

weaken and ultimately alienate not just public

education but all investnment in the conmon
wheel . Illustrative of the problem are the
mllions of dollars that charter school

corporations are punmping into public relation
canpai gns that pits school conmmunities against
each other, particularly parent against parent.
A particular concern is the extent to which
children and parents who rightfully want the
best educati on possible have unwillingly beconme
part of the efforts that have distracted not
just the vital conversations that we need to
havi ng, but also fromthe school day. Bussing
children on a school trip up to Al bany for what
many have characterized as a political rally
rai ses a whol e host of questions around this
activity' s propriety and legality, especially
since a district school would never have been
all owed to do the same. Ot her questions abound.
Were teachers at this school conpelled to

attend the rally? WAs everyone assigned a job?
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 13
Were teachers assigned as bus captains? How
many students did not go? How many did not
receive an education that day? This rally is
only one in a list of other troubling
di screpanci es when conpared with public
schools. How students who need extra attention,
whet her they are special education, English
| anguage | earners or students w th behavi oral
i ssues are dealt with is key to understanding
how far charter schools have deviated fromthe
pur pose of education in our denocracy. |ssues
with school discipline strike at the heart of
our concerns about the corporatized charter
school movenent. Stories from parents and
students in many schools across the city paint
a picture of zero tolerance policies, high
rates of suspension and expul sion and tone deaf
adm nistrators. Particularly disturbing is at
| east one discipline code that relies on
hum i ating and ostracizing students for
various infractions by making them wear a
special uniform Wth that in mnd, | want to
set the tone for this hearing, which will be

decidedly different fromthe public spectacle
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 14
in which blame is shifted, attention is
defl ected and children and parents are used for
publicity ploys rather than as partners at the
table of this discussion. Utimtely, we need
to keep the corporate interest that have so
t horoughly deci mated the econonmy and caused
banks to fail away from public education. The
alarmng growth in the gap between the mega
rich and the rest of us will only be
exacerbated if we do not imediately halt any
force seeking to weaken public education. The
conversations that we are having today and will
continue to have are so critical to countering
slick corporate directed public relations
canpaigns. | want to be very clear, asking for
accountability at the highest |evels of charter
school s should not be twisted into an attack on
t he education of children from di sadvant aged
backgrounds. It is our duty to oversee the use
of public dollars and to call into account al
t hose who use public resources. The operation
of charter schools should not be immune to a
heal t hy dose of sunshine. It is in everyone's

interest to gain and maintain the confidence of
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 15
all those involved. My coll eagues and I would
be abrogating our responsibility if we demanded
anything less. Wth the recent efforts of one
charter school to prevent the State Conptroller
fromlooking at its books, the need for this
body to step up even nore zealously in its
oversight role is apparent. Under the unbrella
of accountability fall several areas of
concern. One area that we want to highlight is
executive salaries, especially after the
scandal over disproportionately high salaries
and benefits of the executives who head our
city’s library systenms. In fact, the New York
Tinmes recently reported on the sonetimes
massi ve disparity between charter schoo
executive salaries and the average incone of
t he areas where these schools operate. Also
worth probing are the | arge amounts of funding
t hat some charter schools collect from outside
sources. Finding out details about how these
funds are obtai ned and spent may provide
val uabl e | essons for public schools, many of
whi ch so desperately need additional funding.

Qutsi de contract are another area for this
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 16
hearing. Are we hol ding people with the
authority to award city contracts to the
standard of transparency required under the
Conflict of Interests Board? Should CEO s of
charter schools be required to file conflict of
interest disclosures? Wiich firnms are
receiving capital contracts? How are those
deci sions made? What is the bidding process?
Are tax payer dollars spent on capital project?
How are prem um bl ock and science roons being
funded? This hearing will also ask whether
network directors have any other outside incone
and if so, how it is reported. The m ssion of
public school education is at stake. We el ected
officials are guardians of this public good and
shoul d be vigilant of anything that will erode
it, such as the displacenent of public schoo
students through charter school co-I|ocations.
The Washi ngt on Post summed up this commttee’s
primary concern with its story entitled “The
Big Looters in New York City Charter Fight,
Students with Disabilities.” This story and
all the sources it cited pointed the finger

squarely at Success Acadeny for taking away
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 17
resources fromthe nost vul nerable students at
PS 149 in Harlem MWhen it appears as if
anyt hing inmpedes a child' s education, then this
council will do everything in its power to
rejust this injustice. \When any entity that
receives public resources seeks to shield
itself fromaccountability, then this counci
will pry open the Iid no matter how tightly it
is sealed. Today we will also hear testinmony on
I ntro Nunmber 12 sponsored by Council Menber
Andy King. Intro 12 would require the DOE to
submt a report to the City Council regarding
i nformati on on co-located schools, including
charter schools no later than June 15'", 2015
and annually thereafter. This report would
i nclude a conparison of demographic
informati on, including race, ethnicity, English
| anguage | earner status and special education
status. In addition, this report would include
i nformati on regardi ng student acadeni c
performance including but not limted student’s
scores received on state exam nations. | would
like to rem nd everyone who wi shes to testify

today, as |’ve already done, that you nmust fill
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 18
out a witness slip, which is |ocated on the
desk at the Sergeant of Arns near the front of
the room If you wish to testify on Intro
Nunber 12, please indicate on the witness slip

whet her you are here to testify in favor or in

opposition of Intro Nunmber 12. | also want to
poi nt out that we will not be voting on the
bill today, as this is just the first hearing.
Pl ease note that all witnesses will be sworn in

and to allow as many people to testify as
possi ble. Testimony will be limted to three
m nut e per person, including nmy coll eagues, and
| am now going to turn the floor over to ny
col | eague, the Public Advocate for the City of
New York, Letitia Janes.

PUBLI C ADVOCATE JAMES: Good
nmor ni ng, Chairman Dromm and to comm ttee
menmbers and to the public. |I’m here today
because I want to ensure that all schools
whet her charter or district serve our children
better. Today, it is about working together for
the benefit of all children and that begins
with oversight, accountability and policies

that help all students, especially our students
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 19
who are in special education. It dawned upon ne
that we are approaching the 60'" anniversary of
Brown versus Board of Education on May 17'". It
was decided on May 17'", 1954, and basically it
was a major victory of the civil rights
movement, but it stood for--it was an attack
agai nst segregation and its odious nature upon
t hose who were begin separated based on this
artificial distinction known as race, and |
specifically want to focus on special education
because the 1 BO, the |Independent Budget Office
recently found that special education students
| eave charter schools at a much higher rate
t han either general education students in
charter schools or special education students
in traditional public schools. Let ne say that
again. The IBO recently found that specia
education students | eave charter schools at a
much hi gher rate than either general education
students in charter schools or special
education students in traditional public
schools. Only 20 percent of students classified
as requiring special education services who

started kindergarten in charter schools
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 20
remai ned in the same school after three years.
And so the question to DOE is, where is the
oversi ght and accountability to ensure that
charter schools are serving special education
students and could you provide--can you provide
this body with the nunber of certified
teachers, the percentage of special education
teachers and the average | ength of enploynment?
There's al so evidence to denonstrate that shows
t hat students in charters are disciplined nore
harshly and recei ve high suspension rates, that
is students who are special needs children.

And nmy question, or ny point is that these
types of practices do not foster a productive

| earning environment. In fact, our students and
parents feel alienated and feel that this is
causing themirreparable harm And so the
question is, what is the rate at which students
are suspended in charter schools versus
district schools? What neasures are in place
to reduce suspension rates? Do charter schools
keep records of the children who | eave or are
transferred to anot her school as to where they

go, and if not, why? And if yet, and if the
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 21
answer is yes, are these records public,
because we have sought to obtain these records,
but the Office of Public Advocate we have not
been able to obtain those records. And again,
my focus in primarily on special needs
children. I would also be remss if we did not
mention the inportance and the need for
i ncreased accuracy of educational inpact
statements because this docunment effects how
space is shared in co-located schools. When the
de Bl asio Adm nistration sought to continue a
practice of forced co-locations, the Office of
Public Advocate went to court along with 70
ot her petitioners seeking to block these
forced co-locations that result in elementary
age students being co-located with high school
students that cause special needs students to
| ose space for therapy and all other students
to | ose space for physical education, art and
musi c. The question was, were parents input
involved in the process of co-location, and was
it done without a review of avail able space
wi t hin each school? And will co-1locations

result in further overcrowdi ng wi thout
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 22
addressing the overwhel m ng nunber of children
forced to learn in dilapidated trailers such as
what | witnessed at Richmond Hill Hi gh School
And | would like for DOE to be absolutely clear
on the followi ng. What is the responsibility of
charter schools sharing a space with a public
school ? What steps are you taking to inprove
t he accuracy of educational inpact statenents
for co-located schools? Why does DOE not do a
communi ty educati onal needs assessnent prior to
an EI'S? And the school | eadership teans, and
the teachers, and the community education
councils, what role do they play in shaping
education policy in their district, and what
role do they play in fostering a nore
productive school community? And again, what
oversi ght mechani sms do charters and DOE have
in place to inprove engagenment with the | arger
school community? So, those are some of the
guestions that | have, and | would hope that
Departnment of Education would in their
testi mony provide sone of those answers. |f
not, if some of those answers can be provided

to nmy office at a |ater date, | would
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 23
appreciate that. But again, ny role in being
here today is to ensure that all of our schools
serve all of our children at a equal and in a
just fashion consistent with Brown versus Board
of Education. Thank you.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM  Thank you,
Public Advocate James. And | would like to turn
it over to Council Member Andy King.

COUNCI L MEMBER KI NG Good nor ni ng,
Chair, and thank you members of the Education
Committee, representatives fromthe Depart nent
of Educati on, school adm nistrators, parents
and invited guests. M name is Andy King and I
have the privilege of serving the 12'" district
of the Bronx and the City Council. Today |I'm
here to present marks on Intro Number 12, 2014.
What a coinci dence, | represent the 12'" and
this is the 12'" bill of the year. So it’'s got
to be a good bill. Something has to happen
positive out of this. And this bill wil
require that the Department of Education
rel ease conparison reports on co-location
school s seated on property owned by the City of

New York. | also would like to thank the 24
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 24
ot her coll eagues of m ne who signed onto this
pi ece of legislation. | |look forward to the
rest of the Council signing on also. In
particul ar, these reports would include but not
limt to a conmparison of denographic
information including but not limted to race,
ethnicity, English | anguage | earner status and
speci al education status, and two, information
regardi ng student academ c performance
including but not limted to student scores
recei ved on state exam nations. According to
the City of New York, the Department of
Educati on website, the DOE is the | argest
system of public schools in the United States.
It serves about 1.1 mllion students in over
1,700 schools including 183 public charter
schools. And according to the New York City
charter school center, over 900 schools in
total in 2013. Over half of all the schools
t hroughout the city are co-located on canpuses
with other schools and prograns. As a parent, a
former ACS worker and a current el ected
official, |I amfrequently approached by parents

in my district wondering why their child's
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 25
school is not perform ng on par with other
schools located in the sanme buil ding. Today,
this is part of the inspiration that allowed nme
to come up with this conversation for this
bill. The work that | do each and every day in
t he school systens with my youth by the fact,

t he Public Advocate and | have gone before
about 400 students in a couple of hours to have
the simlar conversation about what they' re
experiencing in the school buildings. Intro 12
woul d afford the DOE and the City Council the
opportunity to review disparities and
performance across schools, both public and
charter. It also will allow principals and
campus governing bodies such as buil ding
councils and school | eadership teans in
addition to avenues to analyze how success can
be pronmpted across schools where there are

di fference in performance | evels of students.
But nore inportant, it would allow parents a
resource to conpare, analyze and engage the
efficacy of their child s school curriculumin
contrast to other schools located in the sane

building. This is not a bill meant to target
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 26
public schools, nor is a bill to target charter
schools. Modre--nost of the reporting data that
is provided online at each school’s website
whet her public or charter. This bill wl
conpile this information into a conprehensive
reports based on canmpuses made avail able online
and will spark dial ogue as ways to the best
ways the DOE, school adm nistrators, parents
and ot her stakehol ders can pronpte a canpus
envi ronment which pronotes students success
across public and charter school lines. W al
want to pronmote our student’'s success. Intro 12
enable us with another tool to help further
this effort. Thank you very much for allow ng
me to present today and |'’m | ooking forward to
today’s testinony regarding this very inmportant
bill, and thank you everyone again. |'m | ooking
forward to a great dialogue on this
i ntroduction. Thank you.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Thank you,
Council Member King. I'd like to say that we’ve
been joined by Council Menber Mark Levine,
Counci | Menber Steve Levin, Council Menber

Ruben WIlls, Council Menber Al an Misel, and |
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 27
think I’ve covered everybody who' s here right
now. And so with that, | would |like to ask
Laura Feijoo, the Senior Superintendent for the
Office of School Support at the DOE and Laurie
Price, the interim Acting Director for the
Of fice of New School Design Charter Partners at
the DOE as well to please raise your right hand
and to either swear or affirmto tell the
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the
truth in your testinony before this committee
and to respond honestly to Council Menber
questions.

LAURA FEI JOO: | do.

LAURI E PRI CE: | do.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay. Pl ease
begi n.

LAURA FEI JOO: Thank you. Good
nmor ni ng, Chair Dromm and nmenmbers of the
Education Comm ttee here today. My name is
Laura Feijoo, Senior Superintendent in the
Di vi si on of the Senior Deputy Chancellor in the
Office of School Support and Supervision at the
New York City Department of Education. Since

this is my first tinme appearing before the
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COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 28
commttee, | would like to introduce nyself.
During my 25 year career in education, | have

served as a m ddl e school teacher, Assistant
Principal, Principal, Superintendent, Deputy
Regi onal Superintendent in Queens, Brooklyn and
Staten Island. During the past eight years, ny
wor k has focused on supporting principals
instructional and organi zati onal practices. In
my current role, | oversee the Office of School
Support and Supervision in the Office of New
School Design and Charter Partnerships. | am
joined here by Laurie Price, interimActing
Director of the DOE's Office of New Schoo

Desi gn and Charter Partnerships, and we are

pl eased to be here to discuss charter schoo
management and accountability in New York City.
This Adm nistration is making system c change.
As you have heard from both the Mayor and the
Chancel l or, crucial steps are being made to
address the root causes that chall enge our
school s today. Charters play an inmportant role
in these changes because they can facilitate

i nnovation in ways that are nore difficult for

district schools, but we nust keep in m nd why
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charter schools were created, to act as
| aboratories of experimentation in education
with the m ssion of bringing best practices to
traditional schools so that every child can
benefit. As you' re aware, charter schools are
public schools funded by their respective
school districts and nonitored by their charter
aut hori zers of which there are three in New
York State, the New York State Board of
Regents, the State University of New York’s
Charter School Institute and the New York City
Departnment of Education. Since the amendnent to
the New York State education |law in 2010, the
DOE no | onger authorizes new charter schools.
However, the DOE mai ntains the power to approve
the renewal or revision of charters that it has
al ready authorized. Charter schools are tuition
free and open to all, admtting students via
lottery. Unlike traditional district schools,
each charter school has its own nonprofit Board
of Trustees which is responsible for neeting
t he obj ectives established in charter schools
act as well as the New York State standards

established for all public schools. The 1998
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New York State Charter School Act grants
autonomnmy to charter school operators in
exchange for increase accountability. As a
result, charter schools are explicitly tasked
wi th inproving students | earning and increasing
| earni ng opportunities for all students, and
especially those students at risk of academ c
failure. Charter schools are expected to use
i nnovative nethods to provide expanded choice
wi thin the school system create new
prof essi onal opportunities for school personnel
and offer alternative fromrule based to
performance based accountability systenms. This
means that charter schools are held accountable
not just for being in conmpliance with rules,
but al so for denonstrating performance in
student’s achievement. In New York City today,
charter schools serve over 70,000 students and
their famlies. They represent approxi mately
si x percent of our total student’s popul ation.
| ndependent|ly managed by their Boards of
Trustees, charter schools can partner with a
number of organizations to nmeet different

needs. Over 80 charter schools partner with
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nonprofit charter managenment organi zations.
Charter schools |ed by organizations |ike Saint
Hope in Manhattan are replications of
successful schools from other parts of the
country. Some charters serve specific student
popul ati ons such as Mount Haven Acadeny, which
recruits students from our foster care system
and many have been founded by community groups
such as the Harlem Children’s Zone, 100
Hi spanic Women and East Harlem Tutori al
Program Each school’s Board of Trustees is
free to make i ndependent deci sions about
curriculum and staffing. In exchange for this
aut onony, the Board of Trustees is responsible
for operating an educationally fiscally and
operationally sound school bound by the terns
of its charter agreement. The Office of New
School Design and Charter Partnerships provides
oversight to the schools authorized by the DOE
by hol ding them accountable to the highest
st andards expected under charter |aw and
performance goals described in each school’s
i ndi vi dual charter. Qur goal is to provide

frequent consistent feedback and support to
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t hese schools. Schools not authorized by the
DOE are overseen by the New York State Board of
Regents, or by the State University of New
York. The DOE as the district in which the
charter schools are |ocated can forward any
i ssues of nonconpliance with applicable | aws,
regul ati ons and charter provisions to the
charter school’s authorizer for action. In
addi tion, the DOE works with the State
Educati on Department and SUNY to discuss policy
that will affect schools across the city such
as enrollment, retention targets and
di sciplinary issues. We maintain a nultifaceted
accountability system for DOE authorized
schools which we are working to maxim ze. For
all DOE authorized charter schools nmust adhere
to conmprehensive nonitoring plans that
establishes requirements and responsibilities,
desi gnates gui delines for record keeping and
outlines reporting requirenents under the
charter law. The plan details the situations
in which charter schools nust provide written
notice to the DOE including any contracts that

are greater than 50,000 dollars and any changes
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of the school |eader or Board of Trustees. It
al so requires schools to subnmt schoo
handbooks, insurance certificates and |lottery
and application informati on. The DOE al so
collects and reviews information on charter
schools as part of its annual conprehensive
review schools must submt anmong ot her
docunents, self-evaluations and data on teacher
certification, school discipline, enroll ment
and retention of students and staff and
attrition rates. Schools are also required to
submt conpliance docunents, m d-year fisca
docunments and all board m nutes. The annual
conprehensive review culmnates in a public
report that details all results. The Office of
New School Design and Charter Partnerships uses
a framework devel oped by the Nationa
Associ ati on of Charter School Authorizers to
conduct in depth reviews of each school’s
i ndependent|ly audited financial statenent,
i ncluding an assessnment of school’s financi al
state and a review of its audit notes to
determ ne whether a school has defaulted on its

debt and any areas of concern are investigated
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and docunented in the school’s annual or
renewal report. Anytime during the charter
term the DOE may issue a notice of concern
deficiency or probation related to the school’s
academ c performance, fiscal operationa
viability or failure to conply with applicable
| aws or charter provisions. These notices
require schools to correct identify
deficiencies. Notices of probation can include
the creation of a renedial action plan with
specific improvement objectives and tinelines.
A school may be unnoticed for up to a schoo
year. A charter school’'s failure to address
t hese deficiencies may result in a nonrenewa
or revocation of its charter. Schools that w sh
to continue operating as charters after their
terms expire nmust apply for renewal. The
renewal process, which may | ast several nonths
i ncludes a school subm ssion of renewal
application, a two day site visit, a public
heari ng and parent outreach. The Office of New
School Design and Charter Partnerships may al so
interview board menbers and charter management

staff. Performance neasures including




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 35
proficiency on various New York State exans as
conmpared to district’s non-charter elenentary
and m ddl e schools and graduation rates
conpared to non-charter city high schools are
included in the renewal process. After this
eval uation, the New York City schools
Chancel | or makes a recomendati on to the New
York State Board of Regents. Each charter
renewal can run for a termof up to five years.
As you may know, one of Chancellor Farina s top
priorities is improving famly engagenent.
Charter schools are part of the district
strategies for providing famlies with nore
hi gh quality school options, and the Office of
New School Design and Charter Partnerships is
commtted to keeping parents informed and
responding to their questions or concerns. A
formal conpl ai nt process exists related to
charter schools. The Office of New Schoo
Design and Charter Partnership staff is
avai l able to guide parents or community menbers
t hrough the conpl aint process and to ensure
t hat appropriate steps and actions have been

t aken. Parents can conplete and submt a parent
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conplaint formonline in addition to all 311
calls with questions or conplaints about
charter schools are routed to this office. In
addition to ensuring accountability, the DOE
provi des operational support to all charter
schools in New York City. This includes
provi ding transportati on and school food
services for eligible charter schools, hel ping
charter schools report nmandated data to the
state, holding hearings for renewals, revisions
and new charter applications and referring
conplaints from parents and conmmunity menmbers
wher e appropriate. All charter schools in New
York City receive tuition paynents for general
education and speci al education through the
DOE. Departnment al so serves the |ocal education
agency for charter school students with
disabilities and our conm ttees on speci al
education oversee the creation and nodification
of individualized education plans for all
charter school students. The original idea
behind the charter school novenent was to bring
best practices to district schools, and in

doi ng so, benefit the entire school system W
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are excited that through the process of sharing
best practices is already underway through New
York City coll aborates which is run out of the
New York City charter school center. Schoo
study tours allow district and charter staff to
| earn fromone another. This will further our
m ssion to provide all New York City students
with the highest quality education and reflects
Chancell or Farina’ s unwavering commtnment to
col l aboration rather than conpetition. The
Learning Partners Program our newest
initiative, will bring all types of schools
t oget her to share exenplary practices that
directly impact children in their classroons.
The programwi ||l span across all five boroughs
and devel op and pronote inter-school
col | aborative | earni ng between sets of host
school s and partner schools. Next year,
Learning Partners will expand to include a
total of about 72 schools, 24 host schools and
48 partner schools. The program w || enconpass
el ementary, m ddle and high schools with
particul ar enphasis on m ddl e school s.

Enpowering our | eaders to share great ideas




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 38
wi || boost our student’s ability to thrive.
Wth respect to facilities, 113 charter schools
are currently co-located across 122 DOE
bui Il dings. We know that this has often been a
source of tension anong school communities.
This Adm nistration is commtted to engagi ng
all stakeholders in an equitable process about
co-locations that nmeets the needs of all of our
students. To archive this goal, we have created
three new initiatives to inprove how we
determ ne space sharing decisions noving
forward. First, Deputy Mayor Richard Buery and
Chancell or Farina are |eading a working group
on school space issues. This group is
partnering with school comunities, principals
and parents from both district and charter
schools to anticipate |long term needs nore
fully before co-locations are arranged. This
group is focused on inproving existing space
and creating new shared space strategies that
allow multiple schools to better grow al ongsi de
one another, pull and share specialized space
and engage parents by inform ng them about

their community’s individualized areas of need.
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Second, as Chancell or Farina discussed at the
prelim nary budget hearing, we have established
a canpus buil ding squad to pronote joint
programm ng and professional devel opnent anong
school s that share a canpus. This group is
facilitating activities across school s
including a student’s mentoring program after
school programs, public schools athletic
| eague, fundraising and community service. The
campus building squad will diffuse potentia
escal ati ons at canpuses, help schools arrive at
prompt resolutions and share best practices on
ways to better engage parents to create
col | aborative campus comunities. Finally, we
have created a blue book working group. The
Bl ue Book is a docunent that outlines the
capacity and current uses of DOE school
bui Il di ngs. The Bl ue Book Working Group is the
result of Chancellor Farina' s belief that this
t ool should provide a practical and honest
reflection of space and building utilization.
The Working Group is conprised of Departnent of
Education officials, elected parent | eaders,

and community members. A revised Bl ue Book
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alliance with new meani ngful engagenment process
t hat the Chancell or has outlined will result in
proposals that nmore effectively address the
needs and concerns of our communities. Qur
policies regarding all city charter school s,
whet her in support, supervision or performance
eval uation all exist within our |larger goal to
invigorate the quality of education for our 1.1
mllion students regardl ess of what kind of
school they attend. As you know, the State
Legi slature recently enacted a number of
changes to the education law as it relates to
charter schools. The amendnent to the |aw
provi de for supplenental basic tuition for sonme
charter schools, include several new provisions
related to charter school access to facilities
and authorize the New York City Conptroller to
perform fiscal audits of charter schools
| ocated in New York City. We are in the process
or review ng these amendnents and | ook forward
to sharing nmore informati on soon. Changes
recently enacted also permt charter schools to
apply for pre-k funding. We rel eased our

charter school pre-k application [ast week and
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we are excited to include charter schools in
the historic inplenmentation of universal pre-
ki ndergarten. While we continue to finalize
sonme aspects of the inmplementation, we are
confident charter schools will play an
i mportant role in our expansion and add to the
many hi gh quality full day pre-kindergarten
options available for famlies. Lastly, we'd
li ke to express our support for Intro Number 12
whi ch requires the Department of Education to
provi de demographi c and achi evenent data on al
co-|l ocated schools. This report required by the
proposed legislation will serve as a val uable
resource to our school communities and other
st akehol ders. | want to thank you for your time
and attention, and |’ m happy to answer any
questions you may still have.

CHAI RPERSON DROVM Well, thank you.
| want to say that we’ve been joined by Counci
Menmber Mark Weprin and Council Menmber Junmane
WIlliam as well. Let nme just start off by
asking a couple of questions around the issue

of the annual conprehensive review. How many
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school s over the | ast year have you gotten into
to see and actually performed a revi ew?

LAURA FEI JOO. Mysel f?

CHAI RPERSON DROVMM Well, | know
you're new- -

LAURA FEI JOO: [interposing] Okay.

CHAI RPERSON DROVM | mean, your
di vision prior to you com ng

LAURI E PRI CE: Yeah, so we review al
of our charter schools that we authorize,
unl ess they’ re going through the renewal
process in that year. The renewal process is a
even nore in depth review, so we exenpt them
fromthe annual review when they’' re going
t hrough the renewal process.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM  So how many of
the schools of the 69 schools, excuse nme, were
put on the early engagenent |ist?

LAURIE PRICE: So in prior years,
early engagement, we used early engagenment to
| ook at schools that were up for renewal, and
so if those schools according to different
t hreshol ds that we had, were potentially going

to get non-renewed. We did additional touches
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with the school and the school communities to
| et them understand that in the past. | don't
have t hat number here with me, but--

LAURA FEI JOO: [interposing] We could
get it to you.

LAURI E PRI CE: But, yeah, we can
certainly get that for you.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM So that’s the
number who are not going to get renewal s, but
what about the early engagenent list itself?

LAURA FEI'JOO: Moving forward, the
early engagenent |ist for next school year for
t he- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
el | - -

LAURA FEI'JOO: [interposing] the
14/ 15 school year?

CHAl RPERSON DROMM  There are sone
who are put on the early engagenment that they
are in danger. |Is there a difference between
bei ng put on the early engagenment |ist and
threatened with renewal, or is that--

LAURA FEI JOO:. [interposing] So, for

the renewals, we |ook at all the charter
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school’s data and their information. The early
engagenment |ist applies to all schools, nostly
district schools in which their data has
denonstrated thensel ves to be problematic for
what ever reason and we have not announced for
the com ng year who those struggling schools
that we will be | ooking at m ght be.

CHAI RPERSON DROVM Ckay. Well, that
gives me the opportunity to say that there is
one school that I'’m aware of that maybe you
shoul d |l ook at, and that is the Coney Island
Prep Charter School. Just a m nute, ‘cause |
have to put my uniformon. So, since you do do
these reviews, and in your testinmny you said
t hat you review discipline policies, etcetera,
so forth and so on, I’m sure you're aware and
if you're not I have a copy of the Coney Island
Charter Prep School’s handbook. Can | ask the
Sergeant to please give them a copy, and ask
you to turn to page 18? At the Coney Island
Charter Prep, the Coney Island Charter Prep,
what they do is they give out pride dollars
when students are good. \When students are not

so good, they take away pride dollars, which as
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a teacher, |’ve heard before behavi or
modi fi cation, okay. But what | have not heard

bef ore and what is extrenely troubl esone to ne,
is that when a child runs out of these pride
doll ars, every other kid in the class is
forbidden to talk to the B A D, bad child. In
addition, that child who is out of pride
dollars is required to wear an orange shirt al
the Il ength of his punishment so that other
children in the school and in the class know
that they are not allowed to talk to him and
if the other children in the class talk to the
child wearing the orange shirt, they have pride
dol l ars deducted fromtheir bank. | have
witten a letter to Richard Condon, the Speci al
Commi ssi oner of Investigation for the
Departnment of Education, to ask himto
investigate this situation. | have to tell you
that | was a New York City public schoo
teacher for 25 years and if | had done that in
my classroom | would have been escorted out of
t he school in handcuffs. And | cannot believe
that this has escaped scrutiny by the

Depart nment of Education or that even any




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 46
charter school or any educator would put forth
a discipline plan like this. I amurging you,
and | know this happened prior to your taking
the reins in Department of Education, but to
me, this amounts to corporal punishment and it
shoul d be forbidden in any school in New York
City. 1'd like to have your response, please.

LAURA FEIJOO: 1'd only like to say
that, charter schools have the ability to
create discipline policies. Our district
schools discipline policy is posted. It’s
di scussed with parents. It’s put out there
every year. It’s revised, and we ensure that
our district schools are adhering to that
policy. Charter schools have the ability to
create their own discipline policies, and they
are not only encouraged, but DOE charter
schools certainly there’s a different |evel of
accountability and they need to be published
and transparent to all parents so parents can
make i nformed deci sions about their childs--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nter posi ng] But

this is DOE authorized charter school of which
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you have oversight over. So are you saying that
this discipline policy is okay?

LAURA FEI JOO: So--

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] Let
me read it. Let me read it.

LAURA FEI JOO: No- -

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] It
says out of pride. “If serving this
consequence, scholars”--by the way, | |ove the
use of the word scholars; why we just don’t
call them students, | don’t know--“will attend
class throughout the day, but will |ose the
privilege to enjoy the social elements of Coney
| sl and Prep. These schol ars should not speak to
ot her schol ars except with the perm ssion of a
staff member, usually to conplete group work.

Li kewi se, other scholars should not speak to or
ot herwi se engage with the scholar wi thout the
explicit direction of a staff nmenber or need to
use common courtesies. Scholars, and this is
underlined and in bold, scholars who engage
with scholars who are out of the pride wll
earn an instigating deduction. Scholars who are

out of the pride will wear an orange t-shirt
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over their uniformwhich we provide.” How nice
t hat they provide the t-shirt, | have to say.
So |’ m asking does your oversight over these
charter schools also allow you to end a
di sci pline policy such as this, and by the way,
t here have been many ot her exanples of simlar
di scipline policies in other schools throughout
the city. And let me tell you some of them 1In
t he Anunmberg [sp?] Report, which was rel eased
yesterday, just five nonths ago it was reported
at KI PP Star Washi ngton Hei ghts Charter School
that children as young as five years old were
pl aced in isolated and padded cool down cl osets
causing some children to have anxiety attacks.
The school defended the practice, though some
parents withdrew their children fromthe
school. | can’t imgine why. A 2012 report by
the New York Civil Liberties Union found that
some charter schools suspend students at rates
many times higher than the city’s traditional
public schools. For exanple, the report found
that two Brooklyn collegiate charter schools in
t he unconmon school s networks suspends students

at 35 and 40 percent rates, respectively.
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Achi evement First, another charter network,
with strict behavior codes suspends four to 18
percent of its students at the city schools,
hi gher than the average in the regular public
schools. When are we going to get a handle on
t hese discipline policies?

LAURA FEI'JOO: So, 1'd like to talk
about each one of themif |I can. For the Coney
| sl and charter school, to be perfectly frank, I
did read it in the packet | was handed when |
came here, and it’s a DOE authorized charter
school. | will let you know that we will | ook
into it and I will certainly--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]

Well, my question goes even beyond just this
example. This is the one exanple that |’ m aware
of. | gave you a couple of other exanples that

the medi a becane aware of. What policies do we
have in place in the DOE to ensure that every
di scipline policy in every charter school is
appropriate and sound educati onal policy?
LAURA FEI JOO: The DOE does not have
the authority for non-DOE aut horized charter

schools. It’s actually in the hands of the
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Board of Trustees to create a discipline policy
that is aligned with their goals to make it
public to parents and to be able to dissem nate
that to ensure that parents are aware of what
t he discipline policies are, what the financial
policies are. So for non-DOE authorized charter
schools, it is their decision to be able to do
t hat, and when conplaints cone in or issues
come in, or concerns cone in, we certainly
address themwith the charter school principal
with the Board of Trustees and we escalate it
to the authorizer.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM So |I'm going to
ask you, as the Chair of this Commttee, to go
back and to report to me on every one of your
69 charter schools on their discipline policies
so that we can be sure. |I’m also going to ask
charter schools that are outside of the network
to post their discipline policies online,
because | did a sanple survey and was not able
to find many of the outside of the network, of
outside of the DOE school’s discipline policies
online as well. This type of a situation is

actually a disgrace and it really has to be
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dealt with in the firmest terms. Part of the
problem as you stated correctly, is that the
out of the DOE--the non-DOE aut horized charter
schools don’t have to have accountability, and
that is exactly why I am holding this hearing
t oday, because sonebody nust hold them
accountable for these types of practices.

LAURA FEI JOO:. Just, they’re not
accountable to us. They are account abl e- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Ri ght .

LAURA FEI'JOO: to their boards and to
t he- -

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt [ i nterposing] So
Coney Island is, and the other 69 are, and
that’s why I'd like to get a report on all of
t hose school s discipline policy.

LAURA FEIJOO: | will commt to you
both to | ook at the 69 schools and the
di scipline policies with our teamand to talk
about with the Chancell or sone of the issues
you rai sed.

LAURI E PRICE: But | do want to add

that all of their discipline policies nmust be
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in conpliance with State and Federa
regul ati ons around due process and afford
students with special education all of the
additional protections that they are entitled
to, and our office did this fall do a workshop
on discipline and all of the elenents that need
to be in a discipline policy for charter
school s.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM So, | am not just
tal ki ng about state regs state. |I’mtalking
about what’s devel opnentally appropriate for
children in our school system and if charter
schools are in fact public schools, then they
need to have the light of accountability shined
on them so that we know what they’'re doing in
terms of disciplining our students. If you're
putting kids in a padded room that’s |ike
solitary confinement, and | just went to
Ri ker’s Island on Monday and | brought five
Council Menbers with ne to see the conditions
there. Very simlar to this. If you're talking
about making children stand out by wearing an
orange shirt around the school for a day or two

days, a week, or two weeks, however |ong the
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puni shment is, to me, that anounts to corporal
puni shment. When | was teaching, | was told I
was not allowed to ask children to wite a
hundred tinmes, | will learn to behave. That is
consi dered corporal punishnent. How is this any
different? It is your responsibility to ensure
that this does not happen in our public
schools, and as far as the state is concerned,
| urge the State Conmptroller, | urge the City
Conptroller to take up this issue and to
i nvestigate every one of our schools. Now that
| have referred it over to the Department of
| nvestigation, | hope that they will also take
action on this. The problemis, who are they
goi ng to hold accountable? I hope that they
hol d accountable the Board of Directors at the
Coney |sl and Charter School, because they're
t he ones who probably should be arrested. And I
woul d l'ike to know- -

[ appl ause]
CHAlI RPERSON DROMM | woul d like to
know i f any child in any of these schools has

been put through this process.
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LAURA FEI'JOO: | can prom se you that
Il will go back under this adm nistration and
take a | ook at those policies and report back
to you.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM And just because
| have hit you very hard and | understand
you're new to this role as well, but you know,
these are the major concerns in ternms of being
and educat or about what’'s going on in our
school s.

LAURA FEI'JOO: | under st and.

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt Di sci pline in our
schools is first and forenost. We try to build
kids self-esteem and their egos and help them
al ong the path. By doing this, it’'s
intimdating. It’s singling out students. It’s
actually a very grown up way of bullying
students, and I'’msorry it’s totally
unaccept abl e.

[ appl ause]

CHAI RPERSON DROM W th that, let nme
turn it over to my colleagues. | thank you for

putting up with me, and |I’m going to ask
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Counci | Member Antonio Reynoso to proceed with
t he questioning. Thank you.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: Thank you,
Chair Dromm for your testimony and everything
you' ve said so far | think is enlightening.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM | still have to
wear my orange shirt, by the way, until |I'm
finished with punishment.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: So wi l
refrain from speaking to you noving forward.
do want to say--|I wanted to ask if you guys
know what over-the-counter students are?

LAURA FEI JOO. Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: Are charter
school s allowed to take on over-the-counter
students?

LAURA FEI JOO: Charter schools have a
|ottery process for which the students are
sel ected, maybe different process for different
school s, but they do have policies around back
filling students where vacancies exist in the
particul ar grade. Over-the-counter typically
refers to our regular district schools. When

students come in from other places or nmove into
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the city, they're taken to an enroll ment center
for over-the-counter registration.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: So charter
school s do not take over-the-counter students?

LAURA FEI JOO: They may. It’s based
on their policy. They may take students into
charter schools if vacancies exist, but usually
in the initial enrollment year, there' s a
lottery which allows students to gain the nost
access.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: How many
over-the-counter students has a charter schoo
ever--have charter schools taken on?

LAURA FEI'JOO: | wouldn’t have that
i nformati on specifically.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: Can we get
t hat number, because from what | know, over
30,000 students all into over-the-counter
category, and | want to know of those students
how many go to charter schools. Can you
descri be what over-the-counter neans?

LAURA FEI JOO. Sure. Yeah, so | just
want to make sure |’ m absolutely clear on your

guestion. So typically, over-the-counter for
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di strict schools nmeans that students for a

vari ety of reasons that don’'t have a school as
we approach Septenmber. So over the summer and
August, either because they’'re new inmm grants
to New York City, because they moved from ot her
pl aces within the country, if they for sone
reason don’t have a school because they are

SI FE students, Students with Interrupted For mal
Education. They may have |left the system and

t hen come back. For whatever reason, if a
student does not have a school as we nove

t owar ds September or even in Septenber or

Oct ober, they can regi ster based on their
residence or our enrollnment policies at a New
York City district school, and those students
are consi dered over-the-counter. Their
registration--they’'re registering over the
counter rather than by the traditional means
where they articulate from an el enmentary school
to a mddle school or through a high schoo
process, they articulate from m ddle school to
hi gh school, and so any one of those new
students comng into our district schools are

consi dered over-the-counter. | just want to be
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cl ear on your question in ternms of charter
schools. They have a lottery for their
enrol I ment period for their incom ng grades,
whi ch takes the nost seats, and each schoo
district, charter school may have a policy to
back fill seats. So for whatever reason
students | eave or nmove to other places and they
| eave the charter school, they each have
different policies that allow themto fill
t hose seats.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: Alright, so

LAURA FEI JOO: [interposing] So
t hose- -

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO:
[interposing] | have to interrupt you because |
have a imted ampunt of time and | don’t think
you're getting to the point of my question.

LAURA FEI JOO: Sorry.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: | think
over-the-counter students tend to be students
that are struggling or in a position. They

could either be honel ess, students from anot her
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country or students that tend to be--that
struggle traditionally.

LAURA FEI JOO: That's often true.
That’ s often true.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: Often, if
not always true. Just want to be clear that
there’'s a very few that are not. In that case,
t hese students have to go to public schools.
When they go to public schools, these schools
are burdened with having to take care of
students that are struggling and these public
schools can’'t turn these students away, and
t hese students tend to go to schools that are
al ready struggling, and the burden of educating
t hese students falls on them I1t’s a burden
that charter schools do not have to deal with,
because they have a lottery system | want to--
|’ man ESL student, or | was an ESL student,
and I came in fromthe Dom nican Republic and
was put in a ESL class. | did--grateful for
t he education that | received, nmy public
school s education that | received, but | do
want to say that | wouldn't have had the

opportunity to go to a charter school under the
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current circunmstances that are put forth. |
think that there’'s a big problem when we all ow
for only our public schools to continue to take
on our struggling students and put the burden
on themto do all the work, and that charter
schools don’t need to do it. | also want to
poi nt that ESL students have one year to becone
proficient in English, and after that they're
credited to public schools. They need to get a
three, a proficiency level. If not, the
school’s grades go down, the testing, it’'s
brought down. ESL students, to have a child or
anyone or you or anyone of us to have to |earn
a | anguage in one year and be proficient |
think is extrenely unfair, and it sends the
wrong nessage to these students that are trying
to learn a new | anguage that they' re failures
because they couldn’t do it one year, and that
you push for policy that would allow themto
| earn the English |anguage in a nore
appropriate time |line so that they’ re not
| ooked at--they don’'t | ook at thenselves as
failures. Also, there's sonething el se that

charter schools don’'t need to take on because a
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| ot of these ESL students that come md school
year from other countries go to only public
schools. We have to stop putting the burden on
only public schools and allow for charter
school to continue to get these amazing grades,
right, regardi ng what they’ re doing wi thout
having to take on the burden of dealing with a
| ot of these over-the-counter students. | have
|l egislation in to nmy col |l eagues regardi ng over -
t he-counter students that | think would help
build equity in the system and | hope that the
Department of Education will start |ooking at
how they’'re going to distribute the over-the-
counter children throughout every single public
school s including charter schools. Thank you.

LAURA FEIJOO:. So if | could--

LAURI E PRICE: [interposing] | do--

LAURA FEI JOO. Go ahead.

LAURIE PRICE: | do want to say that
charter schools are bound by law to hold a
|ottery and can accept students that conme to
them t hrough their lottery, and so there are
many charter schools that choose to back fil

in grades when students do | eave, but they are
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bound to fist look at their wait |ist of
students who applied into the lottery and go
onto the wait list, and | do believe that there
are charter schools that are interested in
figuring out how to give a preference to over-
t he-counter students. So there are school s out
there that want to explore that.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: It’s unfair
to judge one school that has to take over-the-
counter students and another school that
doesn’t, and use the grades equally. There’s
obviously a disparity there. The over-the-
counter kids are students that need assistance
and hel p, and these public schools are doing
t he best they can. Charter schools don’'t need
to take those kids on. So when you conpare the
two schools I think it’s unfair, and | just
wanted to note that. And again, English, to
| earn English in one year is not reasonable and
you guys are at the state and the city are
asking that that happens, if not, the school
gets a failing grade, or these kids are

consi dered inconpetent--
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LAURA FEIJOO: [interposing] If |
could take those, the big issue and parcel it
out into three questions I'd just like to talk
about. One is over-the-counter. | do understand
that they’'re not only charter schools, but they
are also New York City district schools that
have different kind of adm ssions process. So
it is true that true that we do try to spread
out the over-the-counter students to schools
dependi ng on when the students cone in to
school s that have remai ni ng space. | do
understand the issue that you' re raising.
You' re raising an issue of where is there space
as the school year progresses or as we get
closer to the school year and what school s have
t he most seats, and are school s being
over burdened with over-the-counter
regi stration. The second thing |I hear is about
EL’s and students--

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO:
[interposing] The schools that tend to have
nore space are schools that are struggling,
right?

LAURA FEI JOO: | understand.
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COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: Ri ght? So
under stand that you're giving--

LAURA FEI'JOO: [interposing] |I'm
agr eei ng- -

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: struggling
nore students- -

LAURA FEIJOO:. [interposing] |
under st and.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: to have to
take the burden on without giving them nore
resources.

LAURA FEI'JOO: | wunder st and.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: So that is
an issue that you need to address. You can
expl ai n- -

LAURA FEI'JOO: [interposing] | agree.

64

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: what the | aw

is, what the procedure is, what policy is, but
if your policy is not assisting these schools
to succeed and the students to succeed, then
you need to change them and they need to be

| ooked at, and that’s what |’ m getting to.

[ appl ause]
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Al right, and if
we could just hold the applause, folks. | know
| got sone applause too and | should have
probably stopped you, but let’s hold it,
because we want to get--let’s do this, okay?
If you agree, you know. Alright, next Counci
Member Steve Levin has sone questions as well.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVIN: Thank you,
M. Chairman. Just one maybe to drive home one
of the points that Council Menber Reynoso is
poi nting out. How many honmel ess chil dren
children that live in New York City shelters of
which there are 22,000 in New York City, how
many of them go to charter school s?

LAURA FEIJOO: | don’t have that.

LAURI E PRI CE: Don’t have--

LAURA FEI'JOO: [interposing] | don’t
have that nunber, but | can get it to you.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI N: Because we- -
because a couple years ago we had a hearing on
this very issue and there doesn't seemto be a
process by which a child that’s in a honel ess
shelter could get into a charter school. If

they’re not there for the--
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LAURA FEI'JOO: [interposing] Lottery.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVIN: for the
|ottery period, there’s no method by which they
could get into a charter school unless a
charter school opts to do an over, you know,
over-the-counter kids to back fill--

LAURA FEIJOO:. [interposing] They can
see exists, or they' re--

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVIN: [interposing]
So we need to know how many children living in
the shelter system of which there are 22,000 in
New York City go to charter school, because
bet you it’s none. | bet you it’s none or maybe
a very, very small, small number, an incidental
nunber, but again, there are 22,000 children in
the New York City shelter system and very,
very few if any go to the charter school

LAURA FEI JOO: Get you that
i nformation.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVIN: | wanted to

LAURI E PRICE: [interposing] | did--
COUNCI L MEMBER LEVIN: [interposing]

about the overall system budget. Okay? So
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every year we go through this thing where in
the prelim nary budget the Departnment of
Education presents to us a number of what the
charter budget’s going to be and then we cone
back in the exec in May and it’s much, mnuch
hi gher, tens of mllions of dollars higher. Can
you tell me what the executive budget is going
to be for charter schools that’'s going to come
out in the next couple days?

LAURA FEI JOO: Not in advance of the
charter--the budget.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVIN: But it’s going
to be in a couple of days.

LAURA FEI JOO: We don’t have that in
advance of the budget hearing.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI N: Okay, because
it was--because you--is it going to be higher
than it was at the prelin?

LAURIE PRICE: It is based on
projections that we get fromthe schools, and
so that will include if schools are expanding
grades or if they're phasing in. So it is

possi bl e.
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COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI N: Okay, because
| guarantee you it’'s going to be 50 to 80
mllion dollars higher than it was in the
prelim and |I'’mgoing to wait to the exec cones
out in a couple of days, and | guarantee you
it’s going to be 50 to 80 mllion dollars
hi gher than it was in the prelimnary budget,
and that’s an unacceptable thing that we do
every year, because what it anounts to is
sneaki ng nmoney into the charter budget late in
the process. It’s happened every year since
|”ve started paying attention to it. And it’s
unacceptabl e, and what | would |ike the
Depart ment of Education to do is present to us
a cost analysis for charters for the next five
years, because we--what we don’t know and what
| believe DOE does know or should know i s what
the charter budget is going to look like in
2017, in 2018 and 2019 and 2020, because right
now it’s over a billion dollars. It grows at a
rate of about 20 percent a year. That's
unacceptable. There’s no other budget line in
New York City. | understand why. | understand,

because we’'re paying for the pupils, but
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there’s no other budget line in New York City
in any agency that increases at a rate of 20
percent a year. |t doesn’t exist anywhere el se
in the entire city of New York. There’'s no
budget line. It’'s because charters keep on
getting approved, both here and in Al bany, and
it’s taking resources away from public
education. It’s a fixed pot. We have a fixed
amount of noney in the system and so it--what |
would like to see formthe Department of
Education, 1’ve asked for it before, is a year
over year projection of what charter budget is
going to look like the next five, 10 years
based on the nunmber of schools that have been
approved and the schools that are being
i nproved annual ly, because schools have to
build out and so the first year it’s going to
be one grade, and the second year it’s going to
be two grades, and the third year it’s going to
be three grades. That we should be able to
determ ne on what's already been approved. So
you don’t have to answer that because it’s a
request. | only have two seconds. | want to ask

one ot her question. Transportation budget.
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Transportati on budget, the charter school
transportati on cones out of the general
education transportation line. Can you tell us
how much nmoney in the transportation budget is
for charter school s?

LAURA FEI JOO: So, not on the
transportation budget. | did--1 do have a data
poi nt on the 15 new charter schools that wll
open and the funding estimate for those
addi ti onal schools, which is an estimted
37,713,902 dollars for tuition for those
charter schools. For the per pupil funding
expendi tures, we don’t have, and for the
transportation, I don’t have a particul ar cost,
but | do have that.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI N: Because
that’s--1"11 tell you why it’s a concern.
Charter school kids are--they’'re not--if
they’'re in elenmentary school or m ddl e schoo
they’ re not necessarily going to their |ocal
school that they can walk to. So children are
entitled to transportation resources,
transportation dollars, transportation

services, and if nore children at charter, the
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hi gher percentage are using transportation to
get to school because they're not--they don’t
live local. They can’'t walk with their nom and
dad. That resource is com ng out of the general
education transportati on pot, not the charter
pot. So what | would recomend is
transportation budget for charters should be in
the charter budget. It shouldn’t cone out of
the transportation budget for general
education. Because unless we're able to
determ ne how much of the transportation budget
is for charter schools, it should be in a
separ ate budget |i ne.

ELI ZABETH ROSE: Thank you.

LAURA FEI JOO: So with us, joining us
at the table, we have Elizabeth Rose, she’'s the
Chief of Staff in the Division of Operations
for the New York City Departnent of Educati on,
and she may have sone details to clarify some
of that, more than | did.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI N: Thank you very

much.
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ELI ZABETH ROSE: |1'd just |ike to add
t hat Departnment of Education provides
transportation to all students--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Excuse nme. | have to swear you in, and pl ease
rai se your right hand. Do you solemly tel
the--do you solemly swear or affirmto tell
the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the
truth and to answer Council Menber questions
honest | y?

ELI ZABETH ROSE: | do.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM  And state your
name agai n.

ELI ZABETH ROSE: |’ m Eli zabet h Rose.
| am Chief of Staff in the Division of
Operations. Office of Pupil Transportation is
part of the Division of Operations. The
Departnment of Education provides transportation
services, food services to all public--to al
students. So transportation services are
provi ded not just to district school students,
charter school students, but also to eligible
non- public school students as well, and it all

comes out of the sane pot.
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COUNCI L MEMBER LEVIN: But it should
be--in order for us to do effective oversight,
it should be broken down into different budget
lines so that we know how much is going to
charters, how much is going to private school s
and how much is going to public schools. That
is sonething that | think that we have a right
to know and |1’ve asked it for it before, and--

LAURA FEIJOO: We'll bring it back
and take it--

ELI ZABETH ROSE: No, in many cases,
it is an inextricable. W have bus routes that
will serve nore than one school. We have bus
routes that on the sanme buses will have
children attending different schools or have
routes that will drop kids at one school and
then go pick up nore kids and take themto a
di fferent school.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI N: But we coul d- -

ELI ZABETH ROSE: [i nterposing] So
they are very intertw ned.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI N: But we could
figure out though, if you were to say, to take

all the children that are enrolled in charter
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schools, of which it’s a finite anount. We know
which children enrolled in charter schools and
say which ones are taking the bus, then we
could be able to--we would be able to determ ne
how many children in New York City that are
taking the bus go to charter schools. We could
do it--

LAURA FEI JOO: [interposing]
Certainly--

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVIN: [interposing]
There's got to be a nethodol ogy by which we
could determ ne how many kids going to charter
school s are taking the bus, and then extricate
fromthat how much its costing, because it’s
all going--the reason being that it’s a hidden
cost of charter schools. That’s what I'mtrying
to get at here. It’'s a cost of charter schools
that’s not in the charter school budget. So--

LAURA FEI JOO: [interposing]
Certainly--

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [ i nter posi ng]
Thank you, Steve. Okay. So point well taken.
We're going to | ook at that as we nove forward

into our executive budget sessions as well and
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we will revisit that issue again. | agree and
support you on that issue.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI N: Thank you, M.
Chair. Thank you very much for your--

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
We're al so now going to hear from Public
Advocate Tish [sic] James who has sone
questions.

PUBLI C ADVOCATE JAMES: So let me--|I
was not prepared to ask any questions, but
after the testimony of the Chair, I'"'mreally,
really disturbed about what was uncovered. And
so let me just say this, that | have al ways
opposed and abhor the privatization of public
school s, and what |’m seeing nore and nore is
the privatization of public schools, which to
me really underm nes equality and clearly what
was evi denced earlier suggests that equality is
underm ned as a result of children being
singled out and carrying a scarlet letters in
the city of New York, and | refuse to accept
any or support state sponsored, |ocal
government sponsored segregation. And if we are

supporting a system which | eads to segregation
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of children, be they honel ess, English | anguage
| earners or special needs children, we need to
dismantl e that system and all children really
need to have quality education and there needs
to be--thank you--one standard. And so what you
said earlier in your exchange with the Chair
was, there's a different |evel of
accountability. There should not be a different
| evel of accountability. There should be
consistency in the system applied to all
schools. And so the lack of--and | think
guess what bothers me nost is the |ack of
transparency and accountability in regards to
the lottery, the discipline system and just
how children are treated in the city of New
York, particularly children who have been
i gnored, the vulnerable, ELL children, speci al
needs children and honel ess children. | was
el ected Public Advocate because |I'’m going to
stand up for the voiceless, and | tell you now,
al though | support this Adm nistration and
apol ogi ze for the tone of nmy voice, and | know
t hat you have inherited this system which is

unfortunately not of your own making, but we
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cannot continue a system which all ows
segregation and which treats children
differently. I will not have it. | will sue to
t he Suprenme Court of the United States, and
particularly since we’'re about to cel ebrate the
60'" anniversary of Brown versus Board of
Education. |’m just really disturbed by what
|”m hearing today as a result of the school in
Coney Island, and |I’'ve heard story after story,
when | net with all of the CEC s in New York
City when | considered filing the |awsuit about
this despair treatment in the city of New York.
| woul d hope, notwi thstanding the |aw because
the law is the |aw, but you have got to nake
sure that there is accountability and review
the policies of these charter schools and make
sure that there is consistency in the systemin
the city of New York. That’'s really what |
wanted to say, and | thank the Chair for
allowing me to say a few words, because |’ m not
prepared to abandon equality, not now, not

ever. Thank you.
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CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you, Madam
Public Advocate. We'll now turn to Counci
Menber Mark Levine for questions.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: Thank you,
Chair Dromm | just want to make a point that
|’ve heard from a nunber of parents of charter
school students and sonme students thenmsel ves
that with the heated nature of the rhetoric on
this issue in recent months, since some of them
have t hensel ves felt denonized for sending
their child to a charter school, that they’ ve
done something wong, and | want to strongly
counter that notion. We have a lot of big
debat es anong the grownups here and sonme very
tough questions to ask and answer on charter
schools, but the famlies and their children
have done nothing other than try and choose the
best education for their kids. W hope in sone
cases they’ re succeeding. But our role here is
to advocate for the kids, period, and as the
Mayor very powerfully has stated, we care about
every single child in the system every single
child in the city no matter what kind of school

they go to. Ninety-four percent of the kids
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happen to go to traditional schools, and so 94
percent of our resources and energy should go
t owards serving them but that doesn’'t nean
that we disregard the interest of the six
percent in the charter schools. In fact, |
t hi nk many of our questions today are or should
be directed at making sure that young people in
charter schools are being well-served. It’'s a
critical question to answer. We also have to
answer questions about inpact on kids at
traditional schools and co-location situations.
Again, it’'s about the good of kids, whatever
school they're in. So | have a couple questions
along this line. The basic proposition of
charter schools is that they're serving a broad
cross-section of students. That’s why we have a
|ottery system but to determ ne to what extent
that’s really happening, we have to understand
guestions about attrition rate, questions about
t he pace of back filling and other related
matters. And | see you say in your remarks
you're collecting data on this factor. So can
you tell us what are the attrition rates for

charter schools? How do they conpare to the




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 80
attrition rates nmore broadly in the system? To
what extent is there differentials anong
charter schools and the rate of attrition, and
how do you and how do charter schools define
attrition? After all, this is a somewhat fuzzy
area. Does a child who nove out of state, is
t hat counted towards attrition? 1Is a child who
noves to anot her borough counted towards
attrition? It’s really critical that we
understand this issue, to understand whether
charters are serving a broad cross-section of
chil dren.

LAURA FEIJOO: So | just want to
start by agreeing with you that we are very
focused in this Adm nistration under the
Chancel | or and our current Mayor to | ook at all
schools and all students in figuring out how we
can best serve every single student in New York
City, and so | hear everyone's concerns, and
certainly there are things we’'re engaged in,
i ncluding consolidating the Office of New
School Design and Charter Partnerships so we
can better learn from one another how can we

best address every single innovation in schools
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and share that practice broadly. And so | do
want to say that in ternms of attrition rates,

t he schools that are in our DOE authorized
charter schools report to us information that
non- DOE aut hori zed charter schools from SUNY
and State Education Departnent do not report to
us. And so to give you an attrition factor is
different for those schools. Did you have the
rate? [off m c]

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: So you're
going to offer them for the schools that are
under DOE supervision?

LAURA FEI JOO: So the school s that
are under DOE supervision, we do nonitor that
data. We do look at it. We look at it for
renewals. We nonitor it on a consistent basis,
and if there’s a discrepancy in ternms of
students or what was referred to before, any
category of students or conplaints from
parents, we do review those situations, talk to
the charter schools, talk to the Board of
Trustees in order to ensure that that’s not
happeni ng. We have to do, | think, a better job

of probably recruiting nore ELLs into these
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school s and finding opportunities to bring
students in, but certainly we nonitor that data
and those numbers for the DOE authorized
charter school s.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: Ri ght, but
l’m sorry, | wasn’'t hearing an answer her. So
what is the attrition rate system wi de, and
what is it for those schools, charter schools
that you’'re collecting data fronf?

LAURI E PRI CE: So what--in the
nunbers that we have for the 11 and 12 schoo
year show that district versus charter there
were 4.1 percent transfers city w de and that
that transfer rate for charters was | ower
actually at 3.2 percent. In addition, we | ooked
at the rate for students who have | EPs. There
was a seven percent rate for charter schools
and ei ght percent transfer rate city wi de. And
so you know, we hear a |lot of the stories and
as soon as--1'd actually like to take this
opportunity to explain to the community and ask
the community if you have--if you are
experiencing and issue with a charter school to

pl ease reach out to our office, because we take
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t hose very seriously and we investigate them
i medi ately. But when we | ook at the overall
dat a- -

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: [i nterposing]
| hear you. | want to junmp in because time is
ticking. Do you not have data? Do you have
data on relative transfer rates for ELLS?

LAURIE PRICE: | don’t have that.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: And | think a
critical point here is |I’m not m staken,
charters are self-defining what they call a
transfer, correct? So--

LAURI E PRI CE: [interposing] No,
these are from business rules that we created.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: SO t hey have
to follow your rules on whether, or nmove out of
state for exanple--

LAURI E PRICE: [interposing] In our
nunbers we defined what we’ re accounting as a
student | eaving or not a student | eaving.

LAURA FEIJOO:. They're required to
provi de di scharge codes, and based on those
codes we determ ne which ones we consider

attrition rates and transfers, which would be
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differently categorized out of state than was
to another New York City--

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: [i nterposing]
And to what extent do you see disparities anong
charter schools? Are there sone that have very
hi gh transfer rates and some that have very
| ow?

LAURI E PRI CE: Yeah, within--1 nmean,
you know, with 183 schools, there’s al ways
going to be a huge range and that range is
cl ear even with the percent of speci al
educati on students.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: And what
happens when you find a schools that’s
di schargi ng at unacceptably high--is there even
such a thing in your eyes as an unacceptably
hi gh rate of discharge and what would that rate
be?

LAURI E PRICE: So for the schools
t hat we authorize, we will follow up when we
see a number that we think that is concerning,
we will follow up i mediately.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: And what

woul d a nunber that’s concerning be?
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LAURIE PRICE: It really depends on
the situation.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: Have- -

LAURA FEI JOO: [interposing] | think
it also depends on the time of year where
students are transferring, maybe in June or
Septenber, differently than across the course
of the school

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: And have you
ever taken action against a charter for having
an unacceptably high discharge rate?

LAURI E PRI CE: We have had severa
school s that have been on a notice of concern
or a notice of probation because of not being
able to meet their enrollnment target and for
hi gh di scharge numbers, yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: If the Chair

will allow me one overtime question. Back
filling is another related and critica
guestion. Can you give us rates on backfilling

in the system versus charters?
LAURI E PRI CE: So backfilling, so we-
-1 don’t have that number for you. It will be

difficult for us because schools may not regard
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it as--we can get it for DOE authorized charter
school s, which schools backfill and at what
grades they backfill. For schools that we don’t
aut hori ze, we don’t have that data.

LAURA FEIJOO: But | also want to say
to the over-the-counter question, it’'s
different for district schools than it is for
charter schools. Many of our district schools
don’t have special policies or lotteries or
ot her ways in which they get in. On the charter
school side, we certainly--schools have
policies for backfilling those vacancies
different than district schools where they nmay
have an adm ssion policy that doesn’'t allow any
students to get in because of their adm ssion
policy.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: But for sone
charters it’s not a question of how they
backfill. Some are refusing to backfill
period, after a very early grade, which is
narrowi ng down the field of students they’'re
serving, a luxury that nobst schools in the city

don’'t have, correct?
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LAURI E PRI CE: Most schools in the
city don’'t--

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: [i nterposing]
but - -

LAURI E PRI CE: [interposing] But
along with that | do want to highlight that
about 50 percent of charter schools have
preferences in their lottery for students
beyond just the sibling preference and the CSD
preference, preferences for students with
disabilities, preferences for students who are
desi gnated as ELL. And we actually have several
school s that give preferences to students who
are in the foster care system the child
wel fare system or who are at risk for
homel essness.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: But do you
consi der acceptable for a charter school to
allow no backfilling after a very early grade?

LAURI E PRI CE: They are autononous
organi zations and so if that is part of their

charter, that is--they--
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COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: [i nterposing]
| think we need to--1 think we need to have a
policy on that. Thank you.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Okay, thank you.
And before we go to our next speaker, | do want
to introduce sone children, some students who
have joined us. | asked themto come on in for
a moment. Conme on in students. These are
students from the Bronx Charter School for
Excell ence. | want to welcome themto the City
Council. Let’s give them a round of appl ause.

[ appl ause]

CHAI RPERSON DROMM  And | hope that
you have all been enjoying your tour. | used to
be a teacher. | used to teach fourth grade.

What grade do we have there today? Fourth
grade, so this is perfect education for you
guys. Well, welcone and thank you for com ng
and we hope you enjoyed your tour. Okay? Thank
you students very nuch. Alright, thank you

Al right and then we're going to continue
questioning with questions frommy coll eague

Mark Treyger from Coney I sl and.
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COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Thank you

Chair Dromm and | want to echo the outrage of
the Chair, because this is a school that is in
my district, and | just want the DOE to
under stand the inpact on what is decided from
your agency, whether you have power over this
or not, understand that this is just one of the
many outrages that goes on. Coney Island Prep
is located in IS 303, where there’ s another
school in there. The children of Coney Island
Prep are served organic lunches. That is not
the case of the other schools in the building.
They have state of the art technology. That is
not the case in the other schools in the
building. If we are about ending a tale of two
cities, let’s begin at IS 303. And | al so want
to say that there are public schools in Coney
I sl and that are still dealing with the
aftermath of Sandy. There’s a school, PS 90
that still has its fire alarm system broken
and what they’'re doing to address it is
outrageous and agai nst state |aw. They have
someone sitting in the hallway with a whistle,

and if they smell snoke or fire they have to
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bl ow the whistle. That is shameful. That is
shameful and illegal. The DOE has to understand
the i mpact of what this has on famlies, all
children and all parents in all communities.
Now, in the testimony, | heard or | read but,
“We nust keep in m nd why charter schools were
created, to act as | aboratories of
experimentation in education with the m ssion
of bringing best practices to traditional
schools so every child can benefit.” Does the
DOE have any data? Have charter school
i mproved the performance of nei ghboring
district schools if that was their intent?

LAURA FEI JOO: Each--we do have
sharing best practices. It’s very hard to
determ ne inmpact when the--of the practice. W
can share the practice. We can share the work
that we’'re doing, and | think | testified to at
| east one or two different ways that we're
sharing that. The Learning Partners Programis
one up and com ng. The New York City Charter
Office creates partnerships, but the inpact of
| earning has to do with the test, the

curriculum the teachers and all the work we do
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inside of district schools to inprove
instruction. And so that cause/effect analysis
is hard to deci pher, but we do think sharing
best practices along the |ines of Chancell or
Farina is a way that we’ re supporting
i nnovation in schools.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: W th all due
respect, all we’ ve seen is nore closing of
traditional public schools. W’ ve seen nore co-
| ocations. It seems to me that the charter
school s have not inmproved the performance of
adj acent or neighboring district school s.

LAURA FEIJOO: | will say that this
Admi ni stration is absolutely commtted at
community, commtted to conmunity, and ensuring
that we’'re talking to communities about their
needs and their desires for their schools and
wor ki ng t hrough that.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Now, can
district schools self-certify that they' re
doing well just |ike charter schools can?

LAURA FEI JOO: So there are
accountability measures for both charter

schools and district schools. They may not be
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exactly the same, but there are accountability
that force students and their test scores and
their outcomes--

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER
[interposing] | just want to--I shared this
story outside and its worth repeating here, and
| just--it’s really inportant that we
understand this. There's a high school in South
Br ookl yn called Grady Hi gh School

LAURA FEIJOO: | know it well.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: And this
story is so powerful that everyone really need
to hear it and process and understand this,
that 700 students, nost of them have | EPs, nost
of them from Coney Island, and the previous
adm n--again, this was the previous
Adm ni stration. The Deputy Chancell or Mark
Sternberg [sp?] had a surprise visit to the
school and he was taken to a room where the
ki ds supposedly with special needs were
buil ding a home, working cooperatively, worKking
with adults, working with staff building a
house, and he had the audacity to tell the

school | eaders that their school was
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i neffective, because their numbers were not

that great. | want to see Mark Sternberg build

a house with his hands. | want to see anyone

the DOE build a house with their hands because

| guarantee you if they went to Grady, they' d

be listed as a kid with special needs. That,

you know, we have to be honest about this. W

have children who are listed with I EPs who in

my opinion are not special needs, they're

specially talented and their talents have not

been brought out by a system that does not

measure that talent. That is the problem It’s

all how you measure success, and if you design

a systemthat’s designed to fail, obviously
you' re going to have failing school s.

LAURA FEI'JOO: So if | can just say
t hat - -

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER
[i nterposing] Please.

LAURA FEI JOO: We certainly
appreci ate and support and believe in career

and technical education. Former Principal

Mai one will --

93

n
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COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER
[i nterposing] Yes.

LAURA FEIJOO. will not give us a
restful moment if we don’t.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Ri ght.

LAURA FEI JOO. As one of the
exanpl es, just one of the exanples of
passi onate individuals in education that
believe in career and technical education as an
addi ti onal component to students’ academ c
education, and so | understand your concern and
wor ki ng very closely with the school to think
about how the adm ssion process to Grady can
better support students who are interested in
going there, and so | just want to say |
conpl etely understand the CTE school. | also
want to say you mentioned PS 90 and Pri nci pal
Hawki ns [sp?] and certainly if this is an issue
in terms of fire codes and bells and things,
|’m certainly--we can | ook at--we’'re absolutely
going to look into it. The fire watch is
conpletely in conpliance based on | aw. |

under st and your concern. | am not--
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COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER
[interposing] It’s outrageous. Ma’am with al
due respect it’s outrageous.

LAURA FEI'JOO: 1 wunder st and.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: To have
someone in a hallway with a whistle, okay?
Coul d you imagi ne blowing a whistle at children
with autism what that can do? |It’s just not
accept abl e.

LAURA FEI JOO: | wunderstand what
you' re saying. There is a safety plan in place.
There is--what we can do is continue to review
and nonitor the situation. It’s not sonmething
we’' re not aware of. We are aware of it and we
will continue to work with the principal in the
school to see how we can upgrade the system
but it is an old school building and a
difficult--

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER
[i nterposing] That’s been damaged by Sandy 18
nonths, and it’'s time that we really get a
nove--1 have one | ast question, Chair.

LAURA FEI JOO: Sure.
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COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: And | wil
close with this. You nentioned in your
testinmony, | just want to make sure that | get
it right, that the process to grant a charter
renewal, it’s a two day visit, a public
heari ng, parent outreach and so forth. Now,
there’s a Success Acadeny, there was an
application that was rushed at the end of | ast
year into Seth Low IS 96 which is in
Bensonhurst. | just want to tell you that not
once did anyone from Success Academnmy come to
any of the public hearings. So you had
concerned residents, parents, educators,

children stakehol ders speaking to thensel ves.

96

So we argued to the SUNY Chancell or who was the

aut hori zer of this, that this was not a
hearing, this was a soliloquy. So | ask you
how does the DOE define a public hearing,
because we were never granted one in
Bensonhurst with regards to IS 967

LAURA FEI JOO. For that particular

school, it’s the authorizer. We hold the

heari ngs. We organi ze the hearings. Part of our

responsibility is to create the opportunity for
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t he hearing, but we do not have authority to
ensure that any individuals are there beyond
set up and notify the public.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Well, | have
to tell you that SUNY disagrees with you
because they sent a response to our letter
asking for an investigation of that supposed
sham of a hearing, and they said it was up to
the DOE to put together the hearing, and that
they collect comments fromthe DOE

LAURI E PRICE: We do certainly do put
t oget her the hearing and we certainly do
collect all the coments.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: But it
wasn’t a hearing, ma’am That’'s nmy point. It
was a soliloquy. We were talking to ourselves.
And they al so planned the hearings on Jew sh
hol i days which is absolutely outrageous and
di srespectful weaving out |arge segnents of the
popul ati on. We were never granted an
opportunity to speak with people from Success
to discuss concerns and issues. So how are we
supposed to--what are we supposed to expect

about the future of that co-locati on when we’ve
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time and tinme again reach out to the DOE and
granted, this was the previous Admi nistration
and | fully understand that, but let’s not--if
the process was flawed, clearly the product is
going to be flawed. We need to go back to
square one and readdress this issue, and I wil
hol d, reserve my comments second round. Thank
you, Chair.

LAURA FEI JOO: Thank you.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Wl |, thank you,
Council Member. And | want to say that it’s,
you know, not surprising that Success Acadeny
didn’t show up for that hearing, but they're
not here for this hearing as far as | can tell
either, and | guess that they just don’t want
to have any public scrutiny whatsoever. So they
seemto be avoiding a | ot of public hearings,
but I also want to caution you and the DOE as
well. | don’t know if we should take any of the
policies that Coney Island Prep has in practice
and share with them anybody to be honest with
you, in |light of what we know today about the
di scipline policies. So I would really ask you

to hold off on sharing any of those policies
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wi th anybody until we further investigate this
situation.

LAURA FEI JOO. We did say best
practices.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Wel |, whatever.
Best practices or policies, | don’t know what’
going on in that school and if they have a
di scipline policy like that, nmy goodness what
el se can they share? | tell you what they
could share, the lunch. That would be great if
they’d share the lunch with us, you know.
Organic food, 1'lIl take that anytime. Alright.
Thank you. Next Council Menber is Council
Member Ruben W I s.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLS: Thank you,
M. Chair. | had a whole bunch of things, a
litany of things that | was going to go over,
but | just want to thank you for comng in
t oday and answering your testinmony. | know it
got heated, but | keep hearing ny grandnother’
voice, “If you don’'t have anything nice to say
don’t say anything.” So, and it’s not directed
t owards you, but | just really am not happy

with policy right now So with that being said
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M. Chair, I will yield the rest of ny tinme and
| thank you for giving me the opportunity.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Thank you,
Council Member WIls. Council Member WIIliams?

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: Thank you,
M. Chair, and thank you for holding this
hearing. Thank you very much for your
testimony. I--so, | always try to think about
things in ternms of me, ny friends when | was

growi ng up, and | always say | know it’'s very

hard for people to believe, but | was a bit of
troubl emaker in school. If | went to that
school, | would have a uniform of orange

shirts. That’s what would be going on, and

t hankfully, shot out to Ms. Jeanie Ned [sp?] ny
fifth grade school teacher who took a
particular interest. Back then there was
teachers allowed to be creative with the
trouble makers. My nother, Patricia WIIians,
was very much involved, and that concerns ne
about where | would have been had | not certain
opportunities, and | always ask if the

Adm ni stration believe, particularly when |I'm

dealing with education or NYPD, do we believe
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t hat bl ack and brown kids are uneducabl e and
born prone to crime, and the answer’s al ways
no, but the statistics of the system we all ow
themto be in bears sonmething else out. So
something is wong. |I’m not against charter
schools and | never have been. | am-have been
agai nst from day one how this adm nistration
has used charter schools. It’s very frustrating
to me. | don't really understand what it is,
except if they just want to give people sonme
nmoney, and so when we try to clanp down on
things, | saw Eva Moskowitz [sp?] and Success
Acadenmy and sone other folks put a |ot of black
and brown kids on TV as if that was what this
was all about to begin with, and |I don’t think
that’s 100 percent accurate. Maybe it is
i naccurate, but | think the use of it was very
strange to nme, because we're trying to make
sure that all kids have this opportunity and
seens to me if we're going to throw gold dust
up in the air and say if catch it, you're good,
and if you don’t, well too bad is a problem So
| ve been hearing this line about what charter

school were supposed to be, and | agree with
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havi ng | aboratories, it’s probably a bad word,
but | believe in having spaces that we can be
creative in trying to reach people. My question
has al ways been what have we | earned thus far?
| ve never gotten an answer to that. And how
are we bringing that to the rest of the
popul ation? So if you can give ne an
i ndication, |ike what the city has | earned so
far about charter schools, about best
practices, and what is the venue to get that to
all of the young people who nmay not be in
charter schools so they can benefit fromit as
wel | ?

CHAI RPERSON DROMM And if | just may
add to the Council Menber’s question because
it’s related. In 2010, | believe the Chancell or
put out the District Charter Coll aboration
Compact. If you could address how that conpact
is meeting the requirements stated therein that
hol di ng an annual shared practices summt, how
you're neeting that and the coll aborative
approaches that the Chancell or has been

speaki ng about, how is that all intertwi ned in
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addition to the Council Menber’s question? 1°'d
appreciate it. Thank you.

LAURA FEI JOO: Sure. So | have sone
exanpl es of ways in which the Hellenic
Cl assical Charter School, the instruction
suppl emented in Greek in | anguage history and

culture is one of the ways we think about dual -

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:
[interposing] |I’m sorry, can you say it again?

LAURA FEI JOO: Sure. So sonme exampl es
that | brought with me in terns of some of the
i nnovative things charter schools may be doing
to address the first question, | can cite the
Hel l enic Cl assical Charter School that has
instruction supplemented in Greek and | anguage,
| anguage and history, and some of our district
school s are also working on dual | anguage
programs and ways in which | anguage influence
our understanding of history and culture.
French American Charter school is another
exampl e, and certainly district schools are
al so col |l aborating on that. There are sonme

particul ar schools that have extended schoo
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day, extended school year and tinme for
additional arts prograns because they have that
additional time to work through the things, and
t hose are things we | ook at in terns of what
they're able to acconplish in that extra tine,
bot h extended time during the day and extended
school year. To the dissem nation information
t he New York School Charter Di ssem nation Grant
does provide funds to support the dissem nation
of information. | don’t know if you--

LAURI E PRI CE: Yeah, the
di ssem nation grants encouraged charter schools
to find specific partner schools, partner
district schools, and for the charter school to
say, okay, we're strong in this and we are
going to work with this district to be able to
share- -

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:
[interposing] What is--1"m putting the onus on
DOE. What is DOE doing to get that
i nformation?

LAURA FEI JOO: So under our
Chancell or who is an educator who is incredibly

commtted to ensuring that every student has




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 105

t he same opportunity and access, she’'s created
the Learning Partner’s Program that is an
attenpt to do exactly this idea of

di ssem nating information to other schools
based on a selection of individual schools that
are district schools and later to join with the
charter school partners to be able to |earn
from exenplary practices inside of these
schools. And so that is one of the things
noving forward in addition to what | nentioned
before in terms of the New Office New School
Desi gn and Charter Partnerships, how merging
two former offices that were separate are going
to come together to say, “You' re new school s.
You’' re devel oping practices. How can we
absolutely work together to assure alignnment in
terms of sharing best practices and what does
that mean for the rest of the field?”

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: So just to,
| guess, piggyback on something that Counci
Member Treyger was saying as well, is it the
Adm ni stration’s belief that this experinent

has wor ked? Are charter schools educating our
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young people better than regul ar public
school s?

LAURA FEI'JOO: | can’'t make that
characterization that all charters and all
district schools. | think that sonme school s,
either--in either case, charter or district do
a really good job of educating our students,
and their outcomes are avail able and we can
| ook at them and point to them and sonme may
not be, and that’s why we put them on notice of
ei ther probation or disciplinary deficiency
notices, both for district schools in way and
charter schools for another. So | think that
that’s something we're really looking at in
terms of who’'s serving our students best, all
of our students, and how do we share those best
practices, and how do we mtigate sone of the
t hi ngs that were nentioned before that we
really don’'t think are things that we want to
see in our schools for our students.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: So there
are some charter schools that shouldn’t be

opened, and then some districts that shouldn’t-
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LAURA FEIJOO: [interposing] W
review them every single year, and at this
nmonment, there are only two schools that are
under a notice. The other schools in terns of
charter--

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:
[interposing] Because it just seens to ne,
however we slice this the poorer the
nei ghbor hood the darker the conpl exi on of the
kids, they' ' re probably in schools that are not
perform ng properly and don’t have teachers who
are able to do that. They’'re not getting extra
activities. They’'re not getting cultural stuff.
They’ re not getting PAL sports. So all of these
t hi ngs are hanpering us, and then you go to the
charter school they may open up and they have--
they’ re flourishing and doing well. |I’mtrying
to see how we deal with that. Co-Ilocations, by
t he way, should have just been a noratorium
period. | don’t understand why we didn't have a
noratorium because we're setting up--we’'re not
taking away the tale of two cities, we're
exemplifying it by having a building that has

one side not getting much of anything and the
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ot her one getting organic |lunches. And so that,
| have been against from the begi nning unless
the principal was supportive of it, and there
are some that are supporting co-location, but
forced co-locations are just a terrible idea.
So | hope there will be a moratoriumuntil we
can find some policies that make sense.

LAURA FEI JOO: So we’re absolutely
| ooki ng at every single new space and wor ki ng
with the conmunity. Our new office has gone out
to comunities to talk to them about what they
m ght need in areas that we are putting new
smal | schools in for next year. | do want to
say that | understand the issue you're raising
in terns of communities and how some
communities are serving students differently,
but in every one of those there are great cases
of schools that are serving students really
well, and sonme we absolutely have to take next
steps on to serve both district and charter.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLS: Great, | just-
-and thank you, M. Chair. We--Ilike whatever
we’'re doing is not working fully, and | keep

hearing that there are schools that are




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 109
wor king. | don’t know why it’s so difficult to
figure out what’s causing those schools to
work, and let’s bring it to everybody. And it
can’t be just nmoney, because you could throw a
| ot of money at everything and it doesn’t
necessarily hel p.

LAURA FEI JOO: Ri ght.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: What is the
hanpering to figure out if it’s a charter
school, if it’s a regular school, what's
working, let’'s bring it to the rest of the
school s, because the problemthat charter
schools | have, one beside the forced |ocati on,
the first co-location and is the cherry picking
and it does happen. And the suspension rates
are high, and I’m not nad at parents who are
trying to get the best education for their
child, which they should, but this is setting
up parents agai nst parents as well. | just said
a lot of things, | understand, but it’s a
frustrating thing. Like we have--we know what
wor ks. What is the hanpering of putting that
across the board? Why are there regul ar

school s that don’t have any arts and culture?
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Why are there regular schools that don’'t have
any athletic prograns or any after school
progranms? Why are there schools that don’t
have teachers unnecessarily up to par? Why are
t he schools--1 nean there’s just a trenmendous
probl em You got schools that are falling
apart. You can’'t go to the bathroons. Like this
is a problem Let’s just fix it. And these
charter school, whatever, experiment whatever,
but it’s causing another problem So we're
setting a problemon top of a problem And I
don’t understand. Like we have enough
informati on now. And so | heard your answer.
" m not persuaded by it. | don't think it’s
been fully thought out about what’s worKking
with the charters, and | don’t think it’s fully
t hought out about how to bring that to the rest
of the population. Until that happens, we're
going to continue to hanmmer away at this
probl em because we have some people who have
access to gold dust and sonme people who have
access to dust on the ground, and that is a

probl em
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LAURA FEI JOO: And we hope to
continue to work with City Council to try to
figure out the answers to the questions. |
think the issues that you raised in terms of
school | eadership, school teachers, access is
all things we're invested in and working
towards into try to build schools, but is a
very--we do know how to inprove schools and we
are absolutely under this Chancellor’s tutel age
wor king to do that.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. And
Counci | Menber Margaret Chin?

COUNCI L MEMBER CHI N: Thank you,
Chair. | wanted to focus ny question in terns
of parent involvenment. So is the DOE
monitoring that the charter schools are
following state | aw, that they have to have
parents association, that’s having regul ar
meetings and open to all? So how many charter
schools are actually doing that, that do have
parent associations?

LAURA FEI JOO:. For the DOE

aut hori zed charter schools, it is something
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that we work with the schools with and have
parent associations in place.

COUNCI L MEMBER CHI N: So, only the
one that DOE has authorized?

LAURA FEI JOO: Only the ones we have
statutory guidance over. | can’'t speak to the
ot her schools. |’m sure that some of the SUNY
and the Board of Regents schools have them but
we have authorization over the 69 charter
schools for which we give them gui dance and
informati on and work with themto support their
parent organizations and their parent
i nvol vement in their schools.

COUNCI L MEMBER CHIN: So do you
moni tor and check to see if they are involving
parents and havi ng meetings and parents can
file conplaint or?

LAURI E PRI CE: Absolutely. As a part
of our annual conmprehensive review as well as
our renewal process we are |ooking to see that
schools are in conpliance and that they have a
active parent association and we make note of
it in the reports that come out of those, and

t hose reports are public and on our website.
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COUNCI L MEMBER CHI N: Now, are the
parents part of the Chancellor’s Parent
Advi sory Council? The parents fromthese
charter schools, are they part of the
Chancel l or’ s Parent Advisory Council ?

LAURA FEIJOO: | don’t have a |list of
t hose parents, but we can get back to you.

COUNCI L MEMBER CHI N: You don’t know?

LAURA FEI JOO: No, | don’t.

COUNCI L MEMBER CHIN: | nmean, this is
a DOE, under the Division of Fam |y and
Community Engagenent.

LAURA FEI'JOO: It’s a division in the
Depart nent, but - -

COUNCI L MEMBER CHI N: [interposing]
Yeah, but there is a city wide Parent Advisory
Council. They have regul ar nmeetings. They send
City Council Member information on their
meetings every nmonth. Are charter parents part
of this? Are they invited to join?

LAURI E PRICE: We can | ook and get
back to you.

COUNCI L MEMBER CHIN: | hope so,

because they' re public. That’s what we keep
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hearing, that charter schools are public
schools, so they’'re public schools. They
shoul d be involved in all these activity that
are a part of public school. | mean, the
parents, if the parents were involved in these
kind of city wi de parent group, they m ght be
able to tal k about their concern about some of
the discipline policies in their school,
because a parent, you know, they have to fight
to get--1 nmean, they feel so whatever that they
go selected through the lottery, and sone of
them m ght not, you know, be willing to conme
forward to conplain or worry that they m ght
the I ose the seat for their kids, but if
they re regul ar public school parent, then they
shoul d be involved in parents, you know,
coalitions and being especially sponsored by
DOE. So | definitely want you to | ook and--

LAURA FEI'JOO: [interposing] We can
get back to you on that, but I do want to just
say for the record that 311 calls can also be
anonymous, if a parent wants to raise a
conpl aint or a concern that we get the

informati on and we will address it, even if
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t hey don’t want to |eave their name. So | just
want to--

COUNCI L MEMBER CHI N: [interposing]
How many conpl aints actually came in about
charter school? Do you have that statistic?
Maybe you can share that with us.

LAURA FEI'JOO: | don’t have it, but |
will.

COUNCI L MEMBER CHI N: Yeah, so that
we could see how does parent really utilize
that or not. And just one last point is that
when you're tal king about glad to hear that,
you know, Chancellor Farina was tal king about
in ternms of best practices, because we have so
many public schools, real public schools, |
mean district school that are doing great. |
have a ot of themin nmy district. Those
exanpl es need to be shared. | nmean, |ike
charter school only serves six percent of our
popul ation. The majority of schools are real
district, real public schools. So let’'s give
some good exanple and let’s really showcase the
good schools that we have, what they’'re doing

and really celebrate those, which I don’'t hear
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a lot. You know? You hear about all these
charter schools. They only--they're a small
percent age. Meanwhil e, we have a | arge number
of our school that’s working, that’'s doing
well. Kids are educated. Kids are engaged.
Parents are involved. Let’s hear nore of those
form the DOE

LAURA FEIJOO: | agree we have great
schools in New York City, and this Chancell or
is out and about at several schools and as she
goes around speaki ng, she does highlight things
that she sees that are exenplary practices in
school s doing really well and schools worKking
towards a goal, and so | agree, we need to
cel ebrate our successes.

COUNCI L MEMBER CHIN: Well, but let’s
get that out in the news on a regul ar basis.

LAURA FEI JOO: Learning Partners wl
do just that.

COUNCI L MEMBER CHIN: So the public
knows that we have good public school. Thank
you, Chair.

LAURA FEI JOO: Thank you.
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CHAl RPERSON DROMM Okay. Before we
go to round two, a couple of Council Menmbers do
have a second round of questions that they
woul d |ike to ask. My question is around the
ElI'S, the Educational |nmpact Studies that you do
before co-locating a school into a building.
Now, | ast year, when they tried to co-locate
into Long Island City Hi gh School they did not
put out a information, | guess, request for
i nformati on about, which would have been
included in the EIS in the native | anguage of
the--right, the community inpact statement in
t he native | anguage of the people, nmost of the
peopl e who attend that school. So |’ m wonderi ng
i f your department or anybody in the DOE ever
goes back and | ooks at the EIS statenments to
see if the projections of the inpact were
accurate or if they were off, how much they
were off by? Were they underestimted? |Is
anything |like that ever done to go back and
| ook at that?

LAURA FEI JOO: Sure. So, the
Educati onal | npact Statenent stands. It’s

utilized if there's a co-location concern, or
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guestion or something that arises, we go back
to that because that’'s what we’'re governed by
in terms of space, and we utilize that to make
decisions in figuring things out, and | think,
you know, absolutely | ooked at, reviewed.
Comments that come in are categorized and
organi zed so that we have information about
public comments.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM And that’s post
pl acement of the school with the co-location?

LAURA FEI JOO: Sure. And | can give
you an exanple. | was at Richnond Hill High
School the other day and we--that was the first
docunment we took a | ook at, when we were
| ooki ng and thinking about how can we mitigate
what Public Advocate James mentioned before,
some of the issues around the TCUs and the
annex and the space inside the school building,
and so that was the first docunment that was put
on the table.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM So if you see a
school where the co-location projections in the
ElI'S were not accurate, do you pull a school

out ?




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 119

LAURA FEIJOO: I don't. So if they're
not accurate, we absolutely have to work with
the two schools to figure out space sharing.
The campus squad that | nmentioned before, we
have to figure it out. Part of the school being
co-l ocated, whether the data’s exactly right or
slightly off or things change over tine,
because things do change. We do go out to work
with the schools and figure out space in those
co-located buildings, and I’m part of the team
t hat goes out to do that to be able to
strategi ze around progranmm ng, around space
i ssues, around things we could do with
facilities to inprove those facilities for
everyone’s use.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Okay, thank you.
| want to go to Council Menber Mark Treyger.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Thank you,
Chair. |1 have sonme just to follow up on a
previous thing that we had exchanged about. The
DOE' s position, is that they' re in conpliance
wi th what’'s going on at PS 90, but I'Il tell
you that that was--having soneone that’'s in a

hal | way could be what’s called a tenporary
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situation, maybe for a few days, a week the
nost, but it’s been 18 nonths. So does the DOE
believe that they are in conpliance with State
mandat es and regul ati ons about what’s happeni ng
in that school in Coney Island?

LAURA FEI JOO: Council Menber
Treyger, let me respond.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Pl ease.

LAURA FEI JOO: As we are all aware
that this was an inpact caused by Sandy- -

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER
[interposing] Yes.

LAURA FEI JOO: and we are continuing
to work very closely with FEMA, with this
Adm ni stration, with OVMB to secure all of the
funding that we need to do all of the repairs
required to address the buildings that were
i mpacted by Sandy. There are in many cases, and
this is one, we are not able to move forward
with repairs while we are awaiting the
determ nations from FEMA. So we are worKking
very closely. We are all very anxious to
address the repairs needed by Sandy, and we

will hope to get this acconplished as soon as
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we can, but we in the meantime we are doing
everything we can to ensure that the students
and staff in this building are safe and fire
watch is a way to help do that.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: But with al
due respect, the city just received and
additional, | think, 300 mllion dollars at
| east fromthe state. | believe it is a |egal,
noral, ethical obligation to nmove on this,
because to have people in the hallway with
whistles, it doesn't--first of all, it doesn’t
pass the laugh test, but it’s not funny. It’s
serious, and we have to--you know, that has an
i mpact on instruction. People think that no one
cares about--people think no one cares about
t hat school, that no one cares about the
comunity. So | know FEMA, | believe nme, as
Chair of the Recovery Commttee, | could tel
you FEMA has--we have a |l ot of issues with
FEMA, but we have an obligation right now to
address this matter. Let’'s pay for it. Let’s
get it done. Then I’Il help all that I can from
my commttee’s end to get reimbursenments. But

we--but this is an exanple of a tale of two
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cities as the Mayor always tal ks about. We have
to make sure that all children are treated
equal ly and are safe. Now, | just want to say
about you nentioned about space and wor ki ng
wi th school communities. The school that
Chai rman Dromm i s highlighting, Coney Island
Prep, when they originally came to the
comunity | was not the Councilman at the tinme,
but the councilman at the time had nmentioned
that this was a tenporary fix, tenporary
solution. Not only are they in 303, they' re now
because of the DOE' s approval of a rush co-
| ocation at the end of |ast year, they're now
expanding into IS 281 Cavallaro. Cavallaro is a
school that actually acconmmodated Coney Isl and
Chi Il dren when they were displaced by the storm
| don’t know if the DOE s aware of that.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Wait a m nute.
Wait a m nute, Council Menmber. They are going
to expand the Coney Island--

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER
[i nterposing] That is--and they re going into
non- Coney |sland nei ghborhoods. That’s correct,

yes. They’re expandi ng Coney Island Prep.
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CHAl RPERSON DROMM | mean this is--
gets to be nmore and nore unbelievable, that a
school with discipline policies such as the
ones that we heard about here today is now
bei ng given perm ssion to expand further?

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: That's
correct. And they're going into a school that
in my opinion deserves a thank you fromthe
DOE, fromthe City of New York for taking in
children who were displaced by the storm
They’re over 80 percent capacity. | still to
this day have not gotten an answer fromthe
DOE. Where are they going to fit these kids

physically into the school? There's just--

there’s no space in--1 know you guys | ook at
nunber and little charts. | have visited
Cavall aro. 1’ve gone inside the school. There's

no space, and then you need--there are Kkids

wi th special needs that need special room
accommmodations for testing and resource.
There’s no space. So can soneone explain to ne.
| was a history teacher, | wasn’'t a math
teacher, but | know sinple math. Where do you

fit theminto Cavallaro? And in light of what




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 124
t he Chairman has just reveal ed here today, how
in good conscious can you let this proceed
forward?
LAURA FEIJOO: | will absolutely go

and | ook at the space issues around Cavall aro.

| know the school. |I’ve been in the school.
| ve been in 303. | know the history of the
schools going in there and utilizing the space.

| know the science school, so | understand how
t hey’ re working through space coll aborations
and have actually been there recently. So
that’s one thing | think that can be worked
out. | understand what you' re saying about the
school and the discipline policy separately,

but in ternms of Cavallaro, the charter--the
schools that are noving forward in ternms of co-
| ocation are schools that were put in place and
we want to make the best situation on terns of
sharing space and utilizing space, because not
moving forward with the schools woul d have been
a disruption to students who had sel ected and
want to attend those schools. But | will | ook
into Cavallaro space to try to see if the

buil di ng, the canmpus, the canpus buil ding squad
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can go out and try to support this school and
the co-location in ways that we have in other
pl aces.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: 1’ d just
like to tell you, I don't--1 cannot see a
situation where the DOE can conply with
regul ati ons when the school is really--it has,
you know, as it is already 80 percent capacity.
There are kids with special needs that need
speci al accommdations. | don’t see how that’s
possi bl e, and you have not all owed the
principal of the school and that adm nistration
to fulfil and actualize their vision of
expandi ng additi onal progranms to Cavall aro, but
that’s a separate conversation. The bottom i ne
is it was--we had significant comunity
opposition. It was a rushed co-location. There
wer e nunmerous town hall meetings public and
where the community came out against it. The
Mayor had assured a nmoratoriumand it just it
never happened. So there’'s a major trust
deficit here that no one is trusting of this,
and based on the record of Coney Island Prep in

Coney Island, they are not entering this school
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with the greatest trust record here either. And
| want to be very clear about this. | am not
going to fall into the trap of pitting charter
school parents versus district school parents.

LAURA FEI JOO: 1 under st and.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Qur job is
to serve all children. VWen | was a public
school teacher at New Utrick [sic] High School
we had some kids comng in from charter schools
and | didn't treat them any different. They' re
all our kids, and when the DOE gave us kids
fromthe Bronx 17 years old with zero credits
expecting themto graduate in four years, we
still took themin with open arnms, even though
t hat counted agai nst our data. That over-the-
counter, whatever you want to call it, we never
deni ed those kids entry into our school. If
they’'re called public schools they have to be
bound by the same rules as public schools.
Thank you.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM And on that note,
| think what we’'re going to do is have a
commttee visit to Coney Island Prep. So I'd

like to ask the Adm nistration to set that up
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for us please at our earliest conveni ence so
that we can go see firsthand exactly what’s
going on there and at the school where it wil
be co-located. And now I'd like to turn it over
to Council Menmber Jumaane W I I ians.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  Thank you,
t hank you. But if you--if it’'s a pre-announced
visit, they probably won’'t have any orange
shirts that day.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Wl |, | ook, you
know what? | do believe that one of ny
oversight responsibilities is that | can walk
into a school at any time, and | intend to use
that, specifically in situations when | hear
about these types of things happening as well.
So there may be other occasions where | do walk
into schools unannounced. | did it now because
of the situation we find ourselves in at this
hearing, but I will be using that and other
opportunities to get firsthand know edge of
what '’ s happeni ng our public school system

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: Sounds
good. | just had some statements really quick

that | forgot to nention. One is obviously, and
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| always say it’'s easy to sit up here. It’s
harder to run a system of two point sonething
mllion folks and | understand that, which is
why | al ways push that we have to be focused on
what we're doing and if we're being pulled in a
hundred different ways and not focused on
eval uati ng whether those ways are worKking,
we’ re doing ourselves a disservice. But the
last thing | wanted to nmention because there
is--1 have some great schools in nmy district
and we were tal king about best practices.
There’s one school in particular anong the
great schools, PS 119 that’'s doing a | ot of
good work. The principal’s nanme is Jenny
Fernandez, but for her reward she’'s been
puni shed by the previous Adm nistration and |I'm
hoping that this Adm nistration will treat her
differently. She was doing great work and she
focuses on peace and viol ence, and she had sonme
focus prograns just on young bl ack mal es. She
wasn’t allowed to do that, and now she was
t aken--her ability to be in charge of her
adm ssion was taken away. | hope that that’s

returned to her. There was no good reason while
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it was working. It’s one of the better schools
actually in the city, and | hope that’s | ooked
into. Thank you.

LAURA FEI'JOO: | absolutely will

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Council Menmber

Barron?

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: Thank you,
M. Chair. | had another hearing that’'s why I
wasn’t here earlier, but | did listen to the

testimony for a portion of the time, and it
greatly concerns me what we’ve been hearing. We
know t hat charter schools were intended to be a
nodel to be replicated as they denopnstrated
success, and | think that we are now on a
runaway train that we're trying to catch up to
and see what have we created and how we need to
correct it. As you know, we hear about the tale
of two cities. Well, when we | ook at our
educational system now, we have the tale of two
tiers of education. We know that initially
charter schools came in and there was a bl at ant
di stinction between the services, the

buil dings, the facilities, the equi pment, the

l'i braries, the painting, the bathroons, the
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doorways, and everything that they use. So to
address that inequity, we now are told, “Well,
for every 5,000 dollars that a charter school
t hat maybe co-located in your building spends,
you get to spend 5,000 dollars.” But the
problemis there’ s no transparency, there’'s no
accountability, as we heard at one of our
previous hearings, so that the whole school
doesn’t even in fact know the cost of
i mprovements that are being done in the
building. So | would hope that this committee
can get that information as to the dollar
amount so that the whole school will be able t
have that information readily at their
fingertips. Part of the problemw th the co-
| ocation is that the assessments that were don
wer e done--were not done objectively or with a
total view to understandi ng that we teach
children holistically. So it’s not just about
designating a given nunber of classroons based
on a student popul ation, but making sure that
t he space that’'s used for art and for nusic an
for the other areas that fulfill a curriculum

are in fact given to the school. What we now
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have in many instances is an exanmple of the
proverbial camel getting the nose in the tent,
and whol e schools being forced out of the
building in which in fact they were there
first. So they're not entitled to have that
space for dance roons or other areas of
instructi on because they’'ve been taken over,
and their children are forced into the TCUs
whi ch we know were only designed initially to
be there for 10 years and have extended into
15, 20 years and beyond. So the whole school is
taking the burden of not being treated on an
equi table basis. It’s not equal. It’s not
equitable, and it is a nmpjor problem Part of
the problemalso is that New York City, New
York State, 1'll start with the state, had for
two decades not funded New York City
appropriately. If I could have nmore time. Thank
you. Not funded New York City equitably, so
t hat the popul ation of children in our schools
were functioning under a Governor who felt that
an eighth grade educati on was adequate, but was
taken to court and was chall enged and was told

no, that’s not acceptable, and the state was
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told that they had to in fact give New York
City 5.2 billion dollars over a four year
period. Unfortunately, this Governor has not
seen fit to uphold that settlenment and has in
fact taken back two billion dollars in funding
that had initially been granted under the first
two years of the canpaign for fiscal equity. So
there are lots of problenms. First of all, for
me, if a private institution receives public
funds but is not held to the same standard as
the other institutions receiving that public
funds it is in fact not a public institution.
It’s not in fact a public institution. The
teachers are not eval uated by the same met hods
as the public school institutions in ternms of
t eacher evaluations. They’'re not held to that
same standard. | was amazed two years ago while
| was in the Assenbly when they said, “Oh, no,
charter schools don’t have to conply with terns
of the criteria that we’'re going to use for

t eacher eval uati ons. So there are two
st andards here, two sets of books, two--the
resistance and in fact, legal fight to not have

transparency. No we don’t want you to know
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what’s going on. No, we don’'t want to give you
that ability to | ook at our books. That speaks
volumes as to what it is that’s happening that
you don’t want us to see and to know about ?

Why woul dn’t you getting our money want us to
see how you' re spending our noney? | think that
there’s much to be said. As you know, charter
school s have a very | ow proportion of specia
needs children and ELL students and they get
counsel ed out when their needs are not nmet or

t hey present problens. And it was interesting,

| read about Jeffery Canada’'s [sic] School. He
took in a select population and when it go to
the sixth grade and he realized that the
results were not what he had expected, he ended
the school. We're not going to have a seventh.
We're not going to have an eighth grade. We're
going to start again. What public school do you
know can tell children, “Listen, we' re not
going to continue to keep you in our system
because you’'re bringing our grades down.” It
was clear. It was blatant, and it was al arm ng
that he was allowed to do that, and that people

tal k about the great success of charter schools
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where if you | ook at the data for black
students graduating from public schools there’'s
an abysmal 12 percent graduation rate, but for
charter high schools there’s an even nore
abysmal rate of only 10 percent of bl acks
graduating. So the data does not bear out what
it is we wanted charter schools to do, which
was present a mpdel. Oh this is great. This is
sonmet hi ng you can replicate. Here' s the data,
and that has not been the case. So | think
we’'ve created a huge entity and system t hat
needs nmuch | ooking at. Parents conme to ne and
they tell me that they realize later that the
contract that they sign does not allow themto
chal l enge a decision of the school, and if you
want to challenge it, take your child out. And
t hey brought ne the contract. | was amazed, and
it’s just not a systemthat’s respectful when
you have children wearing orange and being told
t hat they cannot interact. School is a
socializing institution or so it’'s supposed to
be. But we now have charters where children
have to wal k down the hallway with their hands

behind their backs. What does that | ook |ike?
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That | ooks to ne |ike here’s a child who's
being restrained. And it |looks to ne |ike an
institution where they have to wal k down the
halls with their hands behind their back. So if
the intent is to create nodels that are going
to be replicated in the community public schoo
buildings, | don't think that we’'ve yet reached
that, and we need to really | ook at how we can
make sure that these schools that are getting
public nmoney but being operated by private
entities in the matter in which they identify
in their charter. It’s in their charter, so we
know what it is, but we need to | ook at how
that is happening, and we need to understand
that all of our children are entitled to
smal | er class size, extended day, wrap around
services, and that when we give all of that to
our children in an equitable basis, then we’ll
get the results that we see, but we’ve got to
hold the city and the state accountable to give
the funding that’'s needed to make that work.
Thank you, M. Chair.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay. Thank you

very much, and interesting observation about
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t eacher evaluations. | did not realize that. So
maybe that’s one of the best practices that we
should bring into the public schools. Wuld you
be opposed to not having the evaluation system
t hat has been i nposed upon us using one of
t hose best practices fromthe charter schools
and bringing theminto, fromthe charter
schools into the public schools and eval uating
t he teachers in the public schools the same way
that the teachers are being evaluated in a
nunber of the charter school s?

LAURA FEIJOO. We’'re bound by 3012C.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM ©Oh, by state | aw?

LAURA FEI JOO: And by ele--there are
el ements of it including student data that are
reviewed in ternms of teacher evaluation and so
to--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] So
we can’t use those best practices in the
charter school in the public school?

LAURA FEIJOO. That is correct.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Wow, i magi ne

that. Alright. Next question, Antoni o Reynoso.
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COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: Thank you
again, Chair. | just want to say there’'s two
schools, two charter schools in my district,
Mesa Charter School in Bushwi ck and
W I lianmsburg Charter Hi gh School in
WIlliamsburg. W I Ilianmsburg Charter Hi gh Schoo
is a community charter school that was--wth
input fromthe comunity was built and they
have their own building, and they do amazing
work. And | just want to say that about three
years ago the--or two years ago, the Departnment
of Education tried to shut down the school and
take their building away. \When they finally do
the right thing, there’'s an effort by the
charter department in DOE to shut them down.
Luckily we took themto court and we were able
to show that there was a conflict of interest
and that it wasn’t in the best interest of the
students to shut this school down. So | was
grateful to hear that. And with Mesa Charter
School in Bushw ck, they take the majority of
their children are from Bushwi ck, which is very
rare, not |like the Success Acadeny in

Wl liamsburg who do not have the--who do not
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have the majority of the children from
community, from CCl4. | do want to say to

mar keting principles. We talk about best
practices. Success Acadeny had a marketing plan
that targeted children form CEC 14 that were in
the more affluent areas of the community. So
the train station on Bedford Avenue, up and
down the business corridors of Bedford and the
nort hsi de were fl ooded with Success Charter
School information, flyers. They paid--they
shut down Bedford Avenue. Looked |ike Success
Academy Avenue when you conme out of the train.
You know, the youtube truck, the youtube train.
They had--it was alnmost |ike they had a youtube
station. \What ended up happening is a | ot of
those famlies fromthe affluent areas ended up
goi ng to Success Acadeny, and the Sout hside
parents who are poor or didn't have the
informati on weren’t even prepared to apply or
didn’t know that they could apply. So they got
an unfair amount of people from affluent areas
applying to their school and this is a tactic
they use to cream That marketing in the DOE s

eyes, when we asked them what it was, they said
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as long the CEC 14, that justifies them

mar keting, their marketing standard. And | just
want to say that it’s concerning to me when a
school can choose what parents they’'re giving
information to, and in order to target the type
of parent and the type of kids that they want
in their schools, and the DOE did nothing. And
the thing that bothers me npbst about his
hearing, is that | thought that there was going
to be a different tone set fromthe Departnment
of Education as to what they were trying to do
here today, and our outrage wasn't shared by
you. You're not outraged by the orange shirt.
You answer ed Council Menber Treyger’s question
by saying, “Yes, we are going to expand and
we'll see how we can make that expansion nore

equi table or fair.” Instead of saying, “There’s
a huge problem here, and we have to | ook at
whet her or not we’'re going to proceed with
this.” And it seens |ike when | ask about over
the counter kids, you gave ne information
regarding policy and | aw i nstead of saying,

“That is a big issue that we’'re |l ooking into

and we hope to address.” You're not |ooking to
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partner with us to address the issues that
we’'re tal king about. You' re just continuing to
speak on practices that we do not agree with
and that we’'re not happy with, and I'm
concerned about that. | just wanted to tell you
how | felt about your reaction to us. Thank
you. And | would |love for you to say
sonmet hi ng.

LAURA FEI'JOO: So in recently taking
over the charter school office and the office
of new schools and the Chancel |l or taking over
some things, there are things that were in play
that we want to be able to resolve with
schools. | don’t want to sound | ess than
commtted to students and to schools and
hel pi ng principals figure out situations that
are difficult and chall enging. | understand the
over-the-counter question quite well and | know
t he chal l enges, and we’ve been | ooking at
policies that address enrollnment in schools and
over-the-counter enrollment. We were at several
communi ty meetings tal king about ways in which
in local communities we can better figure out

how to give information to parents so they have
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nore transparent school choice, and to the

degree, | apologize that | don’'t sound as
interested. | amvery interested and concerned
about every single school. | know many of the

school s you' re speaking about and there are

t hings we want to do to address that, and
certainly |I believe this will show noving
forward as this Adm nistration takes root in
every decision that’s being made begi nning the
new school year, that we re able to address
some of these issues and denonstrate more than
me just saying we're going to do this and we’'re
going to do that, that we’'re actually taking

t hese things to heart, because it is things we
feel very passionately about. Some of the
things, | do have to say, are not in our
authority to take control over. | can't--1 can
certainly try to give parents as much
informati on as possible. We can work with CEC
14 to ensure that all parents have the sane

i nformati on because there are ways in which we
can provide informati on because we have that
vehicle to do that, but in order to bring

peopl e to hearings or certain things that were
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mentioned, | understand the concern, but
they’re not really within our jurisdiction to
ensure, but to the degree we can, | want to
commt to you that we want to be able to do

t hat absolutely noving forward because every
deci sion we make after this school year will be
ours to make and be accountable for.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO: Thank you.
appreci ate that answer.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay, | have two
foll ow-up questions. | was not going to allow
them |’ mgoing to allow them One m nute each
and |’ m asking the Sergeant to put you on the
clock for a mnute, then we’'re going to wrap it
up. We do have other people who want to speak.
They’ ve been waiting patiently for two and a
hal f hours. | want to be able to get to them |
want to be able to hear from charter schools as
well, give themthe opportunity to speak and
from parents who are affected by these
deci sions also. Council Menber Inez Barron and
t hen Council Menber Mark Treyger.

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: Very qui ckly.

You just said it’s not in our authority.
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There’'s sonmething that we call Mayoral control
|’ m opposed to Mayoral control, but it exists.
So since it exists and it says that the Mayor
has conplete authority, | would challenge you
to say that that’s not an accurate statenment
and | would hope that as |long as we do have it,
and if in fact the Mayor thinks that sonmething
i's not happeni ng appropriately, that he would
exert his authority as the Mayor having

conpl ete control over the education system and
take it to court and challenge it and make it
work for all of the children. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay.

LAURA FEI JOO: No, | was just going
to say if | m srepresented. There are certain
things in state policy that we don’t have
authority over.

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: Mayor a
control was given to the Mayor by the New York
State Assenbly, by the state authority, and if
in face it exists and if the Mayor feels that
there are sone things that need to be addressed
and corrected, | would challenge the Mayor to

use his authority as the Mayor havi ng Mayor al
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control to take it to court and correct what he
feels is not right.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Counci | Menber
Treyger.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Just to
build on Council Member Barron’s point, the
proposal to co-locate Cavallaro m ght have
happened under Bl oomberg’ s watch, but the
decision to nove forward with this co-location
happened under this current Mayor’s watch. So
that’s what we’'re tal king about, and in |ight
of what we’'re | earning about Coney Isl and
Prep’s discipline code, I wonder what other
things we’'re going to discover about their
instructional code. And |, again, and | wil
take up the Chair’s proposal for a trip, a
commttee visit, because it is nmy position that
Cavall aro, first of all, the children in 303,
the children in Rachel Carson shouldn't be
exposed to what’s happening there either, and
quite--the children in Coney Island Prep should
not be subjected to this type of outrageous
treatment, but to exp--but to reward it. You're

basically rewardi ng what’ s happeni ng here by
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expandi ng into other schools, and that nust
end. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay. So thank
you. | just--before we let you go, | did not
read the whole statenment and | want to get that
out so the public understands that the orange
shirt, it doesn’t stop there. It says, “These
scholars will also have designated seating in
every classroom Scholars who are out of pride
will sit silently and spend their breaks or
unches in the Dean’s office or another
desi gnated area. Scholars who are out of pride
will serve detention after school.” So it goes
on and on and on, and it’s just it’s amazing to
me that in New York City in 2014, that our
students can be treated this way. That being
said, | do thank you. Do you want to respond?

LAURA FEIJOO: |1'd actually just like
to give one nore conment not on that
particul ar, but to Council Member Treyger. |
have email ed during our conversation about sone
addi tional information on KO 90, that fire
installation is in fact in progress. It will be

conpl eted by Septenber and the | ow voltage
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systemin the entire buil ding needed an upgrade
in order to conplete the fire alarmwork. So it
isS in progress.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: | thank you
for that, and I will work with you on the
temporary boilers as well.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM  And | do want to
al so, as | was saying before, thank you for
com ng in and thank you for sitting through
this bit of a grilling. I think that you can
detect that there is much concern, deep, deep
concern about the charter school issue within
this City Council, and this City Council wll
continue to have oversight as nuch as we can.
We will continue to advocate for our public
school s students, and we will reconvene a
hearing on charter school in the near future to
find out how far we have gotten. |I'm very
interested in what the results of your | ooking
at those other 69 school’s discipline policies
are as well as other issues concerning class
size etcetera, which we didn't get to today,
but I do thank you, and | also acknow edge t hat

you have not been in your office for too long a
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period of time, that much of what we have
brought up here today is a result of the
previous Adm nistration and we want to be able
to give you tinme to correct some of these
situations to the extent that you can. So thank
you very nmuch for com ng.

LAURA FEIJOO. And | just want to
t hank you for allowing me to hear the concerns
to address them as best as we can, and | | ook
forward to further hearings and to working with
you on the things we commtted to providing the
City Council after this neeting.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you very
much. Okay, now | would like to bring up Erik
Joerss fromthe New York City Charter School
Center, John Khani from CSA and Davi d Gol ovner
fromthe New York City Charter School Center as
well. Okay, let me get to the panel. |’ m going
to ask you please to raise your right hand, and
as--okay, and M chael, what’s your |ast name?
Can you speak into the mc so we can get it for
the record?

M CHAEL REGNI ER: Regnier, that’s R

egni er. Thank you.
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM And Sergeant, can
you ask himto fill out a slip for us, please?
Thank you. Alright. So can you pl ease al
three raise your right hand? Do you swear or
affirmto tell the truth, the whole truth and
not hi ng but the truth in your testinony before
this commttee and to answer Council Menmber
guestions honestly?

UNKNOWN: | do.

UNKNOWN: | do.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. So
should we start with John?

JOHN KHANI : Okay, good afternoon
Chai rman Dromm and Council Menber Treyger and
Counci | Member Barron. It’'s a pleasure to be
here this afternoon. W' re hopeful at CSA, and
by the way, CSA is the Council of School
Supervi sor Adm nistrators. We represent 15,000
principals, assistant principals, educational
adm ni strators, assistant directors, and
directors of daycare. We're hopeful that
today’s hearing can take a step back fromthe
shouting and the scream ng, the acrinony and

the aninosity triggered at the mere mention of
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the word charter school and co-location. Lost
in the noise are the children whose education
and best interest are being held hostage to the
noi se. Council of School Supervisor

Adm ni strators wel come charter schools as a
suppl ement to traditional schools, a sound way
of increasing choice and an original way to
spur innovation and conpetition. In fact,
charter schools are public schools which have
been relieved of some constraints in order to
use innovative methods to reach specific
academ c goals. Because they receive public
noney, they are prohibited from charging
tuition, fromrejecting students on the basis
of academ c achi evenent, special needs or
Engl i sh | anguage proficiency. The best of these
schools often spring fromthe roots of their
comunities. They are the product of devoted
teachers and parents seeking to find new ways
of educating their youngsters. There are
currently eight New York City charter schools
where the | eaders are represented by this
union, CSA. | would note that none of these

schools are run by for profit conpanies. The
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purpose of the Federal, State and City dollars
used to fund these schools are provided to
educate our children, not to fill the coffers
of educational entrepreneurs. For charter
school s that honor the spirit of the Charter
Act of 1998 and have students popul ati ons that
mrror the denographics of their communities,

t here should be financial parody with
traditional public schools in the district.
Several analysis indicate that charters do not
enjoy this parody. At the sane time, there are
charters that are enjoying outrageously unfair
advantages. In some of our districts, there are
charters that are treated |i ke favored children
even though they break rules and make a charade
of accepting students unconditionally. They
actively recruit students who are nost Ilikely
to succeed, skimm ng them off the top of
traditional public schools. Somebody nmentioned
earlier, this concept is called cherry picking.
When the time comes for the city wide and the
state wide tests, special needs, ELL and under
achi eving students who slipped in are

forcefully steered back to their traditional
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nei ghbor hood schools, often too late for the
per pupil funding to acconpany them As a
result, the charter school that taught the
student is not held accountable for the score.
| nstead, these | ow scores are attributed to the
public school that inherited the transferred
student and did not have the right of refusal
because public schools must accept all
students, even those that do not necessarily
i mprove the school’s test scores. At a tine
when there is still thousands of our children
attendi ng classes inside of a trailer, many
ot her public school children have to fight for
space in their own buildings. The sad truth is
co-locations can and sonetinmes do |ead to over-
crowdi ng, depriving children, especially
di sadvant aged children of sufficient classroom
space, libraries, arts, progranms, gynnasi uns
and | aboratories. This was underscored recently
in the Conptroller’s report about arts
education lacking in |low inconme areas. Qur
menbers often tell us that co-location can be
successful when | eadership teans fromthe

shared campuses incorporate a coll aborative




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 152
approach to managing activities in space within
the building. We also were very pleased that
Chancel | or Farina has made a paradigm shift
from pronoting conpetition to embracing
col I aboration and sharing best practices. There
is little support or training for schoo
adm ni strators to address the chall enges that
may arise from co-locations. Co-location
remai ns a grave challenge for many schools. I'm
wr appi ng up. In sonme instances, cafeteria space
is so limted that students are forced to eat
| unch before 10:00 in the morning. As noted in
a New York Times op-ed piece just |last nmonth
entitled “Charter School Refugees” Andrea
Gabreapril [sp?] poses an interesting and
t hought provoki ng question which should preface
co-location determ nations. |Is there a point at
whi ch fostering charter schools underm nes
traditional public schools and the children
they serve? We believe that in those specific
situations the DOE nmust take a closer | ook at
its policies and avoid creating nore charters
and co-locations if the result is detrinmental

to the host school. The author further au pines
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that some charter school initiatives |ike
| onger school days and student reward systens
to foster good behavi or have been adopted by
traditional public schools, but charters have a
ot to learn fromthese schools, too,
especially when it conmes to educating speci al
needs students. We should not allow policy
makers to enshrine a two tiered systemin which
t he neediest children are |l eft behind. Thank
you.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. Next,
pl ease?

ERI K JOERSS: Thank you, M.
Chai rman. Thank you, Council Menbers. My nane
is Erik Joerss and | am the Deputy for
Government Affairs at the New York City Charter
School Center. Thank you for the opportunity to
testify. G ven time constraints, | will not
read frommy testinmony, but just address a few,
| think, inportant points. The topic of
accountability for charter schools is a
critical one. Accountability is central to the
uni que but fair charter school bargain.

Charters are freed from many state | aws and
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regulations in order to operate with increased
flexibility over everything fromhiring, to
curriculumto the school calendar, but in
exchange, they' re expected to neet academ c
goal s or be shut down. One of the charter

aut hori zers charged with enforcing this
accountability is the New York City School’s
Chancellor and it would be critically inmportant
for the Departnment of Education to faithfully
carry out this function. Even in an

Adm ni stration that is philosophically opposed
to the closure of struggling district run
school s, there nmust be a clear distinction that
charter schools which the city do not directly
manage are still subject to the sanme charter
bargain they signed up for when they applied
for charter for the right to serve public
school s kids using public dollars. A strong
system of authorization and accountability and
one that closes schools that aren’t perform ng
is central to the charter bargain and we hope
and believe that the DOE will take this
responsibility with the due seriousness that it

deserves. One thing that hasn’t been brought up
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really in this hearing is the actual
| egi sl ation around this hearing, which is intro
12. We strongly support Intro 12, salute
Council man King for his forward thinking bil
t hat seeks to increase transparency and make it
easier for comunities to know their |ocal
schools. We'll be forwardi ng some technica
suggesti ons about bill |anguage and woul d
respectfully suggest these three substantive
i nprovements to the bill. First, for the sake
of including up to the date test scores, a
Septenber reporting date would be preferable to
a June reporting date. Second, the demographic
data being collected and reported shoul d
include a nmeasure of econom c di sadvantage to
be determ ned by the DOE, and third, there’s
really no reason to limt the reporting to co-
| ocated schools. A simlar report about all
schools with indications of which ones are co-
| ocated where would be much nore useful to the
public debate and we trust the added staff tinme
required to prepare it would be trivial. | want
to talk briefly about some of the things that

wer e brought up in the hearing as opposed to
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just reading direct testinmony. A lot of the
charter centered debate revol ves around best
practices, and whether or not charters are
sharing best practices and how we can better do
this. One thing | wanted to nmention that’s
often loss in the debate is, it is a two way
street. Charters have |learned quite a bit from
our district counterparts. Nobody has a
nonopoly on good ideas. | think it’s safe to
say without the Brooklyn New School, there
probably isn't a community roots, which then
t hey got Conpass, which will start. These
col | aborations are inmportant and they do need
to go both ways. In ternms of teacher
eval uations which were brought up in the
hearing and that charter schools don't have to
abide by this state teacher evaluation, that’s
because our teacher evaluation standards tend
to be harder because the schools are not
actually bound by sone of the rules that the
district schools are. The conplaint that a | ot
of charter operators have with the teacher eval
system was they had this huge nultipage factual

report that was being asked to condense it down
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into a one, two, three, four system which
frankly is a | esser system than they have. And
t hat was kind of the push back fromthe schools
on teacher evals. Council Menmber WIIiams asked
about what works. We know some of the things.
We know a | onger school day works. We know
principals that are able to set their own
culture are things that works. We're really
heartened by the fact that in the new contract
with the UFT it | ooks like there’ s going to be
up to 200 schools that are opening that are
going to open on these simlar ideas, and I
think that’s a testanment to the fact that there
has been a sharing of good ideas. | think

wi t hout charter schools it’s safe to say that
part of the contract which said now you're free
to experinment, now you're free to try new

t hi ngs, probably wouldn’t have happened. | will
say now, respectfully but strongly, one of the
problems is we go into schools and we try to
work with district schools and we do try to do
our coll aboration. VWhen words |ike, phrases

l'i ke “real public schools” when we’'re conpared

with the perpetuating Brown versus Board of
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Educati on, when we are accused of perpetuating
educati onal apartheid, that doesn’'t make it
easier to share practices. That doesn’'t make
the room and the atnmosphere better for
col  aboration and learning. And | ask this
council, you have a huge responsibility. You
are | ooked to as the policy makers, and the
| anguage you send and the cues you send out to
t he broader comunity matter, and | think we
all want to get to a point where we have better
conversations and we are able to share nore,
and | think some of the nasty rhetoric that’'s
not limted to one side, but I think of the
nasty rhetoric really hurts that from happening
and makes it nuch, much nore difficult. To
address Council Menmber Reynoso had tal ked about
over-the-counter and whether or not charters
are able to take and how they treat over-the-
counter children. State |aw requires that you
fulfil your lottery first, and then off your
waiting list there's a little bit nore
flexibility, but a school with a huge demand
doesn’t have a | ot of freedomto take over-the-

counters. And | would say this is the same for
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the district. I don’t imagine PS 321 is taking
a |l ot of over-the-counter kids. Schools that
parents want that are in demand have | ess room
for other kids to conme in outside of the
regul ar enroll ment period. We can all agree in
this roomor we can all disagree that that’s
worth changing and it’s worth getting over-the-
counter kids into 321 and into charters. That's
a great discussion to have, but let’s not limt
it to one part of the educational system
Counci | Menber Levin tal ked about honel ess ki ds
and whet her or not they’'re served. W have
schools |i ke Mont Haven [sic], Broonstreet
[ sic] Acadeny and Rhodes [sic] that
specifically do serve kids in these popul ati ons
and these circunmstances and from foster care.
Council man al so mentioned the budget and the 20
percent growth in the budget. That growth is
happeni ng sinply because charter parents are
choosing to send the kids to these school s.
There’s no magi c. There’'s no mal efi cence.
There’s no charters are getting nore or |ess.

It is per pupil, and some of the parents in

this roomare the sane people that wanted this
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for their kids. That in and of itself simply is
why those nunbers, the part of the charter
budget, is going up. Wiich brings me to one of
my |ast points, the legislation in Albany that
has all owed schools to have, to be guaranteed
the use of space. We of course do support
this. We thought that a flaw in the charter |aw
fromthe beginning was that if a school doesn’t
have funding for facilities, they re operating
a huge di sadvantage, and without co-location it
could have actually killed the charter schoo
novement . \What we woul d ask, and | know t hat
everybody in this roomor |I’ve heard people
tal k about we don’t |ike the networks, but we
l'i ke the independent schools or we like this
and don’t like that. There are 68 charter
schools that are the absol ute bar none wor st
funded public schools in New York City. They
pay their own rent, as much as 20 to 25 percent
of money that they should be using for
occupational therapists, for guidance
counselors, for teachers, that goes to rent.
And that is not something that got addressed in

t he budget and | assune as peopl e of good wil
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woul d want to see that all--want to see funding
equity, want to see all kids educated. We would
| ove your help with the Assenbly and the Senate
next year to go to Al bany and fight for these
school s and get themto parody in funding the
same as every other school in New York City
receives. | will not take any nore of your
time. Thank you. |’ m open to questions.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you. And
were going to speak, or no? Okay, so good.
Alright. So sone of your points are very well
taken, and | don’'t disagree with everything
t hat you’ ve said. However, there are sone
concerns that we share, and |I think the thought
that comes to m nd when | hear your testinmony,
Erik, if I may say Erik because | do know you
well fromthese hearings, is that we need to
| evel the playing field to a certain extent in
terms of what it is that public schools get in
terms of the dollars that they get and the
noney that the charter schools get as well. So
| think that’'s part of the discussion that
needs to happen noving forward and I would

agree with you on that.
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ERI K JOERSS: Council man, may |
respond to that?

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Yes.

ERI K JOERSS: In that, with that
logic and with that same point, and | saw in
the commttee report the idea, and in the
Annenberg [sic] report that came out there was
an idea of well-resourced networks, well-
resourced charter schools should not just get
their per pupil. They should have to pay sonme
of that back. I’ve never heard that
conversati on happen about well-resourced
district schools. |1’ve never heard about PS 321
raising a mllion dollars a year through their
PTA about their responsibility to give that to
poorer schools. All we talk about fromthe
phil anthropic dollars is the charters. W don't
tal k about the noney that district schools
rai se or what should be done with that, and
maybe it’s an oversight, but I know from a | ot
of people sitting on our side of the table, it
is suspiciously deliberate that there are a
bunch of things thrown out to kind of knee cap

us.
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CHAI RPERSON DROMM Wel |, | don’t
know if it’s suspiciously deliberate or if it’'s
because the head of one of your charter schools
is out there pronoting these things. | think
t hat the head of Success Acadeny just had a
fund raiser for 7.7 mllion dollars, which was
headl i ned by Jeb Bush, of all people. So when
you have Jeb Bush at your event and you're
doing this, | think that’'s why it beconmes part
of the argument and the fight here. So | get
t he point of what you're saying that there are
some public schools who are able to raise these
funds, and they’'re probably in the nore well to
do areas. I'msure they're in the nore well to
do areas, but when you're talking 7.7 mllion
dollars in one night and Jeb Bush is the
headl i ner, there’'s an equity there, Erik. There
really is. It just--you can’t conpare it to
what’s going on in any of the public schools.
That’ s ny deep belief. We all argue that, and
l"’msure we'll--we’'re not going to settle that
here at this hearing.

ERI K JOERSS: Fair enough.
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CHAI RPERSON DROMM | al so want to
ask you a little bit about the extended days,
etcetera, that you' ve been able to use as a
nodel, but to be honest with you, the DOE had
ext ended days going back to the 90’ s where
t eachers chose for a 15 percent differential to
go into hard to staff schools and they would
get that noney, and they had to work extended
days and extended years. | believe that they
had to cone in a week before, a week after, and
then the days ran until like from maybe from
ei ght until four o'clock. That’'s actually a
public school idea, and that idea worked well
and that was a nmodel that the former
Chancellor, | believe it ended under Chancell or
Klein, and I don’t ever understand why that
nodel really ended. So--

ERIK JOERSS: | don’'t either. That'’s
a fantastic question.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM So | just want to
point that out. | think part of the concern
t hat we have here with the charter schools is
the issue of oversight and who has oversi ght

over the charter networks. Now the DOE has sone
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oversi ght, but obviously not enough oversi ght
over what’s going on in these charter school s,
but how do you respond to that question? Who
is providing oversight for these things? Do
you audit then? Do you as the Charter School
Center have a relationship with these charter
school s that can ensure the public that these
types of situations aren’t going on? | nean,
gave two exanpl es of these networks where we
found out, you know, egregious violations of
di sci pline codes and the way that children
shoul d be treated are going on, but who has
t hat oversight?

ERI K JOERSS: The authorizers do,
and every authorizer has. | nmean, you nentioned
and you know, at the risk of being too cute,
you point out the discipline problens and that
you conpare it to corporal punishment. There’'s
only been one charter school that has actually
been found to actually use corporal punishnment,
and that was the UFT charter school, and what
t he authorizer has a right to do then is go in

and do mandatory training for those--
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] But
excuse me. Let me just--excuse ne. Let’s hold
t he appl ause. That teacher was reprimnded.
That teacher was taken to task on it. This is a
policy. It's different than finding a teacher
who has conmmitted a one wrong. That could
happen anywhere. So for you to say that is
adding fuel to the fire of what it is that
we’'re trying to discuss here today.

ERI K JOERSS: That's a fair--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [interposing] |I'm
tal king policy. And when you have sonet hi ng
written into policy, something as egregi ous as
the policy that | pointed out today, it’'s a
probl em and do you agree that this is corporal
puni shment ?

ERIK JOERSS: | don’t know if | could
call it corporal punishnment, which is really a
legal term | think that could be certainly
hum liating for a kid.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Eri k, | nean,
come on. | mean, by all standards of decency,
this is a horrible thing to put a child

t hr ough.
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ERIK JOERSS: And if it is said--

[of f mi cC]

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Excuse ne. Hol d- -
pl ease, please. We don’'t want to get into a
scream ng match. We have had a very civi
di scussion here for the nost part. W have had
some nmonments that were heated, but | want to
keep this as a civil discussion. These are
i ssues of inportance for all of us. You have
your opinion. | have mne. Let’s hash it out.
Let’s move forward on these issues.

ERIK JOERSS: If that policy is in
pl ace for a half an hour period versus if it’'s
a week or two or three weeks, those are very
different things. | remenber being in a public
school s growi ng up and being pulled out and sat
on the sideline away fromall the other kids.
didn't like it. I wouldn't want my kid to go
t hrough it, but I’ve seen that in district
school s too.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Erik, this is a
problem This policy is a huge problem and if

t he Charter School Center is going to defend
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that, it

you' re doi ng.

ERI K JOERSS: |

good policy.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM | t

is where we need you guys to cal

168

under m nes any of the good stuff that

am not saying it’'s a

has to--this

this stuff

out, and to say that this is wong. Now let nme
go on, because we could argue this all day. Do
you--is Success Acadeny part of your network?

ERI K JOERSS:

We are not - -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM

of your Charter

ERI K JOERSS:

associ ati on.

profit--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM

you offer

Moskowi tz is?

ERI K JOERSS: |

Eva Moskowi tz- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM

Where' s Eva?

School

We are an i ndependent

any excuse today for

There is no network.

[interposing] Or
Center group?

We are not an

not for

Can

[interposing]

wher e Eva

have no i dea where

[interposing]

VWhere' s Eva?
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ERI K JOERSS: | inmagi ne educating
chil dren.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM | mean, where is
Eva? She’'s the one who' s speaking out, doing
all this stuff, has the relationship with the
Governor, but where’'s Eva? 1It’'s |ike remenmber
the old comercial on TV, “VWhere’s the beef?”
Ri ght? \Where’s Eva? Okay. And this shines
very badly on the charter school novement. And
in fact, she used to be Chair of this
comm ttee. She should know why she shoul d have
been here, okay? This is--these are the issues
that we’'re tal king about here. Now, John from
CSA, you said that there are charter schools
t hat are enjoying outrageously unfair
advant ages. Well, startup funding for charter
schools are not exactly sure. Fiscal year 2014,
t he Achi evement First Aspire Charter School got
124,508 funnel ed through DYCD. Brooklyn Urban
Garden Charter School, 117, Citizens of the
Worl d, 100, 000, Great Oaks Charter School,
94,000, so forth and so on, and it nentions |
t hi nk al nost--many of themif not all of them

But Harl em Success Acadeny Charter School
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709, 000 dol l ars, seven times what the other
charter schools are getting. Now, since Eva is
not here, | can’t answer that. But | think it
speaks to what it is that you were addressing
in your testinmony that other charter schools
are enjoying outrageously unfair advantages.
When are we going to get an answer for this
stuff?

JOHN KHANI: We totally agree with
you that that’s one of the problenms that we' re
facing, that there are in sone cases at sone
charters unfair and outrageous advantages they
have not only over other schools, but also sone
of their fellow charter schools.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM So | et me ask
again, | think the average salary of a
principal is probably about 125, 135, 000,
somewhere in that area, and that’'s with
probably, you know, a good number of years of
experience. You don’t start out at that.
Deborah Kenney [sp?], Village Acadeny NetworKk,
499, 000 dollars, Eva Moskowi tz, 475,000
dol |l ars, David Levin, KIPP, 395,000 doll ars,

lan Row [sp?], 325. It goes on and on and on
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and on. Why are these types of salaries
necessary for these CEOCs? Can anybody answer
t hat question?

JOHN KHANI: | can’t support it. What
| also think we need to hear is that our
Chancellor of 1.1 mllion children only gets
250, 000 dol I ars.

CHAI RPERSON DROMMI | was going to
get to that.

JOHN KHANI : And | don’t understand

t hat .

CHAI RPERSON DROMM | was going to
get to that. It’'s five times what a Counci
Menmber would make. | just don’'t see any

justification for this, unless this is big

busi ness pushing into the public school system
and making a profit even though they're
nonprofit organizations. This is a roundabout
way to circunvent the law to enrich thensel ves.
And | know in one instance, the husband of one
of these CEOs is making an additional 200-

250, 000 dollars. So they are making three
quarters of a mllion dollars off of their

charter schools. It's--this is the issue. |
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woul d suggest that the New York City Charter
School Center go back and address these issues
in a formal way and come out with policy on
t hese issues so that we can be clear about
where it is that you stand on these issues, and
so that we know that if in fact we’'re going to
have charter schools, which it seenms |ike
that’s what the governor wants, that’s what
some people want for their children, that in
fact they are community based charter schools
wi th average salaries offered to people in--
even to what regul ar educators in New York City
public schools are maki ng or even Counci
Members are making, or the Chancellor is
maki ng. | mean, you know, you could reduce it.

You know, you could cut it in half and you

still would be making nore than the Chancell or.
The Chancell or has 1,700 schools. | don’'t get
it. I just don’'t understand how we are

establishing a separate and unequal systemthat
actually becomes educational apartheid. That’s
what | see happeni ng when you tal k about these
types of things, especially when you talk about

executives making these types of salaries in
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the | owest inconme conmmunities in New York City.
Okay. This is an insult to the people who live
in those communities that people would come
into those communities and make those types of
salaries off of their children. Sorry.

M CHAEL REGNIER: M. Chairman, if |
may.

CHAI RPERSON DROWMM Yes.

M CHAEL REGNI ER: So an i nmport ant
distinction to realize is that the per pupi
funding that goes to any public charter school,
which are all required to be 501C3 nonprofit
organi zations is fixed. This past year it’s
been 13,527 dollars per pupil. There's no
di fference across one network or one school.
The prem se of the charter school novement is
t hat we haven’t got it all figured out. W have
a long way to go towards the kind of academ c
achi evenment that we’'re hoping to provide to al
students in our city, and one way that we can
do that is to provide different combi nati ons of
resources, different career | adders, different
incentive structures and different staffing in

order to see what can be done with the sane
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amount of money that the DOE spends on its
particul ar configurations.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM That's why |’'m
glad | gave you the opportunity to respond to
t hese questi ons, but nobody on the panel, and
excuse me John, |’m going to separate John out,
he’s froma different organizations, the
Charter School Center, is willing to say one,
that this policy is wong, is willing to say
two, that the salaries that the people make is
wrong, that they’'re willing to say that the
startup cost or the startup noney that they get
is disproportionately distributed. | need to
hear that from you. When are we going to hear
that fromyou? |I'mglad that you say that
you' re not there yet, but when are we going to
hear these types of discussions comng fromthe
Charter School Center?

M CHAEL REGNIER: This is, | think I
speak for Erik as well, the first we’'ve heard
of this particular policy. | haven't had a
chance to find out anything about how often--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] |

have it here, so you know what you can do, take
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a look at it and I'Il call you back up to give
testi mony when this is done.

M CHAEL REGNI ER: We | ook forward to

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Al ri ght ?

M CHAEL RECGNI ER: Yeah.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay, so here.
Sergeant, would you bring this over to him
pl ease?

M CHAEL REGNI ER: In terms of whether
a particular salary is wong, | think all of
our level of investnment in public schools is
wrong to the extent that it fails to deliver
for kids. If the Council is concerned about
achi evement and that is the first order of
busi ness, then that should be the first
guestion is which schools are delivering for
ki ds- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Sir, it depends on how you determ ne success.

M CHAEL REGNI ER: Thank you, Chair.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM | f you’re basing
it on reading tests, maybe somebody has done

well, but frommy understanding is that a
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number of these network charter schools have
testing coordinators who focus only on raising
test scores. Public schools do not have testing
coordi nators that wal k around and figure out
how test scores can be raised, and there are
many ot her measures of success.

M CHAEL REGNIER: It was, | think, a
wi dely shared view after the adoption of the
Common Core Standards anmong uni ons, anong DOE
fol ks, anmong charter educators that the
probl ems of narrow gameable tests were behind
us. If you ve | ooked at the Common Core exans,
it’s not a matter of--

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] But
you' re basing your statement on the success
t hat you claimsone of your schools have based
on those Common Core assessnments. In
particul ar, that was Eva Moskowitz’'s case that
she made. And so please don’t nove away from
that. It’s not us who is doing it. It’s your
menmbers, your groups. | differentiate al so
bet ween you and the comunity based charter
schools. Okay? That’'s who's doing it. Not us

in here the council, it is your organization.
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you need to nove away fromthat. We need to
have an educational discussion to say that
charter schools should not only be nmeasured on
testing, public schools should not only be
measured on testing, but let’s talk honestly.

ERI K JOERSS: One thing, M.
Chai rman. You’'re making this nmuch cl earer
di stinction than it actually is. The networks
were not sent from Mars to do harm You have
networ ks |i ke Democracy Prep. You have networks
all over the city that are doing fantastic
things in their community. They' re doing
fantastic things sharing best practices. You
have networks that do not operate at all above
their per pupil. When you tal k about what
delivering results means, yes, one way we
measur e achi evenent is our grades, our test
scores. Another way we neasure it is demand
from parents. Another way we measure is how
t hese kids, how many get to coll ege and do
well. Of course it’s nore holistic than just
test scores. Because a newspaper reporter
writes a story that this is just test scores

doesn’t reflect what everybody else in the
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novenent believes. If you |look at a school Iike
Denmocracy Prep--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Erik--

ERI K JOERSS: [interposing] who are
unconmon- -

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [ i nter posi ng]
Charter school |eaders are pointing to these
test scores.

ERI K JOERSS: Anpbng ot her things.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Wel |, they focus
on it.

M CHAEL REGNI ER: M. Chairman- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
That’ s the big thing.

M CHAEL REGNI ER: We are certainly
pointing to test scores because we think that
these tests are rigorous and valid and the
t eachers uni on anong many others called them
t hat and heral ded the advent of tests that were
not so predictable, that were not so narrow,
and that were not so ganeable. The test scores
mean sonet hing. They don’t mean everything, but

t hey mean sonet hing. And when we tal k about
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coll ege ready rates and | anent the fact that
those rates are | ow anong African-American and
Latino children in the city as many of the
Council Menmbers rightfully do realize that’ s an
anal ysis based on those same test scores.
Charter schools are taking those concerns
seriously and day in and day out for an extra
300 hours a school year are trying to do their
best to do something about it.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM We can go on--
we' || have anot her hearing on testing, okay?
That’ s anot her issue.

M CHAEL REGNI ER: That sounds |i ke
even nore fun.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM But | do have
col | eagues that want to have questions as well.
Counci | Member Barron?

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: Thank you,

M. Chair. | believe it was M. Joerss, is that
your pronunciation? Joerss, okay.

ERI K JOERSS: Thanks.

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: Who spoke
about an atnmosphere that’'s nasty and there’'s a

| ot of rhetoric going on, perhaps that was




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 180

before | came because during the time that 1’ve
been here | think that we’ve had perhaps very
di fferent divergent conversations, but | think
very inmportant, and in as much as our society
often times tries to sugarcoat issues that are
unconfortable to talk about and I’ m thinking
specifically about race and how they push it
under the table and don’t want to be honest
about di scussions about race, the issue never
gets addressed so it doesn’t get resolved. So |
think that in as nuch as we have differing

poi nts of view, strongly differing points of
view on charter schools they need to be brought
out, and | commend the Chair for having this
hearing so that they can be put out, can all be
brought before us so that we can address those
i ssues that are there. Now, you talk about a
long waiting list for charter schools, that’'s
because | think all parents want the best for
their children, and when they see the
opportunity to have a smaller class size, to
have an extended day, to have wrap around
services, to have a bus pick their children up

after the extended day and bring them home, and
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to have all other kinds of additional support,
that’s sonething that many parents woul d want.
So until we get significant results in the
performance whi ch has not been denonstrated,
peopl e are going to want to do the best they
can for their children. So | want to put that
one. And in terms of teacher evaluation, if we
all agree that testing is inmportant and we
understand that that’s only a portion of
t eacher evaluation, we need to make sure that
as your model can tal k about noving away from
havi ng such a | arge percentage of teacher
eval uati ons based on testing, that that needs
to be given to the conmmunity public school as
well so that charters don't have the advantage
of saying, “Okay, we only have to do 20 percent
rather than 40 percent.” So if it’s good enough
for the charter schools, we need to | ook at
having it exist in the public schools as well.
Thank you. Oh, and one other thing. | certainly
have to agree with the Chair. For me, this is
an instance of once again black children in
this instance being seen as a comodity and

bei ng seen as a way to make noney. We know t hat
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back in the 1700 s/1600's Wall Street was where
t hat comodity was exchanged and the sl ave
auction was right there. Here’'s another
i nstance because charter schools are--thank
you--proliferating in the black and Latino |ow
income areas. So it’s an opportunity under the
gui se of saying that we want to help students
do well, under the banner, | won’'t say the
gui se, under the banner of saying we want to
i mprove student results, that people are making
mllions and that they’re having organizations
and institutions established that are al so
maki ng mllions through the contracts that they
get. So | echo what the chairman has sai d.
Thank you.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you.
Counci |l Member Treyger?

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Thank you.
M. Joerss, right? M. Joerss, would you
consi der--do you feel that building a home
requires critical thinking?

ERI K JOERSS: Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Do you think

that building a hone is sonething that
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exenmplifies a career readiness and career
bui I ding skill?

ERI K JOERSS: For a specific career,
certainly.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Ri ght. So
t he Departnment of Education was trying to | abel
a school |ike Grady Hi gh School ineffective
based on the nmeasures that they were inposing
on the school, and many of those, nost of those
children are special needs kids under the
DOE' s, you know, prism but they were buil ding
a honme and they were building car engines. |
ask you, sir, and respectfully |I can’'t, can

you--woul d you know where to begin to build a

car engine or to build a hone? | nean, | ask
you respectfully. | would not know where to
begi n.

ERIK JOERSS: My wife does all the
construction in our famly.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: Ri ght. So
understand that | take issue with sonetines
your organization’s descriptions of our
district schools. When you say that they’' re

failing or when the DOE said that they were
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failing, | take issue, because this goes to the
heart of this debate. \What we define as
progress and success and what we define as
failure. The children in Grady Hi gh School to
me exhibit skills that both you and | don’t
have. They exhibit skills that to me are
extraordi nary, but they were being neasured
under a systemin nmy opinion that was really
designed for themto fail and they were being
unfairly | abeled as special needs, when in ny
opi nion they have talents that our system never
brought out of them and | believe that there
is an industry built upon this perpetuation of
failure and that is what we’'re seeing continued
with the DOE. | will never criticize any
educat or whether in the charter school or
public school about being innovative, but
i nnovation should not have any boundari es.
There are amazing things that we did in ny
public school that | think we’'d |ove to share
with all schools regardless of what title. But
to me, M. Chairman, we nmust get to the heart
of this debate of what we define as progress,

what we define as success, what we define--you
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know there were some successful CEOs that were
hi gh school drop outs. There was sonme
successful people that never actually finished
school. | have to say that. Are they failures?
But |’ m not suggesting any kid drop out. I'm
not suggesting anyone | eave the system but |
wi Il suggest that just because a kid doesn’t
pass a test doesn’t make thema failure. It
doesn’t make the system a failure, because |
will say that many of the educators had no part
in designing those exams. As a matter of fact,
let’s go in--let’s discuss Common Core, because
| was a teacher that had to inplenment Conmon
Core. | had to inmplement Common Core to ny
instruction to a final assessnment that was
desi gned pre-Commn Core. The Regents for
Gl obal History was not aligned with Conmon
Core, but we were forced to align our |esson
plans with Common Core. So we're basically
preparing our kids for an exam they have no
knowl edge of, they have no understandi ng of.
That, to nme, is what | mean by designing a
system where kids are going to fail. It’s a

self-fulfilling prophecy. So I share your
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passi on and your desire for innovation. | share
your desire for sharing those best practices,
but understand that at the heart of this debate
in my opinion is how we measure success, and
t hat principal of Grady, when she was told her
school was ineffective, she did sonmething very
cour ageous. She had security escort the Deputy
Chancel |l or out of her building, and |I appl aud
her. | applaud Principal Maione and she retired
because she said, “Mark, the system wore ne
down.” And when you speak to teachers, when you
speak to people--1 still speak to--ny wife's a
teacher. My famly are educators. | have
friends in education. It’s the system sir.
It’s not the kids. They love the kids. It’s the
system that is designed to perpetuate failure
that is wearing people down, and | would urge
you to work with us to turn that system around.
Thank you.

ERI K JOERSS: Thank you. We | ook
forward to doing so.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Okay. Thank you.
|’ mgoing to call the next panel. Thank you for

staying with us and for being here. Thank you
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for comng in. Our next panel is Stacy Gauthier
from Renai ssance Charter School, Yaacov Levy,
Renai ssance Charter School, Vashti Acosta from
Amber Charter School, and Rafig Kalam I d-Din
from Teaching Firm of America Professional Prep
Charter School. Okay. We do have nenos of
support for the legislation fromthe United
Federation of Teachers. That’'s for Intro Nunber
12. We have for the record a statenment fromthe
Manhattan Charter School Sonia Park, Executive
Director. For the record we have--okay, Rosalie
Fren [sp?], PHD, a statenment for the record.
Testimony from Jeffery Canada from Harl em
Chil dren Zone for the record, and a statenment
from Susanna de Jesus [sp?] for the record as
well. So I'd like to ask you all to please
rai se your right hand. |I’"m going to swear you
in. Do you swear to tell the truth, the whole
truth and nothing but the truth and to answer
Counci | Member questions honestly? Okay. Let’'s
start with Stacy. You want to start the other
way? Okay, we'll start over there.

RAFI Q KALAM | D- DI N: Thank you

Chai rman, good afternoon members of City
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Council and invited guests. My nane is Rafiq
Kalam 1 d-Din. 1’mthe founder, managi ng partner
and | ead teacher of TFOA, Professional Prep
Charter School in Bed-Stuy Brooklyn. You're
going to hear from many schools that are a part
of our coalition of comunity charter school s,
and part of what |I'’m here to do is sinply to
kind of frame that and franme the conversation
that we’'re going to have. You know, |’ve been
sitting her for a few hours listening to the
guestions and the tone and tune of the
conversati on about what a few people aren’t
doing well, and we want hopefully to be the
agents, which is the reason why we cane
t oget her as part of this coalition, to be the
agents of a positive conversation, a
constructive conversation to tal k about the
t hi ngs that many of our schools, our public
schools are doing well and how we are comm tted
to this work. I, nyself, am a beneficiary of
the civil rights movenent. | was struck by the
use of the words apartheid and segregation. To
be associated with the work that I’ve commtted

to doing and every single school |eader and
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change agent that | know who has opened a
charter school is also commtted to doing. And
so | hope that sonme of the testinmony that you
hear form us today helps to place that in a
different light in our commtnment. | think as
we | ook to change policies that in practices
that are clearly harnful to our children that
is all with an eye that we want to do what’s
best. 1’m going to leave it to people who are
far more experience and el oquent than | amto
talk specifically about some of our work, but I
do want to share a bit about this. You know,
we--the conversati on about conmpensati on and the
conversation about the structures of our
schools, we are | aboratories of innovation. Our
school itself, we're a teacher | ed school
We're one of the only ones in the state and
maybe the country where our goal is to increase
t he conmpensation for teachers. | teach ful
time. I"’ma third grade teacher. |1’ve had ny
students since first grade, and |’ m one of the
school | eaders and school founders. | think
that’s a good thing. | want to caution us not

to say that we shouldn’t criticize. | think as
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public servants our job is to make sure that
every dollar in the public trust is being used
in a way that is proper and right, particularly
when it comes to our nost at-risk students. But
| want to caution us about the conversation and
rhetoric that on one hand m ght say that the
mllions of dollars that are be given to be
used on behal f of sonme of our nost at-risk
students, that that should stop. Perhaps we
shoul d definitely have a conversation about how
they re used, but | think we should ask for
every single dollar that we can to serve sone
of our nmost at-risk students, and | think that
that’s inmportant for us to focus on and to
remenber. You know, |, you know, | know that nmny
school started just a few years ago and ny
sister Stacey and sister Vashti, people who are
pi oneers in this work have done some amazi ng
and incredible things and what you'll hear from
not just the panel members here but then the
ot her nmembers of our coalition, over 50 schools
by the way | should add. You will hear about
some of the amazing work that they’ve been

doing for years to shift the conversation not
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just about charter school, but about every
singl e public school and how we do this work.
So |’mgrateful for the opportunity to share a
bit of that and | ook forward to answering
guestions in a few mnutes. I’"mgoing to turn
it over to my coll eague, Stacy.

STACY GAUTHI ER: Hi, good afternoon,
Chai rman Dronmm and nmembers of the New York City
Council on Education. My name is Stacey
Gaut hier and I’m the principal of the
Renai ssance Charter School in Jackson Heights
Queens. Thank you for the opportunity to
provi de testimny today. | will not read ny
entire testinmony, although the begi nning part
does show the statistics of nmy school, but | do
want to highlight for the people who are here
today that we are a K-12 public charter school
We were founded in April 1992 by 15 teachers
and parents who were concerned about the future
of New York City, and we believed that a nodel
t hat val ues col | aboration, comunity and
humani sti c educati on would pronote student
academ c success, social/enotional well-Dbeing

and happi ness, and we think we’ve done a great
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job with that having gone through two renewal s
and getting ready to go through our third
renewal . We’'re also a conversion charter
school. We're fully unionized. We have nmenbers
fromthe CSA, and | want to thank the CSA for
com ng and giving a balanced testinmny on
behal f of community-based charter schools, the
UFT and DC 37. In ternms of our statistics, we
are predomnantly mnority school with over 80
percent of our students having mnority status,
71 percent receiving free or reduced |unch, 15
percent special education. Six percent of our
students are currently classified as English

| anguage |l earners with a nmuch | arger proportion
who have tested out, and I want to acknow edge
what was said earlier by one of the Council
Menbers about the need to continue to support

t hese students, because even though they test
out they are not fully English | anguage

| earners. We all know that. We also, | believe,
are the only charter school that has a
partnership with District 75 and they're
integrated into our general education program

We graduated our first cohort of students who
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are primarily students of autismin June of
2010. We service students in District 30 based
on state |law. That spans all the way from Long
Island city to East El mhurst and every
nei ghbor hood in between, and as many people
m ght know about that area of Queens, it’'s
characterized by rich econom c and ethnic
diversity and haunting econom c disparities.
What | would like to do is just highlight some
of the ways that Renaissance is living the
principles of our coalition and address sone of
t he questions that cane up, specifically
transparency and accountability. Renai ssance
has a constituency based Board of Trustees. W
have educators, community members, parent and
staff representatives all on our board. OQur
Board m nutes are up on our website. Anybody
can see them Our Board neetings are open.

We' re audited annually according to | aw by an
i ndependent accountant and that financi al
information is also posted up on our website.
In addition to rigorous authorization and
nonitoring by the Departnment of Ed where we

have to submt reports concerning our
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operations, fiscal governance, educati onal
conpliance to |l aw and all of our speci al
education information. We also have a policy
that commts to backfilling open seats, and
even though there was a big conversation around
over-the-counter students, | would welcone a
question to explain how we're able to do that.
Very quickly, we serve a group of at-risk
students and our popul ation includes students
in addition to high socioeconom ¢ need,
children of immgrant famlies, students with
incarcerated parents, students in foster care,
students with nental health issues, students
residing in shelters, and additionally LBGTQ
students who are also very nmuch at risk if they
don’t get the proper support which we believe
our school does. | want to also tal k about
col  aborati on because that was raised and one
of the things that we are commtted to is
col l aborating with other charter schools and
district schools. We're currently working with
two charter schools, WIldcat Norwall [sic]

Nei ghbor hood Charter School on a Carole M

White [sic] Physical Fitness Grant, and we are
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partnering with Truman Hi gh School in the Bronx
on a best practice dissem nation grant that was
menti oned before. I"’mreally delighted to
actually be here because we' d also |like to ask
alittle help and support fromthe Council to
make some of the things that we want to do a
little bit easier. |I’ve had these conversations
with Council Menmber Dromm and he’s been very
supportive. Charter schools should be hubs of
community involvement and partnerships, and
someti mes because of the system set up, that
doesn’t al ways happen, and we want to be able
to do that. We consider ourselves a part of the
comunity and its very, very inportant for us
to be able to have the community be part of our
school. And finally, | want to just say that we
val ue autonony in the public trust and we
believe that that autonony allows us to pronote
i nnovation, and with that, though, it’s very
important to talk about that public trust piece
and we acknowl edge what you' re saying. W
support the bill that’s being put forward by

t he Council and we hope to be able to work with

you going forward to show a different face to
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charter schools, and ny goal if we |eave today
is that people will see that there’'s a group of
us doing exactly what the Charter School Act
intended for us to do. Thank you very mnuch.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. Next?
YAACOV LEVY: Good afternoon,
Counci|l Member Dronm M name is Yaacov Levy.
|’ ma teacher at the Renaissance Charter
School . | teach chem stry. |I’mhere really
because |1’ve heard a | ot of very negative
t hi ngs about charter schools, and honestly, if
those things are true then it’'s terrible, but
that’s not the school that | work at, and I
think that we all get painted with the sane
brush. The Renai ssance Charter School, as Stacy
sai d, besides for the fact that, you know,
everything that this bill put forward, we’ve
done that. We’'ve done that for years, all our
enrol |l ment data, everything that Stacy said.
have cl asses where 40--1 have a chem stry cl ass
where 40 percent of the students are | EPs.
co-teach with other teachers. | have students
in my class who hardly speak English and it’s a

struggl e constantly. Our charter school is
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serving the needs of the comunity. And | just
wanted to say that the--1"ve heard a |lot. Sone
Counci | Menmbers were saying where’'s the
i nnovation in charter schools? | can’'t speak
for all charter schools, but |I can speak for
m ne. Our charter school, we have a trenendous
amount of autonony given to the school, which
the Principal Stacy has allowed to filter down
to the teachers. | think in the new UFT
contract there’ s a professional devel opment
time given in once a week, | don’t know the
full details of it, for the teachers just to
kind of talk to each other built into their
school day about their classes. My school has
done that for years. Every single Wednesday for
two hours | sit with four other science
teachers and we just sit and tal k about our
cl asses and what we could do to inprove and
what’s not going well and what is going well.
That’s innovation that was taken right out of
t he handbook. That’'s something that we’ ve been
doi ng. Teacher autononmy in my school --1 was
hired not by the principal, | was hired by

ot her teachers. | gave a nodel |esson and from
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four other science teachers, and |I’ve sat in on
t he nodel | essons of other science teachers.
The autonony that charter schools are given
does in many, many instances directly cause
i nnovation, innovation for the greater good of
schools. We're all being painted with the sanme
brush, and small independent charter schools
are not the same as huge congl omeration charter
school s, which | know nothing of, but that is
not us. Council Member, thank you very nuch
for your tine.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. And
next, please?

VASHTI ACOSTA: Thank you, Chair
Dronm and Education Comm ttee for having this
i nportant hearing today, and | appreciate the
opportunity to testify. My name is Doctor
Vashti Acosta. |'’mthe head of school and
Princi pal of Amber Charter School in East
Harl em and today | want to highlight one of
the nmost inportant aspects of Amber, our deep
community engagenent work. Anmber was founded by
a communi ty-based organi zation, the Community

Associ ati on of Progressive Dom nicans. The
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organi zation made it possible in the year 2000
for Amber to open its doors and serve children
and famlies. This organization continues to
support the work Amber does in a variety of
ways. In the past 14 years, the Executive
Director has sat at Amber’s Board of Trustees.
It has sponsored after school prograns,

provi ded mental health services to children
famly and staff, has provided health

i nformati on, advocated for funding and been a
steady and dependabl e partner in everything
Amber does to serve its students and famlies.
But Anber has al so had a | ong standing
relationship with the Departnment of Education’s
Chil dren First Network Nine, which was |ed
until | ast year by Doctor Deborah Lam [sp?] and
Doct or Mack McDonal d. CFN9 served over 22
district schools and Anber Charter School. As
the only charter school in the network, we
benefitted fromthis partnership by availing
oursel ves of the professional devel opnent

provi ded as well as the know edge and
experience of the | eadership. Through this

partnershi p, Amber was able to secure over siX
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mllion dollars in federal funding to provide
to the district schools in CFN9, and that
fundi ng gave them professi onal devel opment in

t eaching American history and strengthening

| eadership. | believe the partnership Anmber had
with CFN9 has been incredibly enriching and
beneficial for both Amber and the district
school s, and we believe that this model can be
easily replicated throughout the city. Another
exanmpl e of creating comunities that are |
founded and am currently the convener of the
Latino Charter Leaders Round Table. This is a
group of Latino Charter Leaders that support
each other, work collaboratively, and seek to

i npact the charter nmovement so that it benefits
all children. Community engaged charter school s
make a commtment to the student and the famly
when they accept theminto the school. The
comm tnment is deep and lasting. It is a

comm tment we hold as a sacred bond, and this
is why Amber Charter School joined the
Coalition of Community Charter Schools, because
our actions reflect the statement of principles

held by the coalition. We are commtted to
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provi ding high quality education to students
who reflect our conmrunities and nei ghborhoods.
We believe that parent and community engagenment
is essential to student success. We seek out
opportunities to collaborate. We al so believe
that all students and fam lies have the right
of choice in education. Anmber is a conmmunity
charter school that is deeply commtted to not
just the famlies we serve, but the conmmunity
in which we work, East Harlem Thank you for
this opportunity.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Wl | thank you
very much. Thank you all for com ng in and
t hank you also for your patience in terms of
waiting to give testinmony today. | really
definitely appreciate that. And | appreciate
and hear the message fromthe Coalition of
Community Charter Schools as well. Stacy is, as
t he Renai ssance is in nmy District. We do have a
very good relationship and it may be shocking
to some people in the audi ence today, but |
recently wrote a letter of support for their
preschool application for the UPK, because | do

believe and | said when we started the hearing




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 202
that the traditional or the original nmessage,
the original m ssion of charter schools is to
provi de innovation and creative ideas to |ead
the way on some of these things, and | do
continue to believe that that is good. By the
way, these were ideas put forward by the Al bert
Schenker [sp?], okay? And | have to tell you
that | am a dedicated unionist. It’s right in
my bio if you go to ny website you will see. So
bei ng a unionist and having been a UFT invol ved
person, | do enjoy the fact that the
Renai ssance Charter School is unionized, both
at the aid, the teacher and the Adm nistration
|l evel. Let nme just tell you al little bit why
and it relates to sonme of ny struggles and some
of my concerns around charter schools as well.
When | started teaching, we had no prep
peri ods. When | started, teaching we had to
spend lunch time with the students. \When |
started teaching, children and teachers had to
moni tor the hallways and the bathrooms. \When |
started teaching, we had no m d-wi nter recess.
Okay? when | started teaching, fortunately we

had tenure and when | canme out as an openly gay
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t eacher and the Departnent of Education tried
to renmove ne fromny position for being an
openly gay teacher, thank God the UFT was
there, and thank God the people who | aid down
their lives for nme so that | would have all of
t hose privileges were there. The fact that many
of the charter schools are not unionized is of
maj or concern to me as well, and those are the
reasons why |I'’m a dedi cated unionist. So | want
peopl e to understand and to know that as well.
Yes?

VASHTI ACOSTA: Anber Charter Schoo
was unionized since its inception.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Very good. Okay.
So we have two unionized- -

RAFI Q KALAM I D-DIN:  But my schoo

is not, and | would just say that that’'s not

the only way for us to ensure. | think ours is
a teacher led school. I"ma teacher. | teach
full time. | think it’s inmportant for us all to
have per--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Sir, there are many teachers who were summarily

filed sinply for being gay.
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RAFI Q KALAM I D-DIN: And |’ m -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
They canme right in--

RAFI Q KALAM | D- DI N: There’ s no
doubt about that, just |like that there were
t eachers who were renoved and repl aced and
mar gi nal i zed because they were black or they
wer e Lati no.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Ri ght. So the
uni on struggle is a very inmportant struggle.
The | abor struggle is a very inportant
struggle. As a matter of fact, that struggle is
taught in the Renai ssance Charter School. The
struggle of the civil rights struggles are
taught in the Renai ssance Charter School. 1’ ve
wi t nessed that. The LGBT struggle is taught
there as well. So | believe that they' re all
i nterconnect ed.

VASHTI ACOSTA: | also need to
appl aud the new contract that the UFT just
signed where they were giving the opportunity
for schools to have the slim/[sic] which is the
one that we have, and so |I think that’'s again

evi dence of how the charter school has given
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new practices, best practices, new innovation
that can be used in the district schools.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM There was
actually, and I will say that | agree. There
was actually always in the UFT contract a
provi sion for school -based options. And so this
is an extension of an idea that the UFT put
forth, but met resistance with the DOE many
years ago on the school -based options, and net
resistance from principals as well. And so it
was the UFT that put forth many of these ideas
in the school -based option conponent that’s
currently in the |onger contract as well.

STACY GAUTHIER: And | just wanted
to add because there was a question about
t eacher evaluation. While Renaissance is a
conversion school, we are work--and we have the
full UFT contract. We’'ve been working for quite
some time and we’ |l probably make sonme
addi ti onal changes on nodifying the teacher
eval uation plan. | think we're going to have a
plan that’s a nmodel plan. |I’m not sure if that
can be translated into the DOE in any way, but

| think that we address many of the concerns
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t hat peopl e have about that plan. So it
certainly is doable in the charter level, and
we al so have a modified CSA contract that hel ps
to support and fit what our community needs and
want s.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM  So from what
|”ve seen also, Stacy, in the Renaissance is
sonmet hi ng that the Chancell or has been
hi ghlighting a ot of lately which is the word
col l aboration, and | believe that, you know,
when | went to school, the tri--they use to use
the exanple of a triangle where the child was
at the top and the teacher and the parents, the
Adm ni stration were at the bottom and that is
exempl ary. There's good exanples of that in
t he Renai ssance Charter School, and I'’mglad to
see that the Chancellor is using that nodel as
well. So | agree with you on that. | want to
ask you a couple of questions because | think
it’s inmportant that we distinguish between what
you're doing and what sonme other charter
schools are doing. Are you as outraged as | am

that children have to wear orange shirts?
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STACY GAUTHI ER: Let nme just say
that it’s certainly not a discipline plan that
we woul d use at Renai ssance.

YAACOV LEVY: It wouldn't fly.

STACY GAUTHIER: He said it wouldn't
fly. I't would not fly. It’s not our culture.
That’s not how we believe students grow. W
think it’s our job to nurture our students and
nost certainly we have discipline issues and
probl ems, but we come together as a conmunity
and our practices are nore restorative than
punitive.

CHAI RPERSON DROVM So you use a
restorative approach to discipline rather than
sending children to their seat and wal ki ng
around school silently wearing orange shirts,
etcetera, so forth and so on.

STACY GAUTHI ER: Now you know
nobody’s silent at Renai ssance. You wal k
t hrough the hal | ways- -

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt [ i nterposing] |
know t hat very much so. And you know, as a
t eacher when | would go into classroons, the

classroom could be very noisy, kids could be

207
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noving all around, but if they were nmoving with

pur pose and they were doing sonething

constructive in the classroomit was fine. It

was good. Sal aries, are your salaries

as the DOE?

t he sanme

STACY GUATHI ER: Yes. So the salary

package that | have is a CSA salary schedul e.

So actually, you had to call my Director of

Operations. | make 143,782 dollars, but I'm

also entitled to a performance bonus,

which is

simlar to the DOE, and that’'s based on the

conpletion of charter goals. And so if we

attain charter goals | can get a performance

bonus up to 25,000 dollars. One thing

I will

add, though, that | think is a differentiating

factor between sone of my charter coll eagues is

| amin the TRS pension. So if you | ook at

package, | think some of ny coll eagues who

maybe make additional salaries to me are not

part of the pension plan, which is a fairly

generous package. So | think that adds roughly

25 percent to your salary. That’'s sonmet hing DOE

t eaches, but yes, |I’m not making half

dol | ars.

amllion
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CHAI RPERSON DROMM And that takes ne
back to the union struggle to fight for those
pensions as well, and that was a valid and
i mportant part of the struggle. So |
acknow edge that. Anmber Charter? |1’m sorry.

VASHTI ACOSTA: M salary is not
half a mllion, definitely. That’s not
happening. It’s 162, 000.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay. Did you
want to say sonething, sir?

RAFI Q KALAM I D-DIN:  Well, our
conpensation structure is not tied to the
uni on” s conpensati on structure. My base is 125.
We're eligible for bonuses that could be up to
80, 000 dollars, up to 100,000 dollars based on
our performance, not just of ny students and ny
cl assroom but of the entire school. Each one
of the teachers have a very simlar kind of
structure at the different |levels where it’'s
part base and it’s also part bonus.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Now, do you all
of your charter schools post policies,
di scipline policies, parent handbooks online?

STACY GAUTHI ER: Yes, our is online.
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RAFI Q KALAM I D-DI N: Yes, absolutely.
We're required to.

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt You' re required
to?

RAFI Q KALAM | D- DI N: We are

CHAI RPERSON DROMM By whont?

RAFI Q KALAM I D-DIN:  Well, our
aut hori zers.

VASHTI ACOSTA: Our authori zers.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM And who's your
aut hori zer?

RAFI Q KALAM ID-DIN: Mne's is DOE.

VASHTI ACOSTA: M ne i s SUNY.

STACY GAUTHI ER: And ours is the
DOCE.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Okay. And Stacy,
| wanted to forward you the opportunity because
you said you wanted to tal k about over-the-
counter students.

STACY GAUTHIER: | do. W have a
policy that’s been approved by the DOE and |
t hi nk, you know, being a school that’s been
around for a while, sonetines these things

don’t always get highlighted. What we have is
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rather than a wait |list, we have sonething
called a waiting pool. Students whose
applications come in before our lottery date
are clearly put into the lottery, but after
that there’ s not a nunmbered wait |ist, one
t hrough 100 or one, or in our case we have
2,500 students on a wait |list for 58 seats, and
we don’t do any kind of overly rigorous or
expensi ve advertising other than |let community
groups know we’re around and having open houses
and getting recognition in places like inside
schools for working well with special ed kids
so people come to us. Because we do a waiting
pool, and this is something that they actually
do in Massachusetts, so I think it’s a best
practice we could |look into. Students who cone
in after the fact, the so called over-the-
counter students, are able to put their
application in. It’s not a guarantee they’'re
going to get in, because especially in a
school, | think that was said before, that
doesn’t have a lot of attrition. We don’'t have
many of our students |eaving, but we do have a

somewhat nobil e popul ation. So soneti ne--we
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have a lot of famlies, so sonetinmes if the
famly noves to Texas we can | ose three
students in one time. Those students are able
to have a shot when the next lottery is pulled
for that seat, because they're in a pool.
They’ re not nunber 999, and you know t hat
you're never going to get to them | think it’s
not a perfect situation, but it’s certainly a
situation that gives them access and | wll
al so say that in terns of backfilling, we back
fill in every grade. We backfill even up to
seni or year in high school, and we took a
student who was an English | anguage | earner
with only two Regents, | think, right, two
Regents maybe in senior year. We consider it
somet hing that we have to do. It’s our m ssion
and it’s our mssion to support our kids and |
think it also really tests how strong your
programis to be able to do it, and I would
encourage my charter coll eagues to think about
doing it. | don’t know, Yaacov, if you want to
coment .

YAACOV LEVY: [|’ve had a student, |

guess backfilled into ny class. It’s hal fway
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t hrough the year, |ast year, maybe two years
ago. He spoke very, very, very m niml English,
but it’'s just something. It’'s just a matter of
course. It was never sonething that we woul dn’t
do. And lastly, while |I have the m crophone,
our school does have honel ess students.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Okay. Did you
want to say sonmething al so?

VASHTI ACOSTA: Nope.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Okay. So, right,
| ess said the better, right? |1’monly kidding.
| want to thank you all for comng in. | want
to particularly thank you for your transparency
because that’'s really what | wanted to be the
focus of this hearing. |I’'m di sappointed that
some of the nmedia has left, and that that
message may not get out, but you know, we need
to continue to have these discussions, and
just want to say extra thank you for coming in
and being so transparent. Thank you.

RAFI Q KALAM | D-DI N:  Thank you for
havi ng us. Thank you.

STACY GAUTHI ER: Thank you very

much.
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YAACOV LEVY: Thank you very nuch.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM  Qur next panel
will be Elba Montalvo fromthe Commttee for
Hi spanic Children, is she here? Okay, you'll
t ake, okay. Leonie Hainson from Cl ass Size
Matters, Paulina Davis, Advocates for Children
of New York, and Tayo Belle, New York Civil
Li berties Union. Okay, would please raise your
right hand? Do you swear or affirmto tell the
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the
truth and to respond honestly to Council Member
questions?

ABE BARRANCA: | do.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay, thank you
very much, and who'd like to start?

ABE BARRANCA: My nane’s Abe
Barranca. |I'’m a Policy Analyst for the
Comm ttee for Hispanic Children and Fam i es
speaki ng on behalf of the commttee and our
Presi dent El ba Montalvo. 1'd |ike to thank
Chair Dromm and the Comm ttee on Education for
letting us speak here today. For the |ast 33
years CHCF has served New York’s Latino

community combining direct service with policy
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work to anplify the voice of Latino famlies.
We’ ve partnered with the New York City public
schools for the |ast 24 years. QOur prograns
include after school programs, drop out
prevention, pregnancy prevention and
responsi bl e fatherhood. W have an early care
and education institute that trains childcare
provi ders and connects famlies to childcare
services. In 2007, we created the Latino
Coalition on Early Care and Education to
enhance the availability and culturally and
l'inguistically appropriate childcare in early
educati on progranms. CHCF supports the proposed
law by the City Council to amend the
Adm ni strative Code to require the DOE to
report academ c and demographic i nformation on
all co-located charters. Charters have
di sturbing | ow adm ssion and retention rates of
Engl i sh | anguage | earner students, a student
group that we spend a lot of tinme and effort to
speak on behalf of. In 2011/2012, ELL students
were just 5.9 percent of all New York City
charter students. It’s based on charter schoo

data. Conpared to 14.4 percent of all DOE
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public schools students during that period, but
we believe charters must be held accountable
for inequities in enrollment, that they nust
offer more bilingual and dual | anguage prograns
and their financial structures nust be
transparent and subject to public scrutiny. |
was very happy to hear on the |ast panel that

t hat group of charter schools has done a very
good job, it sounds like, with making their
deal i ngs transparent and enrolling good numbers
of special education and English | anguage

| earner students. We’'re not opposed to
charters, but we are concerned about a few

i ssues that come up in the charter schoo
debate. One, housing older and younger students
in the same site to accommodate charter schoo
co-locations creates a | ot of |ogistical
difficulties for school staff and for student
interactions. Forcing public school

adm ni strators to use fewer resources and cut
progranms to make room for charter schools has
previously been stated in the press and during
this hearing today. And charter’s apparent |ack

of outreach to parents of ELL students and
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imm grant famlies to informthem about
selection lotteries. There’ s--because there’s
so | ow percentages relative to the public
school s of English | anguage | earner students in
the charter schools, we suspect that inmm grant
communities are not getting the kind of
informati on they need to sign up for the
lotteries. We recommend that the city require
charters to afford all student groups,
particularly ELL students equal opportunity in
t he placement process through required
informati on distribution progranms in inmm grant
communi ties and that they be transparent in
financial disclosures, placenent decisions and
student retention records and report these data
to DOE. We reconmend the city set standards for
communi ty outreach and education regarding the
charter placement process or co-locations only
in schools with sufficient space and eval uate
progranms for all students at charters. If
students aren’'t performng well, the city
shoul d review and take steps as the DOE

representatives earlier said to put them on
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probation or foreclosure. Thank you for your

time.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Thank you.
Leoni e?

LEONI E HAI MSON: Thank you

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Leoni e, just turn
it on.

LEONI E HAI MSON:  Thank you, Chair
Dr onm and whoever else is left fromthe
comm ttee right now My nane is Leonie Hai nson.

| run an organization called Class Size

Matters. |’mgoing to do something a little bit
differently. 1’mgoing to talk about six
charter school nyths that |I think really need

di sputing because they are based on fal se
informati on. One, that charter schools are
public schools. If you | ook at state law, it’s
very clear that charter schools are exempt from
all other state and local |aws, rules,
regul ati ons or policies governing public

school. So right off the bat it says they are
not public schools. They are not subject to the
same | aws. They are not subject to denmocratic

governance, and | give specific exanpl es about
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why that matters. Then there’'s a nyth that’s
often di ssem nated which that charters educate
the same kids as public schools, and | think
we’ve had a | ot of testinmny today about this,
about how they don’t enroll their fair share of
hi gh need students, whether that be speci al
needs kids, English |anguage |earners or kids
in poverty, including homeless children. And if
you |l ook in fact at the spreadsheets that DOE
puts together for their progress report.
There’'s sonething called the econom ¢ need

i ndex that puts together the poverty level wth
t he number of honel ess kids and kids on public
assistance and it shows for exanple that the
Success Acadeny has about half the economi c
need of PS 149 where it’s being | ocated. And
this replicates across New York City and across
the country in fact. Then there’s another nmyth
that’s often spread by the charter schoo

| obby, which is that they are underfunded
conpared to public schools. Not only did the

| BO find that they get more public funding,
those in co-located charters significantly, but

the 1 BO anal ysis did not point out that charter
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school students are twice as likely to get free
bussing fromthe city. It’s 20 percent conpared
to nine percent for public schools students,
but they also didn’t point out that the charter
school tuition is not tied to fair student
funding, and the fact that they have fewer high
need students means they’ re even nore over
funded conpared to public schools. And when
researchers found that New York City charters
shoul d receive approximtely 2,500 dollars |ess
in pupil aid, because of the fact that they're
not tied at fair student funding than they
currently do. So they’ re overfunded by that
amount, and of course it’s all the disparities
are going to be much, nmuch worse in the future
because of the rise in the tuition but also the
provi sion of free space to all new and
expandi ng charters, which is going to be a huge
subsidy, and as the Daily News said, it’s going
to create a gold rush in New York City. There’'s
no other place in the country that offers such
generous privileges and preferences to charter
school while thousands of our kids continue to

sit in trailers and over-crowded classroom
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etcetera. Then charter schools get higher test
scores because of the superior quality of their
education. That’'s also a nyth. There’'s a | ot of
di spute as to whether they actually do better,
but we don’'t really know whether it’s because
of the increased funding, the socioeconom c and
denmogr aphi ¢ background of their students, or
their much hi gher suspension and attrition
rates, and | have some data that goes into
that. And | want to make the point that even
the SUNY charter institute pointed out that the
Success Academ es had practices in terns of
suspensi on and expul sion that were not in their
charters and that were basically illegal, and
they did that in their reauthorization report,
and | have the quote here, and yet they still
reaut hori zed three of them and allowed themto
expand. And that is--goes against what happened
in the 2010 charter revision |aw where it
specifically says that no charter should be
reaut hori zed or allowed to expand if it doesn’t
enroll and retain equal conparable nunmbers of
hi gh needs students. And that has never been

done, and | in fact ask that soneone fromthe
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Charter Office at SED a few weeks ago, have you
ever denied reauthorization or expansion to any
charter school for not neeting its retention
and enrol |l nment targets that were, you know, in
the | aw since 2010, and they said it has never
happened. SED nor SUNY has never refused to
reaut hori ze even though we know these attrition
numbers are very high, and even we know t hey do
not enroll conparable numbers of high needs
students. And then | go into the waiting |ist,
which I think is a very inportant point because
they use it all the time to show that they’re,
you know, to argue that there’s higher parental
demand. Well first of all, no one--there’s no
oversi ght over those waiting lists. W should
have a | ot of skepticism about them and nmany
kids may be on two or three different waiting
lists, but beyond that, DOE is very, very quiet
and hides its own waiting list whether it be
unzoned kids for schools or unzoned schools or
even for high school. And we did an an--and for
some reason the charter schools go around
trumpeting how big their waiting lists are, but

the DOE refused to reveal themeither to Cl ass
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Size Matters or to CECs, and when we |ast did
an analysis in 2010 we found that the
acceptance rates at schools that DOE were said
to fail were failing and were cl osing were much
| ower than the acceptance rates that Success
Acadeny brags about. So Success Acadeny brags
that they have a 20 percent acceptance rate. W
found that, for exanple, Monroe Acadeny in the
Bronx had an ei ght percent acceptance rate,
simlar to that of Harvard. And Acadeny of

Envi ronnent al Sci ences has a nine percent
acceptance rate, simlar to Yale. So if you
really | ooked at the numbers across the system
if you had transparent figures about waiting
lists at all the schools across the city

i ncluding the supposed failing schools that DOE
is trying to close, you would see that they're
accepting rates are much | ower. And for our
really high perform ng schools like MIIennium
or Barruke [sp?], they have acceptance rates of
1.6 to three percent, and yet none of those
schools are being allowed to expand or given
new space, whereas charters are going to be

giving a free ride going forward. The final
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myth that I want to go into is that the new | aw
provi des charter protections in the |aw and
sinmply equalizes their treatnment with public
schools. We know, of course, that that’'s not
true. There are schools in New York City, over-
crowded communities that have been waiting 20
years for a new school to be built. Thousands
of kids, as | said, hundreds of thousands of
kids are sitting in over-crowded cl assroons.
Thousands of kids, nmore than 7,000 which is
what the DOE clainms, but it’s probably nore
l'i ke 10,000 or 12,000 kids are sitting in
trailers, and we have thousands of kids in
waiting lists for kindergarten and yet none of
t hose schools are being allowed to expand. None
of those kids are being given free space, and
yet, any charter is going to be given free
space going forward, new or expanding charters.
And | think we really need a fiscal inmpact from
the DOE and fromthe State on this. It’s going
to likely cause us hundreds of mllions of
dollars going forward. It is absolutely
i nsupportable. It is only applying to New York

City where we have the nost over-crowded
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schools in the state and the npst over-crowded
real estate and it’s really conpletely unfair.
So thank you very nuch.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. Next
pl ease?

PAULI NA DAVIS: Hello. My nanme is
Paul ina Davis and |’ m representi ng Advocates
for Children of New York. | want to start by
t hanki ng you for the opportunity to discuss
charter school managenent and accountability
before the commttee. At Advocates for
Children, | focus on issues concerning access
to inequity in New York City charter school s.
For over four [sic] years, AFC has been worKking
to protect every child s right to |earn by
promoting access to the best education New York
can provide, especially for students of col or
and students from | ow i ncone backgrounds. We
see charter school accountability through the
| ens of the individual famlies who call our
hel pl i ne seeking assistance with probl ens at
charter schools. During this school year, we
have received over 100 calls from charter

school fam lies whose children were facing
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suspensi on or expul sion or not receiving much
needed speci al education supports, and who are
unable to resolve the problenms on their own.
There’s no question that the DOE needs to do
substantial work to reduce over-reliance on
suspensions in traditional public schools, but
at least in those schools there are uniform
procedures governi ng suspensi ons. The DOE' s
Chancellor’s regul ati ons describe in detail the
due process protections and suspension
procedures for traditional public schools, but
as the DOE even attested to today, in contrast,
each charter school has its own discipline code
whi ch governs the school system for suspendi ng
or expelling students. Sonetines, parents call
us because their children are facing suspension
or expul sion and they do not even know where to
find a copy of the charter school’s discipline
code. The three charter school authorizers
including the DOE are responsible for ensuring
that their respective charter schools have
di scipline policies that neet the requirements
of the law and we have asked themto uphold

this responsibility. However, recently we
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anal yzes over 100 New York City charter schoo
di sci pline policies and were alarmed by the
number of schools failing to provide basic due
process protections. For exanmple, when a
student is recommended for a suspension of nore
than five days at a traditional public school
an i ndependent DOE office automatically sends
the parent a wwitten notice with information
about the parent’s rights, and an off-site
hearing at which the school nust prove the
charges against the student before a neutral
hearing officer. By contrast, nmore than one
guarter of the charter school policies we
reviewed do not require the charter school to
provi de parent with wwitten notice of the
suspension, and nmore than one quarter failed to
mention the right to a hearing for long term
suspensi ons or expul sions. Also, sone charter
school discipline policies require the decision
maker at the hearing to be the principal or
anot her school staff menber already famliar
with the incident instead of a neutral finder
of fact. Moreover, nearly half of the charter

school policies we reviewed unlawfully
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aut hori ze suspensi ons or expul sions for being
absent or late to school. And one quarter of
these policies failed to include protections
requi red by federal |aw when suspendi ng
students with disabilities for nmore than 10
days. The DOE offers full tinme alternative
instruction to students suspended from
traditional public schools to keep students on
track academ cally during suspension.

Conpar atively, nmore than one-third of the
policies we reviewed failed to discuss the
student’s right to alternative instruction when
suspended from school. Most of the policies do
not require a charter school to provide nore

t han two hours of instruction per day to
students serving suspensions and we have seen
students m ss weeks or even nonths of full tinme
instruction as a result. We ask the Council to
work with the DOE to review all of the

di scipline policies of the charter schools it
aut hori zes and to direct schools to revise them
so that they conport with the | aw and protect
student’s rights. Discipline is just one area

in which charter school accountability and
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oversi ght needs to be inproved since 2010, as
al ready been nmentioned here. State | aw has
requi red charter schools to recruit, enroll
and retain students who receive free and
reduced price lunch, students with disabilities
and English | anguage | earners and nunbers that
are conparable to the traditional public
schools within their districts. We have yet to
see authorizers hold those schools accountabl e
t hat repeatedly fail to neet recruitment,
enrol Il ment and retention targets and that
failed to make good efforts to do so.

Therefore, AFC supports the Council’s bill
calling for reports to the DOE on student
demographic data for all co-located schools. W
ask that the data reported to the DOE for al
co-located schools include the total nunber of
suspensi ons and expul si ons each year

di saggregated by | ength of suspension, race,
gender, disability and English | anguage

| earners status as well as the total enroll nent
and attrition rates each year for students with
disabilities and English | anguage | earners

attendi ng the school. In addition, we
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specifically ask for the followi ng for co-
| ocated charter schools, the total nunbers of
heari ngs convened for |ong term suspensions and
expul si ons each year and the total nunber of
grievances filed against the charter school
relating to discipline and special education or
| anguage support services each year. Thank you
for the opportunity and I’d be happy to answer
any questions that you nmay have.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM  Wow, wel | thank
you. An awful |ot of information to di gest and
you spoke rather fast.

PAULI NA DAVIS: Sorry.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM No, that’s okay,
by my goodness the information that you
included in your report was very beneficial. |
want to | ook at the recomendati ons that you
have suggested in terns of the |egislation that
we’'re tal king about and | think that they would
be very valuable to us getting and
under st andi ng exactly what’'s going on in
charter schools as it relates to discipline
policies and how those discipline policies

relate to, as Leonie said and as the young nman
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from Coalition for Hispanic Fam lies said as
well, to our English | anguage |earners. You
know, | remenber wal king into a classroom one
time and there was a young boy who was |ike
second or third day in school, didn't speak a
word of English. He was from Col unmbi a, and he
was under the other teacher’'s desk scream ng
and yelling, “Ahh” and carrying on and the
ot her teacher didn’'t even really know what to
do. Fortunately when | walked in I could speak
alittle bit of Spanish, and I got him out,
brought him out from under the desk. Had
sonmebody who didn’t understand that type of
behavi or wal ked in and saw that, it probably
woul d have been al nost a suspendabl e of f ense,
or according to sone of the policies that we
heard about in some of these charter schools as
wel | woul d have al so have been suspendabl e
of fense for talking back to the teacher, for
not follow ng orders, for being insubordinate,
whi ch has been in sonme of the discipline codes
that 1’ve seen as well, except there’s--and
really it boils down to is often times their

ability to be able to understand what it is




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 232

that they’'re being told to do. So I want to
| ook at those policies. Did you state, Paulina,
t hat - - Paul i na, excuse me. I’msorry. | have to
make sure that | say it right. | was a teacher
That the discipline policies--that the
suspensions are given to those for excessive
absences and | ateness in sone charter school s?
PAULI NA DAVIS: We have found
policies and also we have represented a famly
on a case where in the--one of the infractions
t hat the student was being recommended for
expul sion was related to absences. And--
CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] And
by the way, expulsion, is that an option that
t he public school system has?

PAULI NA DAVIS: No. So, expulsion

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] So
we can’'t expel people permanently fromthe
public school s?

PAULI NA DAVI S: For students who are
not 17, and if a student is a student with a
disability it’s not perm ssible for the

students to be expell ed.
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CHAI RPERSON DROMM So we have to
keep them no matter what. Wow. Charter schools
can just get rid of them That’'s probably why
when | was teaching every October, the end of
Oct ober, begi nning of November I’d | ook around
the classroom |I’'d cone in one day and there
was sitting sonebody new and they were either
froma charter school or froma Catholic
school, and | said, “Oh, boy, where did you
come from?” And inevitably it was one of those
two situations. But in school suspensions, do
t hey occur in the charter school s?

PAULI NA DAVI S: Some charter schools
have policies that allow for in-schoo
suspension. Some don’t. So again, charter
school s have the autonony to create their
di sci pline policies and that dictates.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM And so the | evel
of instruction in the schools where they do in-
school or even outside of school, do they have
any--is any work given to the students if there
are outside of school suspensions?

PAULI NA DAVI S: So again, the |aw

does require charter schools to provide
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alternate instruction to suspend its students.
In New York City, traditional public schoo
students have access to a full-time, full day
of instruction even when they’'re serving
suspensi on. \What we’ve seen in some of the
policies that we reviewed is that a nunber of
policies either don't address alternative
instruction at all or they only provide for two
hours of alternate instruction for those
students who are suspended and we’ ve seen that
in cases as well.

LEONI E HAI MSON: Can | make a
comment ?

CHAI RPERSON DROWMM yes.

LEONI E HAI MSON: |’ve heard from
many former charter school parents that their
kids as a disciplinary matter are sent to roons
where they have to sit for hours and they're
not allowed to pick up a book or do anything,
but they have to sit in silence for hours, and
that is extremely abusive in my mnd. The other
t hi ng about expulsions | wanted to say, this
report that SUNY did inplied that Success

Acadeny had excessive expul sions or ones that




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 235

did not accord with their charter, and yet,
nowhere can you find the data on expul sions. It
is nowhere reported by the state or by anyone
else. So |l think it’s really inportant that if
we have a new bill, that we require the

expul sion data fromcharters for the very first
time to be reported to the public.

PAULI NA DAVIS: | just want to make
one nore quick point with regard to long term
suspensi on, short term suspension or expul sion.
OQur point is that charter school students are
still entitled to due process, and so just to
be clear, our point is that no student should
be renpoved from school unless those due process
protections have been followed and it’'s clear
t hat pursuant to the law, that’s something
that’ s all owabl e under the circunmstances.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM | mean, | know
you' re just learning of the pride dollar
situation at the Coney Island Charter School,
and by the way Beth Furtig [sp?] from WNYC has
tweeted out that--let me see if | got it here--
t hat the Executive Director of the Coney Island

Prep says that he’s proud of the school’s
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culture and it gets high marks from famlies
and he’s inviting me to cone see him So |
guess he’s proud of his orange shirts. But
woul d Advocates for Fam |ies have a position on
orange shirt wearing and due process?

PAULI NA DAVIS: | think--

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [ i nter posi ng]
Advocates for Children?

PAULI NA DAVIS: The research shows
t hat progressive approaches to discipline are
approaches that are effective and positive
approaches that address behavior. Those are the
things that are effective. What we know is that
when children are removed from the classroom or
when they’'re renoved from school they' re at the
education outcomes for those kids are disnal.
And so | don’t think that, you know, any
di scipline policy that doesn’'t take a
progressive approach to discipline and that
al i enates students or isolates themis going to
be an effective way to either address behavi or
and al so could be very damaging to the student
and effect their attitude towards school and

| earning, and that’s something that we don’t
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want to see happen for any kid regardl ess of
what school they attend.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM |t ostracizes
them too. Leonie, can | just ask you a little
bit? Maybe you're famliar with the situation
at M ckey Mantle School ?

LEONI E HAI MSON: Ri ght .

CHAI RPERSON DROMM And at PS 497

LEONI E HAI MSON: Ri ght .

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Can you just give
me a little description about what happened
there in terms of the pushing into that
bui | di ng?

LEONI E HAI MSON:  Well, | think, you
know, Noah’s [sic] going to be speaking soon
and he’s nmore of an expert on that, but
progressively they’ ve | ost nore and nore of
their roonms, both PS 149 and the M ckey Mantl e
School . They have |l ost art rooms, nmusic roons,
science roonms. Their class sizes have gotten
| arger. They're--I think that, you know, |’ ve
seen photographs of themin such crowded
conditions that I'’m sure that it violates the

bui l ding code, and what’s really terrible is
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when nore and nore kids are going to be forced
to leave. | nmean, it’s not going to happen now
because they’'ve actually | eased a whole
separate parochial school for Success Acadeny,
whi ch by the way, the DOE has not yet admtted
how nuch they’'re paying for the three | eases or
t he renovations, and that’s something that |
t hi nk should be transparent. We need to know
t hose costs, but it’s a story that recurs
t hroughout the city that as charters nove in
and they expand, the kids in those public
school s get squeezed and cl ass sizes go up, and
they | ose the roons they need for their special
services for art, nusic and science, none of
which is properly incorporated in the Blue Book
formula. So, you know, | think that this is
somet hing. | agree with Council Menmber WIIlians
t hat when the new Adm nistration came in, they
shoul d have put a noratoriumon all the co-
| ocations, including the ones that had been
previously voted on, and sinply said we are
wai ting until our Blue Book task force is done
and gives us nore realistic and accurate

numbers on utilization and then we will see
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whet her we will go forward with any of them or
not. And then I’ m sure the Charter School | obby
woul d have shouted, you know, bloody hell, but
at least it would have been seen as based on
princi pal and equitable across the board. As it
was, they allowed nost of the co-locations to
go through and nost of those actually pushed
t he buil ding above 100 percent according to the
out dat ed Bl ue Book fornmula. So it really made
no sense, and |I’m very discouraged with this
adm nistration. |’mvery discouraged with their
testimony today because it seens |ike they' re
still rationalizing the sane old bad practices
t hat went before, and | thought we were going
to get a new fresh ook at all of this, and so
far it really doesn’'t seemto have happened.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Do you have a
figure on class size in charter school s?

LEONI E HAI MSON:  Bruce Baker, who |
know is invited to testify today has
conparative figures on class size they show on
average. Charter schools in New York City do

offer significantly smaller classes on average
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and another thing that alnost all charters do
is that they have two teachers per classroom

CHAI RPERSON DROMM  Two?

LEONI E HAIl MSON: Two teachers per
cl ass.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM  Very
interesting. Okay. Thank you, and |I want to
t hank the panel for comng up. |I’mgoing to ask
for our next panel to come up. It’s Noah
Got baum from Menmber of CEC3, Richard White from
Parents from PS149 the Sojourner Truth School,
Valerie Wlliams from District 75 CEC, Karen
Sprowal from PS 75, Victoria Wlliams fromthe
M d- Manhattan Adult Learning Center, and Tayo
Belle from New York Civil Liberties Union. So
Sergeant, if we could get a couple of nore
chairs, | would appreciate it. Yeah, he Il give
it to us. We also have testinmony here from
Est her Champro [sp?] whose daughter attends the
M ckey Mantl e School, for the record. So where
should we start.

NOAH GOTBAUM | think M. White has

to go back.
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Okay, so whoever
has to go back, please. | do want to apol ogi ze
to our parents, | need to take time in sonme of
t hese hearings to extract as information as |
can out of the DOE, and that’'s why we put them
first because that’s who has to be accountable
to me. So | do apol ogize and thank you for
waiting so patiently.

RI CHARD WHI TE: Thank you and good
nor ni ng.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM ©Oh, | have to
swear you in. Would you please raise your
ri ght hand? And, do you swear or affirmto
tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but
the truth in your testinony before this
commi ttee and to respond honestly to Council
Member questions?

UNKNOWN: | do.

UNKNOWN: | do.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you. And
woul d you begin by identifying yourself?

RI CHARD WHI TE: Good norni ng, again.
My nanme is Richard M VWhite, father of Ma

Faith Jennings White, a sixth grade 11-year-old




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 242
student in Ms. Simms [sp?] class at the
Soj ourner Truth PSMS 149 school. While ny
testimony is conprised of several different
adverse effects that the co-location and
expansi on of charter schools inside public
school buildings, today |I talk about sonme of
the primary |l osses nmy child and many ot her
students conpletely |lost as a direct result of
charter co-locations. Dance, ny child used to
be enrolled in dance cl asses, but the cl asses
no | onger exist for any students. Miusic, ny
child was enrolled in nusic classes, but the
class no | onger exists for any students.
Cooking, my child was enrolled in cooking, but
it too no longer exists. Horticulture, chess,
checkers and many other arts and sciences have
been lost. My child, as is true for too many of
our children goes to school for Comon Core
only. Common Core has its place in today’s
public school. However, arts education has | ong
been recogni zed by experts around the world as
having a tremendously positive influence on
children and their academ c attai nnment,

soci al / enoti onal devel opnent and future
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empl oyment. The skills learned fromarts
education are more rel evant today than ever. As
New York City's econony is increasingly focused
on industries that value creativity, innovation
and problem solving. Despite these widely
acknow edged benefits as well as clearly
establi shed mandates in New York State
Education Law requiring that students in grades
seven through 12 receive core arts instruction
taught by certified teachers. The provision of
arts education in New York City public schools
has become both inequitable and underfunded.

I nstruction in visual arts, nmusic, dance and
t heater has been weakened and are discontinued
in too many of our traditional public schools
by a decade or nore of disinvestnent,
di sincentives, and I amtestifying today on
behal f of my child, all children and parents
who share in the hopes that these germane tools
be restored to our traditional public schools
and fully recognize the undi sputed val ue of
conprehensive arts education. Thank you

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you very

much. Next please? Just before you |eave, if
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you' re going to run because | understand. |'m
very moved by your testinony. | was | ooking

t hrough the pages here because we have ot her
testimony from somebody else at PS 149. How
many schools are co-located into that building?

Rl CHARD WHI TE: Four .

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Four school s co-
| ocated in that building. And then the other
parent who's here--

RI CHARD WHI TE: [interposing]
Correction, three.

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt Three co-
| ocations.

NOAH GOTBAUM Three currently.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Okay. | just
wanted to be sure that it’s the same school
that | got this testinony on here, and | wl
have comments to make after the panel speaks,
but I know you have to run to get your child.
Thank you very nuch for being here with us and
for being so patient.

TAYO BELLE: Hello, my name is Tayo
Belle, and I’m an attorney and | egal fellow at

the New York Civil Liberties Union. We would
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like to thank you for the opportunity to
testify today on charter school management and
accountability, and | understand ny name was
called a few m nutes ago. |I'’msorry | stepped
out for a monment. The NYCLU s mi ssion is to
defend and pronmote the fundanental - -

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt [ i nterposi ng] Can
you just speak into the mc a little nore?
It’s a little hard to hear.

TAYO BELLE: Sure, I’m sorry. The
NYCLU, the New York State affiliate of the
American Civil Liberties Union, |I’m here
representing our organization. Our m ssion is
to defend and pronmote the fundament al
principles, rights and values in the Bill of
Ri ghts and the Constitution of the State of New
Yor k. Through our youth and student’s rights
program the NYCLU advocates for positive
di sci pline systens that reduce classroom
removal s, suspensions, expulsions and schoo
based arrests. Wth over 70,000 students, New
York City' s charter schools are no | onger an
alternative | aboratory, but a serious

educational provider. In fact, taken al one,
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t hey represent the second | argest school
district in New York State. As such, it is nore
i mportant than ever to ensure that children
attendi ng charters receive all the rights,
protections, and benefits guaranteed to them
under the New York State Constitution and New
York Education |laws. As charter school
enrol Il ment has continued to grow, so has the
number of student suspensions, classroom
removal s, in school suspensions and expul sions
fromcharter schools. Of particular concern to
our work are the exclusions of students of
color and those with disabilities. Yet, the
students attending charter schools who are
facing exclusion are deni ed basic due process
protections provided under state | aw because
many of the schools claimthey are exenpt from
the requirenments of those laws. Though it is
true the charters are granted flexibility for
many state requirenments, it is clear fromthe
letter of the |law that they are not inmune from
laws that inplicate health assessnents and nost
importantly civil rights. We submt to you

today the | aws governing due process procedures
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for student discipline fall under the category
of civil rights |laws which charters nmust follow
in addition to those | aws which protect against
discrimnation. In light of these concerns, we
have two specific recomendati ons for the
council today. One, first, the council should
use its oversight authority to ensure charter
school comply with the m ni num due process
protections in disciplinary matters afforded to
every other public school student in New York
State, and two, the council should amend the
Student Safety Act to require charter schools
to report data on student discipline in the
same manner that the DOE schools are required
to report, and this also includes amendi ng the
act further to include data on classroom
rempval s, in-school suspensions and expul sions.
|’ mgoing to focus on recomrendati on number one
t oday because of ny short time, the issue of
ensuring charter school conpliance with m ni mum
due process protections under New York State
| aw. The remai nder of our recommendations can
be found in my witten testinmny. The NYCLU

beli eves that the denial of due process
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protections to charter school students is a
violation of the state |aw governing student

di sci pline for public school students, New York
Education Law 3214. |If you just permt ne one
mnute I will wap up. The statute which
applies to all public schools states that
students facing suspension are entitled to
certain rights including notice of the
suspensi on, informal conference with the
principal or an inmpartial hearing and
alternative instruction while suspended.
Charter schools and their attorneys as we’'ve
experienced with working with them on behal f of
students we represent claimthat they’ re exenpt
fromthese requirenments, which apply, like
said, to all public school students in the
state of New York because of a anmbiguity in the
drafting. We disagree with their analysis. It
woul d be inconsistent with the express

| egi slative intent of the Charter Schools Act
to allow charters to avoid follow ng civil
rights law written to protect the due process
interest of public school students especially

when doing so would deny students the nost
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basi c of due process rights such as notice of
t heir suspension, |ong supported by US Suprene
Court President [sic]. By way of conparison,
students attending DOE schools are entitled to
a strict list of due process procedures found
in Chancellor’s regulation A443, a regul ation
that is nearly 70 pages |ong when they are
facing an exclusion. Due process is in sone
ways, the foundation of all constitutiona
guarantees. It is the prom se that your rights
cannot be limted or renoved wi thout adherence
to protect the procedures. Accountability in
any public education systemis meaningless if
even the nost basic of our core principles as a
soci ety such as due process for all cannot be
achi eved. As such, we strongly urge the counci
to take a | eadership role in working in close
col l aboration with charter schools and the
aut hori zers such as the DOE to rectify this
i ssue for students facing exclusion. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. Noah?

NOAH GOTBAUM  Vallerie' s got to

pi ck up her daughter, so |I’'m going to--
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Okay, absolutely.

VALERI E W LLI AMS: Thank you so
much. My name is Valerie Wllians. | am a
member of District 75 CEC and a nother of a
speci al needs child that’s 12 years old. If ny
daughter were--if | were to ask her to be
attended to a charter school, she could not
just because she has special needs. She woul d
not receive an application because we |live on
the | ower east side of Manhattan, where they
don’t advertise because of the income majority
that is there. Wth that being said, we're
going to face the facts of the Departnent of
Education. We have a report that just came out
recently saying that the Departnment of
Education is the most racist school systemin
the country. We’'re beating out Alabama and
M ssi ssi ppi, okay? Secondly, we re also going
to go into the financial background of charter
school s, the National Federation of Charter
School s, the fact that Wal mart, the Walton
Foundation is backing charter schools. Al so,

the fact that the Governor, our Governor Cuono

250
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is financially backing charter schools. Were
is the DOE at in all of this? What is the DOE
saying in order for not only children with
speci al needs but also every other child that
has a | EP maybe because of a disability and
their speech, which gives thema |IEP, by the
way. We'll also turn around and say you wil
not attend that beautiful charter school that
is getting so nmuch renovation in every co-
| ocated building that it is disgusting. It took
my daughter’s school, which by the way is 94M
five years to get a elevator, five years. Grls
Prep came in and within three nmonths they had
an entirely renovated fl oor, new furniture and
everything. Now let’s go back to Eva Moskowitz.
We're really trying to have equality. W want
success. We also want to make sure that all of
our children have a fair education. That is
not being displayed. The DOE is not hol ding
their foot on the charter school’s necks. They
are not allowing themin any way, shape, form
or fashion to come up and do the same thing,
and |'’m going to focus on Eva, that Eva

Moskowi tz is doing. Because of what? Finances.
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If I have 500 dollars for the next five years
per child to go ahead and make i nprovenents in
their resources, don’t you think we would have
beauti ful schools as well in the public
education systen? Wouldn’t we al so be able to
afford resources for children with speci al
needs? Wuld they not also be able to have
speech therapy, OI, PT and ot her advantages
t hat they should have just because their
children. I’"mgoing to end right there because
| do have to go. Thank you for the opportunity.
CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you very

much. You have to go al so?

VALERI E W LLI AMS: I’"m so sorry.
CHAI RPERSON DROMM | thank you for
t he points that you nade. Obviously, | agree

with many if not mpst of what you had said.
|”ve seen some of the conditions that you' ve
described nmyself with nmy own eyes. | feel that
it is a matter of equity and justice and |
definitely appreciate you comng in and waiting
so long to testify. Thank you very, very mnuch.

VALERI E W LLI AMS: Thank you.
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM One ot her thing.
Thank you because it was not pointed out in
this hearing about the backers of some of these
corporatized charter schools. And when you talk
about Wal mart and we had hearings here in the
City Council, the |last session, about Wl mart
comng into the city, | got news for you
they’'re already here. They' re already here in
this city.

VALERI E W LLI AMS: Wow.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM They’ re al ready
here in this city. And Gates, and the whol e
situation with the Governor and what the
Governor did in the |ast budget, | definitely
appreciate your remarks in that regard as well.
Thank you. Sure, just speak into the mc so we
can get it on the record.

VALERI E W LLI AMS: May | just say,
800, 000 doll ars was donated by the Nationa

Federation of Charter Schools, in particularly-

NOAH GOTBAUM  [interposing] Charter

school supporters.
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VALERI E W LLI AMS: Eva Moskowit z,
and the Wal mart Conpany al so donated 168
mllion dollars. We need to understand where
t he backing is comng fromand what we' re up
agai nst when in reference to public schoo
versus the privatization of public schools and
the unfairness that’'s getting ready to happen
Al so, | ook at the values of the Walmart fam |y,
the way that they treat their enployees in
particularly, and do not forget and do not
think that that’s not going to trickle down
into the educati onal process. Thank you again
for your opportunity.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM And | don’t think
that they’'re comng into New York City for any
altruistic reason. | nean, they’'re making
busi ness deci si ons about why they’'re com ng in,
and part of being a hedge fund manager, who are
the other investors as well in sone of these
charter schools is making sure that the system
fails so that when it does fail what they have
can go up and can be, you know, take--make
profit off of what has failed. So thank you

very much for being here. Next, please?
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NOAH GOTBAUM  Thank you very much,
M . Chairman. Noah Gotbaum -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [interposing] Is
the d--is the DOE here? |Is there a
representative fromthe DOE?

NOAH GOTBAUM They’ re probably not
going to want to hear what | have to say.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Just one | ast
time, is there a representative here fromthe
DOE? So the DOE has left? Are you here?

[of f mi cC]

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM You’'re here to
represent the Chancellor?

[of f m c]

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM So there’s nobody
here? Now |I’ve already asked the Chancellor to
make sure that they have somebody here. This is
very, very di sappointing, especially when it
comes to hearing fromour parents. And | am
very upset about this. And |I'’m going to be
writing a letter again to the Chancellor to
demand that they have personnel here. This is
unacceptable. You better get sonmebody over

her e ASAP.
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NOAH GOTBAUM  Very unaccept abl e.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Noah?

NOAH GOTBAUM  No, no, thank you.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM | got caught up
in that.

NOAH GOTBAUM  No, | appreciate it,

M . Chairman.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM It just--it’s
outrageous- -

NOAH GOTBAUM [interposing] You re
expressing- -

CHAl RPERSON DROMM that this is
happeni ng again. | brought this up at the very
first hearing, that | want DOE people here. You
deserve this respect and the courtesy as this
commi ttee does as well.

NOAH GOTBAUM  Well, | thank you
very much. Noah Gotbaum 1|’m a public schoo
parent of three. Two of my children have |EPs,
one nore severe than the other. I’m also the
former President and the Vice President of
Community Education Council District Three. I'm
also the Chair of the Charter and Space

Pl anning Comm ttee. We have quite a bit of
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experience with charters and charter co-
| ocations in District Three which enconpasses
west and central Harlem and the Upper West
Side. We had the first charter in New York City
in our District. We had the first co-I|ocation.
We had the first Success Charter. W now have
13 charters, seven co-located, six of which are
Success Charters. So |'’m going to talk about ny
experience and our experience |argely based on
t he chain of Success, which they are the
| argest so that may be. I'’malso--I"mreally
very, very gratified you re holding this
hearing. I'mgratified as a parent. I’malso a
member of the CEC city wi de working group. It’s
a wor king group of alnost 90 nenbers of CEC
menbers throughout the city. We net. We net and
we wrote a letter to de Blasio before we came
in and we highlighted charter co-locations as
an issue. When a group of us nmet with
Chancel l or Farina, twice the Presidents at CECs
have met with Chancellor Farina, the nunber one
i ssue off the charts was charter co-|ocations.
Staten Island to Sound View [sic] in the Bronx,

Queens, Brooklyn, Manhattan, nunber one issue
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by far of parent |eaders representing 1.5
mllion public school parents. So Eva Moskowitz
may get 70,000 up in Albany, we're talKking
about a mllion and a half parents we
represent. The other reason |I'’mvery gratified
you' re having this is because there has been no
accountability. There has been no transparency.
And | want to give you a couple exanples of why
| say that, and then a couple of quick
recommendati ons. The DOE has failed m serably
in terms of any type of oversight. It is
supposed to be inplementing these EIS s. It has
basically skewed them conpletely towards the
charters.

UNKNOWN:  Yeah

NOAH GOTBAUM  The charter
aut hori zers, and now DOE's no | onger an
aut hori zer, SUNY and Regents, where are they?
Why are they not here? |If they are supposed to
be overseeing the charters in New York, why are
t hey not here? What they have done is |like a
drone m ssile. They authorize them They send
themto a particular district. In our case

because we have Harlemin our District and all
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t hese charters want to have Harlemin their
name, they come into District Three, they're
dropped down wi thout a | ocation, w thout any
gqualifications. So having this hearing is
critically important. | want to give you a
coupl e of quick exanples of what |I'mtalking
about | ack of accountability. Charters have to
do a marketing plan as part of their initial
charter, say they’'re reaching out to. And
again, 1’1l talk nmostly about Success. Eva
Moskowi t z when she set up her charters had to
by | aw because this was her preference, had to
outreach two ELLs to other types of kids in
need. Well, we did a little bit of foot work to
see this. She was marketing bel ow 96'" Street
in our district. She left out the |owest income
zip code in our district. And when we were told
after getting--1, personally, and |I didn't have
any kids who could have gone to the charter
because they were too old, “why are you sending
me so much stuff?” She was told, “You're
supposed to be marketing to ELLs.” Well she
said, “We don’'t have to do that. They can find

their own school.” When we asked SUNY, “Are you
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overseeing them? Are you |ooking at their

mar keti ng?” Which was in the plan, they said,
“Sorry.” \When Eva Moskowtiz went to change her
charter and when all charters go to change
their charters, they have to make a charter
amendment. They do it through SUNY, but they’'re
supposed to be a public hearing. Well, when she
went to change her charter to increase her
managenent fee and to rid herself of specia
needs designations for the lottery, so to get
preferences, because she got rid of those
preferences. The DOE held a hearing on behalf
of SUNY. Well, we said--we found out about it
two days before the hearing, and we said, “What
is this about?” And we got a seven line
description. This was for a major change in the
charter. And we called up SUNY and we said,
“SUNY, we need to know what this is about.
Okay? You're having a public hearing, can you
gi ve us--give us the neaning of this?” You
know what they said to us? “You have to FOL
[sic] for it.” So they' re telling us to file a
Freedom of Information Act request to find out

what the public hearing was about. I|Is that
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transparency? And I'Il give you one | ast
exanmpl e. One of the things that has to be
overseen is enroll ment, okay? The lottery is a
sham 1t’s a black box. So how do |I know this?
Well, they set up, Eva Moskowitz set up Upper
West Success in our district, the first
integrated, if you will, charter school. And
she did marketing for it, spent over a mllion
dol l ars, and supposedly had a waiting |ist of
1,600 kids for 188 spots. And we were told
this by SUNY. | got a piece of paper as
President of the CEC showing this information.
Well, turns out that she was only able to fill
164 of our 188 spots, even though she had 1, 600
people on this waiting list. So we said, “Can
you explain this to us? Either your demand is
phony, either you don’t have a waiting list of
1,600 or you're doing the nost incredible
screening |’ ve ever seen.” So we went to SUNY,
and we said, “SUNY, please explain this to us.”
SUNY said, “We can’t. It’s not our
responsibility. You have to go talk to their
Board.” So we sent a letter to the Board

sayi ng please explain your lottery. What came
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out of it? No response. We foiled three and a
hal f years ago for the information on the
|ottery. The DOE stopped sending us conpliance
letters. Bottomline is, there is no
accountability at the State |level and their
aut hori zers. There’s no accountability at the
DOE | evel. So what | would ask is the
following. In terms of the educational inpact
statements, they’'re phony. They're illegitimte
and they have been, but when | asked, when you
asked the DOE, “Do you go back and review your

educational inpact statements to see?” Because

they’'re all--they’re made up numbers. She said,
“Yes, we | ook at them” Well, they never
revised them So what happens is you'll get--we

have massive enroll ment in our public schools
and she is not getting nunbers in her charter
school, but the DOE doesn’t revise the space

pl ans. That has to be done. There has to be a
review of the EIS s. There has to be a review,
an open transparency on enrol |l ment. At

Moskowi tz’s only high school, if you | ook at
her schools the ones that have existed, she has

attrition rates of 60 and 70 percent. Next year
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she opens up her first high school. That class
that started with 87 kids is probably going to
have 20 or 25 tops. Seven out of ten, eight out
of ten kids are gone. That has to be | ooked at,
and some parents from Success will talk about
that, but the nunmbers at the same time the
enrol |l ment numbers have to be opened up. You
asked about 149 and 811, okay? 149 has 15
percent of their kids who are honmel ess. Harlem
Success One has zero. 149 has six self-
contai ned classes by itself of 350 kids. Eva
Moskowi t z had 6, 700 ki ds, has zero self-
cont ai ned cl asses over 22 schools. These are
not the same kids. And then we get information
and you' re looking for it on free and reduced
lunch, let’s delineate. Let’s delineate
bet ween speci al needs kids, not give sone
nebul ous information. If you go | ooking for
this information you can’'t get it. So |I'm
really gratified you re doing that. | want to
just end up by expressing to you some things
t hat teachers and parents have conme to nme
because they're afraid to speak out. They see

how power ful Success Charter is, and they are
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afraid. So for exanmple, in terns of teacher
attrition, that should be | ooked at. You’l
hear from a parent whose had three different
teachers for her third grade kid. Attrition
rates are 50, 60, 70 percent, and it’s not
publicized. It’s not seen. On terns of
operations in co-locations, our principals are
not able to inplement safety progranms because
Success won’t work with them The nurses, | got
a call froma head nurse | ast night saying,
“Woul d you pl ease express this?” What they' re
doing is they're medicating their kids. They're
not sending kids who are sick to the nurse and
they’'re putting all of our kids at risk.

They’ re not abiding by the regulations, and no
one’s looking intoit. And finally, matching
funds, there’s a matching funds policy. Not

i npl emented. No one knows where that noney
goes. And | would say too, also you're going to
hear from parents, but the parents of the kids
in these schools, they have nowhere to turn.
They have nowhere to turn. They' re intim dated
if they want to get out or if they want to say.

And this commttee, this city needs to be--
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stand up for them And I will--lastly, I would
finally say this, we’'re tal king about
col | aboration and sharing best practices, which
is an adm rabl e goal, because what we really
want is that all kids get a great education.
There’s no question about that. | firmy
believe after six years of being intimtely
involved in this, that you cannot have it both
ways. You cannot say that charters are there to
provi de choi ce, which means conpetition for our
public schools and at the sane tine they ought
to cooperate and col | aborate. Because
conpetition is about winning. It is about
defeating, and Eva Moskowitz is nmerely the best
practitioner of that. She doesn’t try to just
educate her kids. She tries to win, and when
she wins it means the other kids are losing. So
she is calling our public schools |osers. She
tells our kids they're l|osers. She takes
resources away and | can go on and on, but |
want to end it there. But if we really want
col | aboration, then we have to end this notion
about charters in conpetition, and frankly I

don’t think that’'s possible. I think the horse
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is out of the barn. So |I think what we really
need to do is a noratorium on the charters and
t he co-locations and focus on the 94 percent of

t he kids who are in our public schools. Thank

you.
CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. Next?
KAREN SPROWAL: | was going to say

good morning, but | guess it’s the afternoon.

And then there were two. Thank you so nuch for
having this hearing and you know, all ow ng us
to be able to cone here as parents and speak.
appreci ate you so nmuch. Thank you. So much of
what | was going to say including a quote from
Di ane Ravage [sic] you said in your statement,
so, and so much of it has been expressed.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Are you Karen
Spr owal ?

KAREN SPROWAL.: Karen Sprowal .

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Yeah, | just
wanted to say it for the record.

KAREN SPROWAL: |’'’m so sorry. My nanme
is Karen Sprowal. |I’ma parent of a fifth
grader in District Three that attends public

school 75.
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CHAl RPERSON DROMM Okay, thank you.

KAREN SPROWAL: So again, thank you
so much for the two of you still being here.
appreciate it so nmuch. So, like | said, so nuch
has been spoken about and I’ m not going to
rehash and go over it. But | just wanted to put
a face and put a very personal, intimte
testimony on what it really | ooks like, how it
i mpacts and what it really | ooks like of all of
the stuff that we’'re tal king about, the
politics of all the things that we’'re talking
about. |’ m here today to speak to you as a
former charter school parent, and about the new
free rent laws and the mllions of dollars they
give away to charter schools that have
absolutely no accountability to anyone,
including the--especially the DOE. Around the
time my son was turning five | started getting
t hese gl ossy colorful colored colorful charter
school brochure mailings daily. After reading
them and doing a little bit of research and
even nmeeting Eva Moskowi tz nyself up in Harlem
a couple of times at school choice fairs, |

became foolishly convinced that all public
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schools, particularly the ones in ny
nei ghbor hood, which is in Washi ngton Hei ghts
and has a high nunber of ESL | earners, | nean,
ESLs that all public schools were failing
school s and that charter schools was the new
progressive choice. So | just wanted you to see
this. | hate to speak of my son in an abstract
way. This is a picture of ny son Matthew, and
this particular picture here is the day that we
got his Harlem Success Acadeny uniform and you
know how ki ds do a happy dance when they get
food or get sonething they do a little happy
dance? He was doing his little happy dance. He
was so happy. We were ecstatic, and it was this
big fan fare when he got accepted and won the
lottery. Governor Patterson took pictures
within him It was just huge. We were so
excited and this was him So during the first
week of Kkindergarten at Harl em Success, as you
can see he was happy, so excited to be |eaving
daycare and be going to big boy school, but
after only a few days his early school career
turned into a nightmare for himand | both.

After only 12 days, Harlem Success Acadeny
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suspected that he would require--that he had a
| earning disability. This is very short. Along
with a few other boys, there was about three
ot her boys in the class too, they were al so--1I
think they were imm grants. And so within a
couple--within two or three days they had took
all of these children and they had put them
including my son, and put themat a table in
t he back. And these adm nistrators came in and
they would sit down and they woul d take notes.
They weren’t teachers. They didn’'t introduce
thenmsel ves. We didn't know who they were. They
just came in and observed ny son and these
ot her boys and took notes, and that happened
for a couple of days. Eventually we were all
systematically counseled out. In fact, we were-
-1 was bullied, harassed. My son and these
ot her boys were margi nalized by being sat in
t he back. We were threatened by the
Adm nistration until we were--until | was just
eventually finally worn down, and by the third
week of school | left. To say the |east, our
charter school experience was absolutely

devastating. My son’s spirit and his zest for
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| earning was conpl etely broken. By the tinme ny
son entered a real public school one of the
notes in his evaluation by a doctor that | had
demanded do a eval uation before we |eft that
was hired by Harl em Success Acadeny said in her
notes, she said that he was being damaged by
this initial school experience and that she
suggested strongly that | get him out as soon
as possible, and that was one of the factors
that made nme finally just worn down and said,
you know, this wasn’'t about a fight. It was
about Matthew. Let me get himout of this
school . The contrast between Harlem Success
Academy and a public school was startling to
me. The public school teachers were teaching in
closets. They' re teaching in hallways. They
were teaching on stair steps due to |ack of
shared school space. The class sizes got | arger
wi th each year. Resources becanme nore and nore
alimt. Yet, despite all of these realities,
my son was wel comed. His |learning differences
were val ued and appreciated. They were patient
and conpassionate. My son not only had a new

school, but we had a caring and supportive
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community base. There is value in having a

t eacher that taught you and your brother and
maybe your nmother or your uncle who al so worKks
in the school, who also lives in the community,
who al so have children that go to that school
There's much value in that and that’s what we
experienced at our school. | became very

i nvol ved after this experience and nyself and
ot her PTA--1 got involved in PTA and we would
wor k sonetimes al nost 40 hours a week to raise
nmoney and what | realize is that our sole
function had became to support school budgets
as each year went on. |’m al nost finished,
about to wrap up. Our solely support school’s
budget for the nost basic and fundanent al
resources |like teachers supplies, toilet paper
too keep discontinued nusic and art prograns
and m d-year school budget cuts to supportive
staff. We would pay their salaries. And there’'s
ot her type of things. | was in a school where
we can actually, you know, part of the schoo
was affluent, a small portion of them So we
were able to actually raise those sal aries that

t hose other people tal ked about that they
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wanted to conpare, to where we can pay--you
know, when a budget cut came down and there’'s
only two support staff of 500 children, we were
able to kick in and pay their salary and do
things like that. So this is how we |left the
school . And our records, the attrition, how

t hey showed how they put that code in there of
how we left, they put it in there as a famly
transfer. So |I’m wondering do they have a code
for when they counsel you out and bully you out
i ke that because that’s how we |eft, and
that’s what you see on Matthew s record, that
it was a famly transferred. Our charter school
experience taught me that the very foundation
of the charter school system creates--the very-
-let me just go back. Our charter schoo
experience taught me that we have created a
system we, the people, where charter schools
do not have to play fair or by any rules. The
cherry picking practices anong others are
brutal, undenmocratic, damaging to students and
to the very fabric of our communities. What was
far the worst thing during this experience was

that there was no one to go to for help. There
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was no one. | called people. | tried to talk to
peopl e. There was not one person that | could

go to. There was no recourse, there was no
accountability. They just--there was nothing.
We were conpletely on our own, and what 1’'d
like to say to you is that, you know, we the
peopl e are funding a rigged, seriously flawed,
unchecked, unaccountable private corporation of
school s that creates horrible inequitable
conditions for our real public schools, and
just don’t understand why are we supporting a
system that pits public school parents against
privately run schools. And | want to finish up
with this. | come froma generation where | was
taught that education in Anmerica was the
equal i zer for everyone, no matter what your
religion was, your sexual identity, your
nationality, your social or econom c status.
Our public schools are the lifeline in a pulse
of our communities, not corporations, and | see
my personal experience was one of that. And you
know, | hunmbly ask this commttee to do what
the we the people elected you to do for the 97

percent of New York City students. Anend this
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terrible law that’s this free give away, that’s
pretty much giving the green |ight for every,
any hedge fund or any privately owned
corporation that want to come here and set up
shop. And remember that, you know, everyone--
all elected officials are supposed to be
wor ki ng for we the people, not--we’'re not
st akehol ders. I’ m not a stakeholder. 1'm a
parent in a community, and we parents say it’s
enough. And I’mjust going to wrap this and
finish. Last thing, since |I’ve been here |I'm
very torn about what | think about public
education today. It’'s five years later. Since
|”ve been here |’ve gotten eight calls from ny
son’s school, and |I finally took one and |I got
a nmessage that he was on the floor scream ng
and crying. Apparently--he’'s a special needs
child. Apparently, there was no power [sic]
for himtoday so they didn't et himgo into
recess, and he had a nelt down, and since |’ ve
been here, in all the hours that |’ve been
here, three teachers and two aides have spent
their lunch hour with himtrying to coast him

and stuff, and this is the kind of stuff that
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we do every day in public schools. And let me
just say this, by the time my son was in second
grade in the public school, they had himin a
class with 18 students and two teachers, and he
was in a CTT class. He did so well that he was
tested and he scored in the superior 1Q |leve
and they wanted himto go into the gifted
program This was in a public school. So this
is not rocket science stuff. We don’'t have to
spend mllions of dollars to create another
systemto conpete with. A smaller class size
and two good teachers is what made this child
excel . You know? And now we’'re back because of
t he budget cuts, the classes are now close to
30. There’s one--there’s no special ed teacher
and nmy kid is just unraveling. He's spent nore
time out of school than in school this year
He’'s conpletely unraveling. So |I’m devast at ed.
Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you very
much for that testinony, and as a parent it’s
vitally inportant that we hear your voices,
because you are the first educators of our

children. You have every right to dictate how
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you want your children to be educated and the
Departnment nust listen. So | really appreciate
that. | appreciate hearing--

KAREN SPROWAL: [interposing] Thank
you so nmuch.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM your experiences
at Success. | think you've shined a |ight on
t hat and we can enpathize with that and
understand what it is, what difficulties you
must have gone through, especially--and I
turned to Council Menmber Barron and | said,
“There’s nobody to turn to when you don’'t have
anybody that’s holding you accountable.”
Nobody to conplain to. Nobody to say this is
wrong and this shouldn’t have been done to ny
child, and that really is the focus of what we
wanted to get at today, not this war that goes
on, this public relations thing that media
| oves to eat up, but what about our parents
when t hey have nowhere to turn to. Who do they
go to?

NOAH GOTBAUM M. Chairman, if |
coul d.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM  Yes.
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NOAH GOTBAUM  We have a parent who
represents a number of parents at Success
Charter, she has to go back to work, but I
t hi nk what she will have to say is pretty eye
opening. | know that her tinme is short, but if-

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [ i nter posi ng]
She’ s here?

NOAH GOTBAUM Yeah, she’s here.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Let’s bring her
up, and we’'ll bring up another panel. Just |
want to just make a couple of comments. | heard
all of what you said Noah, and | want to talk
with you further about that. Perhaps we shoul d
sit down at some point and discuss sone of your
recommendati ons which | thought were excell ent
nmoving forward. | am particularly concerned
about the waiting list. The waiting list has
been at 50,000 for a number of years and it’s
ki nd of suspicious howit’s always at 50, 000,
you know, and how they come up with those
nunmbers exactly, | don’t know. And | do want to

just say frommy experiences having been a
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t eacher, the nature of conpetition in education
i's wrong.

NOAH GOTBAUM | totally--

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt [i nterposi ng] We
need to be coll aborative in education, and I'm
so glad that the new Chancellor is stressing
the idea of coll aboration. Let me tell you, as
a teacher, if | had a good idea and ny kids
were scoring well, do you think I’"mgoing to
want to share my idea with the person next door
so that she can do better than ne? You know,
no, of course not. So that’'s why conpetition in
t he schools is not good thing to have. And
finally, closets, we had a mai ntenance cl oset.
They came in one day right next to the staff
room they took out the pitchfork, they took
out the rake, they took out the salt, they
threw up a coat of paint and they nade the
mai nt enance cl oset where they used to keep the
pitchforks and all that stuff into a speech
classroom No wi ndows, just enough room but we
survive in public schools, okay. No toilet
paper, comon thing. Teachers bring toil et

paper with themto school
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KAREN SPROWALS: Absol utely.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Or ask the
parents to bring the toilet paper in, and it’s
put on the shelf or the chalk rack, and then
the kid, when he has to go to the bathroom
takes the toilet paper roll with himinto the
bat hroom What’s going on in our public--

NOAH GOTBAUM [interposi ng] And how
do our kids--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM school s?

NOAH GOTBAUM  How do our Kkids feel?

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Of course.

NOAH GOTBAUM I don’t know if you
saw, but a Pulitzer Prize wi nning journalist
Tri Meng Lee [sp?] wrote a story about 149 and
811 and quoted one of the teachers where
t al ki ng about the kids have their noses pressed
up against the glass | ooking into Success
Charter’s hallway, but they can’t get in there,
and they can’t get the sane things. They can’t
get the fresh direct. They can't get that sane
lighting. They can’'t get the sane smart boards.
They can’t sit at the same chess roons and

dance roonms, and that’s just wrong.
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM And t hank you.

And to ny friend fromthe New York Civi
Li berties Union as well, this is absolutely a
civil rights issue.

TAYO BELLE: Absolutely.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM  And as | was
reviewi ng and preparing for this hearing, | saw
even in the Coney Island Prep Charter School,
their dedication supposedly to the civi
rights, but all of what has been said here in
terms of the discipline policies and things
like that, if we don’t put our children first
and don’t do things like this we are in
violation of their civil rights. And so | thank
you for stressing that point. That is a very,
very inmportant point to be made.

TAYO BELLE: Right, and if you won’t
m nd, | would just |like to point out that the
Federal Government agrees with you as, |'m
sure, saw in January of this year, this was
also included in ny testinmony, the US
Departments of Education and the US Depart ment
of Justice both came down with joint federal

gui dance speaki ng about the federal civil
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rights commtment that all school districts
need to make sure that they’re uphol ding, and
so making sure that all schools are in
conpliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964
and just making sure that students are not
bei ng di scri m nated agai nst on the basis of
their race. For instance, in classroom and al so
the individuals with disabilities, the
Educati on Act protects against discrimnation
as well against students in schools. So this is
a comm tnment that even the Federal Governnent
has it opens up charter schools to federa
liability really if they' re not in conpliance
with these laws. So we would just really stress
that this needs to be thought of a little bit
nmore carefully.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM And why any
charter school in this day and age woul d want
to fight protection of civil rights for anybody
in the tutelage is just beyond ne. Thank you.
Thank you all for comng in.

KAREN SPROWAL: Thank you so mnuch.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM We want to bring

up the other parent so we can hear her and we
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want to bring up our next panel. Noah, just--
woul d you approach the bench? So, okay.

Eli zabeth ElIl ohiem [sp?], would you cone up?
Okay. Sel ena Dowy Deanar [sp?] Denarine [sp?],
|’ m sorry fromthe Bedford Academy Hi gh School
Still here? Okay. Yeah, you can |eave the
written testinony if you want to. |I'msorry it
took us so long to get to you. Thank you for
being here with us today. Do you want to speak?
Okay. So let’s--do you want to speak, Sel ena?

SELENA DOWY- DEONARI NE: Yes.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay.

SELENA DOWY- DEONARI NE: Good
afternoon. My name is Sel ena Dowy Deonari ne
[sp?]. My daughter--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM |’ m sorry, | have
to swear you in. Raise your right hand, please,
both of you. Do you solemnly swear to tell the
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the
truth and to answer Council Menber questions
honest | y?

SELENA DOWY- DEONARI NE: | do.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Thank you.
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SELENA DOWY- DEONARI NE: My name is
Sel ena Dowy Deonarine, and nmy daughter Tasia
[ sp?] Deonarine and Adri ana Deonarine attended
t he Expl ore Charter School on Schni der Avenue

in Brooklyn, and--catching ny breath, |

apol ogi ze.

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt Just catch your
breat h.

SELENA DOWY- DEONARI NE: ' m j ust
going to read off ny statenment. | have three

children, all of whom are products of the New
York City public school system When nmy girls
Adriana and Tasia were younger they attended

t he Expl ore Charter School in Brooklyn. Adriana
from Ki ndergarten until Second grade and Tasi a
attended from ki ndergarten until first grade.
Adriana was gifted and during her tinme at

Expl ore she excell ed and was ski pped fromthe
first grade to the third grade. However, for a
period of two weeks. This change was short
l'ived, however, because of her fellow students
babi ed her and she asked to be noved back with
her friends. After that, the teacher Ms. North

set up a special area just for her with
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advanced third, fourth and fifth grade materi al
for her to conplete at her own pace. All of the
mat eri al was gone by February of the foll ow ng
year. Tasia, however, was quite a different
story. What we wouldn’t learn for four years
was that she had | earning differences, ADD and
Dyslexia to be exact. \While attending Explore,
Adri ana--sorry, Tasia displayed the need for
addi ti onal assistance because of her
disabilities. What she got was indifference.
The teachers and adm nistration staff at
Expl ore infornmed me that because she couldn’t
keep up with the class work they were not
accepting her for the second grade. |nagine
being told that a school had given up on your
child after two years. As an adult and a
parent, | was outraged. As a child, she was
scarred, not scared, scarred and confused. How
dare you. How dare you take my child or
anybody’s child for that end and use themto
further your own agenda. What do you tell a
child when she asks, “Mom what’'s wong with
me? Why can’t | get this?” And then says

she’s giving up. My i medi ate response was to
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go to the school and ask for help, and I was
shocked and angry at their response to ne.

Their suggestion was to pull her, put her into
regul ar public school. They have to deal with
her, they told me, and she’' |l get the help that
she needs. They also instructed nme to tell them
she has a | ate Decenber birthday, and to pl ace
her back into the first grade. No one’s ever
going to know. | would know. Tasia would know.
To this day, Tasia reflects on her experience
and gets solem about it. Sinply asking her to
relive the experience brings her to tears. When
| told her I was com ng here today, she said,
“Mom go get ‘em” | pulled both girls out the
foll owi ng Septenber and did exactly that,

pl aced theminto a regular public school. It
has--it was the best choice that | ever made.
My son, who al so attended public school,
currently attends Virginia Tech Coll ege of

Engi neering. Adriana attend high school at a
boardi ng school in Connecticut, and Tasia, a
proud product of the New York City public
education system currently attends Bedford

Acadeny high school and is a three year schol ar
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with the Harlem Educational Activities STEM

[ sic] education program an amazing
acconmplishment for a child who was told at age
seven that she was expendable. Regul ar public
schools don’t have the choice to pick and
choose the cream of the crop of the student
popul ati on and charter schools shoul dn’t
either. | chose to put ny--1 choose to put ny
support and tax dollars behind regular public
school s and schools for kids--schools for al
kids, and | challenge you to do the sane.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you very
much for that nmoving testinony and thank you
for standing up for your daughter and for your
rights as well and for staying with us today.
It’s a beautiful story to hear the success that
t hey made because of your persistence and your
belief in your own children. God bless you and
t hank you for com ng

SELENA DOWY- DEONARI NE: Thank you

ELI ZABETH ELLOHIEM  Hell o, ny name

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM  [i nt er posi ng]

Just turn that on. Yeah. Light is on?
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ELI ZABETH ELLOHI EM  Yes.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Okay.

ELI ZABETH ELLOHI EM  Hell o, my nane
is Elizbeth Ellohiem[sp?] and I"mof a third
grade student at the Harl em Success Academy One
flagship location. 1'd like to start off by
sayi ng thank you for holding this meeting and
giving us a opportunity to share our stories
and experience, and at this tinme | am
diligently | ooking for a new school environment
for my daughter to go. 1'd like to start off by
just giving a brief personal experience at this
school. Some time back in October of 2013 I was
banned from the school. That neans banned from
pi cking up my child, banned from any and al
school activities, trips, parent/teacher
meetings, everything, and | was banned fromthe
school because ny daughter’s classmate of hers
had actually been--was not allowed to use the
bat hroom from 8:30 in the morning until 12:00
on the afternoon. That day, that student was
very hurt and upset by it. She let me know. |
asked one of the te--1 asked her teacher why

wasn't she allowed to use the bathroom and her
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teacher just blatantly said she was being

di srespectful, and | again asked her, “okay,
but she says she’'s been waiting from 8:30 until
12: 00. Thinking that the teacher was going to
say, “Oh, | forgot.” O, you know, “Where was
m nd? Let me get somebody to bring her to the
restroom” And again she repeated that the
child was being disrespectful and rude. | then
took the child to the bathroom nyself, waited
outside for her to go and when she canme out |

t ook her back to where she was supposed to be.
Upon doing so, one of the adm nistrative, the
| eadership staff there cane down. | spoke to
her about it. She was not really paying nme any
m nd. She was really being disrespectful by not
even listening to ny story, and by the tinme it
was done all | know is they were trying to
escort me out the building. | came to pick up
my daughter and I was presented with a letter
saying | was being banned. She tried to shove
the letter at ne and tell me to read it when |
got home. | said, “No, you' re going to stay
right here while | read it.” | read it. There

was m sspelled letters. There was typos. There
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was di al ogue that made absolutely no sense, but
t here was nothing about nme taking the little
girl to the restroom These are sone of the
tactics and things that they use in order to
basically push you out and start intimdating
you when they feel that you are threat to their
design at their school. They often |lie and they
don’t tell the full story or they cut corners

in order to just make thensel ves | ook better.

l"’m still banned fromthe school. Again, |ike
said, my daughter still attends because | have
been | ooking. | know that they do these things

in order to intimdate you and rush you out and
make sure, |ike, oh you have to put your child
in just any location. It becones a very
intimdating process. But | would like to |ist
overall | feel the design of the charter school
and Eva Moskowi tz Success Acadeny are a

busi ness nmodel, and it’s set up like a big box
corporation. Success Acadeny handl es issues
internally and they regul ate thensel ves,
resulting in poor investigations, m shandling
serious conmplaints. The grievous policy |acks

proper communi cation regarding issues
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ultimately that should be handled in real tinme.
This process can be long and futile and
contributes to a |lack of respect and
resol ution. Behavior and discipline, oppression
of children in their individuality, creativity
and freedom It’s cruel and extrene.

Di sciplinary actions are not age appropriate.
Parents in community’s degradati on of the
Success Acadenmy parental communities are
condescendi ng style of conmunication and
underlying racismimbedded into the Success
Acadeny’ s design. Non-unioni zed teachers--
teachers have to adhere to policies that create
problems with communication with parent and

| eave no room for adjusting, teaching and

| earning techni ques for the children that need
a different approach in order to truly succeed
and high and excessive teacher turnover rates.
My daughter has had three teachers this year

al ready. Ot her students have had up to five.
Even--it’s just--and the children, they're in
and out too because it just becomes too much.
Maj or changes in Success Acadeny’s policy or

protocol are not--we are not given notice. W
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aren’t given written notice. It’s not in their
handbook anywhere. They change at whim and
you're in there and you're just finding out
just like that. The design of this school is
experinmental and the psychol ogical effects can
be catastrophic, possibly settling our

communi ties back generations. Overall, Eva
Moskowi t z has created a penal and punitive
environment for children’s m ndsets. To be

nol ded--to be nmol ded into under--to educated
under cl assmen. She has racial profiled and
targeted a denographic to fuel her machi ne and
make her half a mllion dollar salary. She has
used our communities and our children to build-
-she’s built her name off the backs of our kids
and our communities and there has to be

awar eness brought to the situation that is
happeni ng behind cl osed doors. There are
parents that are afraid to speak up or they
just are ready to pull their kids out because
the pressure of going through this has been so
denmeaning and it’s absolutely unbelievable. And
for people who have never experienced this type

of attack, because that’s what it is disguised




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 292
in great education. | feel as though in years
to come, 20, 30 years from now you will see a

different type of children and they will be

aut omat ons, just going through the notions of
this society and it’s terrible. And | really
hope that other parents do come forward and
know that it is okay to speak up. You know,

just because someone has nobney or this big--or
they’re this big public figure, that doesn’t
mean t hat your words or the way you feel or
what you have experienced is any |ess, any

|l ess. And | do hope others cone out and | just
t hank you very nuch for everyone |istening and
time and respect. Oh, yes. Yes, and just to
touch on the rally for March 4'". Being that |
am a banned parent, |, you know, | haven't
really been able to participate in much, but
the rally for March 4'" that she had put

t oget her, she had sent excessive emnils, phone
calls, text messages and | did go to one of the
meetings that they had put together in order to
get the parents together for this rally. Wen I
went to the neeting | listened to what they had

to say. | got a phone call the next day or




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 293
something |like that or that foll owing Monday
because | think it was on a Friday, and they
told me that | violated the ban and that | was
not welcomed to the rally because | was not
al l owed on their buses, but yet they sent a
letter home saying that any famly or friends
are invited. So you would be willing to invite
random peopl e on your buses around children
not knowing if these people who they are.

You' re not screening them but you are really
hard on not allowi ng a parent that’s banned,
it’s not even in your building, to a rally. Not
that | was supportive anyway. | will make that
clear. | was not supportive, but it just shows
you the | ack of respect that they have for
their parent conmunity and they are very on top
of and careful about making sure that issues of
parents that are going through all of these
things don’t seep into the parents that aren’t
havi ng these issues. So they hold separate
meetings and everything at times, you know, if
there are issues that they feel are really

extreme.
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COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: Sorry that
t hat happened to you. It certainly doesn’'t talk
about respecting parent’s rights and havi ng
them i nvol ved and having themto have a voice--

ELI ZABETH ELLOHI EM  [interposing]

Ri ght .

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: in what's
going on in the school. Do they have a forma
parent body of any sort that functions in that
school ?

ELI ZABETH ELLOHI EM  Yes, they do.
They have a parent council. There's a
presi dent, secretary, you know, the whol e--and
| - -

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: [i nterposing]
Woul d you say that they’'re independent and that
t hey’ re autononous or that they are rubber
stanps for the school, or that there' s a
combi nati on or a range?

ELI ZABETH ELLOHI EM Well, | fee
l'i ke the school just has that put together in
order to make sure--you know, | feel like it’s
kind of just in place. | don’t feel like the

parents are |ike, you know, doing this on their
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own. | feel like this is sonething that’s set
up within the structure of the school.

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: Formality.

ELI ZABETH ELLOHI EM And yeah, and
they’'re probably you know, really careful about
who they pick on their, you know, parent
council anyway.

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: Well, we
appreciate your having concern and conpassi on
for a child who’s having to respond to their
bi ol ogi cal needs and being stressed in that
ki nd of situation that you addressed that. We
do appreci ate your being involved, and we
certainly are going to look into the fact of
banni ng and puni shing parents--

ELI ZABETH ELLOHIEM [i nt er posi ng]
Yeah.

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: as wel |l as
students, that they have that kind of audacity
to do that.

ELI ZABETH ELLOHI EM They do, and
just really quickly before I go, | just want to
say that there several--there are actually

lists of banned parents that have been given to
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security guards in order to stop them at the
door. So it’s not just nyself in this list.
Someti mes people come off. Sometime they’ re on,
but the reason why | wasn’'t allowed back into
t he school is because | did not verbatim say
|’ m sorry for doing--for taking the little girl
to the restroom and again, there's been--
there’s a | ot of parents that are going through
this and there's a |lot of other issues that |
just don’t have time to get into right now, but
they are very, very serious. Even getting other
security, that is not school safety to handle
children and to physically, you know, touch
t hese children and do things to them that npst
parents woul dn’'t even do to their kids. So
that’s sonething that needs to be | ooked into
as well. They really need sone nore oversi ght
and structure, especially Eva Moskowi tz and her
Success Acadeny because she is the horse that
is heading everything at this point.

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: Okay. We
t hank you for your testinony.
ELI ZABETH ELLOHI EM Thank you so

much.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 297

COUNCI L MEMBER BARRON: We will be
havi ng subsequent hearings, so | ook out for
t hem and perhaps you'll be able to encourage
nore parents to conme and participate. Thank you
so much.

ELI ZABETH ELLOHI EM Thank you so
much. You have a good day.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM: | did pretty good
wi t hout a bathroom break, right? So thank you
for bearing with nme. That’s right, if | didn’'t
have the--1 didn't bring the pass, so | guess |
have to wear the orange shirt for a | onger
period of time now Okay, we're going to cal
up Barbara Martinez from Uncomon Schools. She
had to | eave, okay. Guess it’s not that
i mportant. Explore Charter School, Cheryl Davis
[sp?], thank you. She’s here. Mrty Ball en,
Expl ore Schools. Okay. Ronald Chal ui san, New
Vi sions for Public Schools. Aviva Buechler and
Charl es Taylor from Harlem Li nk Charter School,
and Brooklyn Irvin Garden Charter School,

M riam Nunberg, thank you. Alright, very good.
Woul d you pl ease raise your right hand and | et

me ask you, do you swear or affirmto tell the
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truth, the whole truth and nothing but the
truth and to respond honestly to Council Member
questions? Okay, thank you. And where should
we start? Okay, over here, yeah. Yeah, just
push the button. Is it on, the red light?

Okay.

MORTY BALLEN: Good afternoon. Thank
you for the Council Menbers and for the Chair
for this commttee. My name is Morty Ball en.
|’ mthe CEO and Founder of Explore Schools.
We're a network of four schools serving 1,600
students in Central Brooklyn, District 17 and
18, and | cane here to testify today for a
couple of reasons. One is I'’min favor of data
transparency, and | very much want to be part
of our city' s efforts to have a system serving
1.1 mllion students with equity and
excel |l ence. As a nmenber of the educationa
sector in New York City, doing this work for
over 12 years | feel responsible to be part of
the systemto ensure our parents have options
and our students have the outstanding public
education they deserve. Before starting Explore

| was a teacher for six years. | taught in
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Loui si ana, New York City and South Africa, and
| opened Explore in 2002 so that we would serve
kids and famlies fromage five right up until
age 13 to serve kids and famlies from

ki ndergarten through eighth grade, and | opened
it as a charter school even though I had a
principal’s license because | very much wanted
to have the freedons around human capital and
resource allocation and because | was a
traditional public school teacher, | wanted to
serve exactly the sanme students as | served
when | was teaching in the traditional district
school. So again, it’s these twin ideas of
equity, serving all students and excellence,
ensuring our students have an outstandi ng
public education that conmpelled ne to open the
Expl ore Charter School in 2002. W graduated
our first group of eighth graders in 2008.
Those students are now in their sophonore year,

just conpleting their sophomore year of

college. I’"’mnot reading fromny testinony,
just FYl. | don’t know if you're trying to
find.
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM |’ m just | ooking
at it as you speak.

MORTY BALLEN: Yep. And after we
graduated that group of students in 2008, again
| wanted to be part of the solution to our
city’ s education system so we worked with the
Departnent of Ed, and we | earned from them when
t here were schools that were closed for poor
performance, often those famlies didn't have
an outstanding option in their neighborhood. So
we used our charter to open schools two, three
and four so that we could serve those famlies
who didn't have those educational options when
their school was closed. We prioritized those
famlies in our lottery. That means serving
exactly the same kids as a traditional district
schools. So as of now, among our 1,600
students, 80 percent are eligible for free or
reduced meal s, 17 percent of our students have
speci al needs, which is the sane percentage as
the district. Three percent of our students
are English | anguage | earners, and two of our
schools which we’re very proud of have a 12 to

one to one setting. These are restrictive
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speci al education setting, and in the district
only 29 schools out of 75 have that sanme
setting. So often when I’ m thinking about our
school s and serving kids with high needs, | ask
why aren’t nore school s doing the sane,
regardless if they re charter or traditional
district. And the | ast piece that | want to
speak to is that of coll aboration. W' re proud
of the coll aboration that we do. Chancell or
Farina visited our school three weeks ago
specifically because of the respect that
characterize our relationship with her co-

| ocated school. In fact, the Today Show and
Carson Daly is planning an urban garden where
our school principal and the school principal
of the co-located school are working together
on that. Whenever we sought to open new school s
in Central Brooklyn--two nore seconds--we
sought the input of then Council woman Janes,
Assembl yman Mosely, Assenbl yman Jefferies when
he was Assenmbl yman, Assenbl yman Kamara [sp?]
all to say that comunity | eaders matter to us
and we sought out their feedback and solicited

their input. And finally as a school |eader
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feel conpelled to support school | eaders,
whet her they’'re district |eaders or charter
| eaders. We've held three | eadership round
tables to focus on school | eadership where 65
school | eaders, again, who cares if they're
charter? Who cares if they're traditional
| eaders? We all are working to support our
city's kids. We speak about | eadership and we
support each other. The last thing because |
think 1’1l be asked about it. In 12/13, ny
conp package that year was 208, 000; 208,000 was
the base. | was eligible for a bonus and
received a 10,000 bonus. | don’t have a
retirement because we' re not part of that
system and you know, |I’m the | eader of four
schools, a principal of a high school in New
York City with the sane experience as | earns
175,000 including a bonus. So while we’'re a
little bit above, | also know that our board
has prioritized the work that |’ve been doing
over the last 12 years to grow our network and
our schools.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Okay, thank you.

Next please?
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M RI AM NUNBERG. Good afternoon
Chai rman Dromm and nenbers of the Commttee on
Education. My name is Mriam Nunberg and |'m
t he foundi ng Co- Executive Director of the year
old community based Brooklyn Urban Garden
Charter School, aka BUGS. Thank you for the
opportunity to present testinony today.
Al t hough your col | eague Brad Lander is not
present, he has been trenmendously supportive
t hroughout the years of our school. |I am a
former special education teacher who then
becanme a civil rights attorney for the US
Departnment of Education, working for 14 years
to enforce civil rights laws in public schools.
These experiences placed a commtment to equity
front and center in the design of BUGS. | wi sh
to highlight for you what this comm tment | ooks
|'i ke at our school. BUGS mi ssion is to provide
a hands on interdisciplinary education to
m ddl e school ers of all backgrounds and
abilities with a focus on real world problem
sol ving and the study of environment al
sustainability. Equity defines our program as

wel | as our grassroots history. BUGS was
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founded by | ocal parents and educators, not any
management network, who came together in a
comunity effort to create a new m ddl e schoo
option in District 15 where 10-year-ol ds
conpete to be chosen by selective DOE school s
with far too few sixth grade seats in a process
that as a former civil rights attorney, | have
to note results in a disproportionate nunber of
white students being selected by the DOE
schools. Equity starts at BUGS when we accept
students via random and transparent lottery in
which the only preference legally allowed is
for district residents and siblings.

Ironically, our lottery ranked my own son
nearly last on the in-district wait list for
BUGS next year. As a parent, however, | still
find this process nore fair than the selective
schools where criteria |ike academ c
performance, auditions and interviews allow
themto hand pick the desired student body. OQur
|ottery means that at BUGS, children of new
imm grants from Sunset Park and residents of

t he Red Hook Houses are wel comed al ongsi de

af fl uent students from Park Sl ope and ali ke.
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Our student body | ooks like all of Brooklyn and
at 66 percent Latino and African-Anerican, and
16 percent white and six percent Asian. Twenty
percent of our students receive speci al
educati on services and approxi mately 50 percent
qualify for free or reduced price lunch. At
BUGS, these children fromvastly different
backgrounds work together and intentionally

het er ogeneous groups where they coll aborate to
sol ve hands-on problens such as designing
budgeting for and planting our gardens and
establi shing conposting and recycling systens
in our building. Our students with disabilities
are fully integrated into our program and are
wel | served by experienced special education
faculty, related service providers and our

| earning | ab that provides additiona
instruction to students bel ow grade |evel. BUGS
also prioritizes equity and student discipline,
which I know it’s been very inmportant to a | ot
of people throughout the day. During nmy Civi
rights work, | encountered African-Anmerican and
Lati no students in public school districts,

including New York City, suspended for m nor
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infractions and potentially placed on the so-
call ed school to prison pipeline. As a result,

t he BUGS di scipline code is based on one

devel oped by the ad--just a few nmore m nutes--
one devel oped by the advancenent project, which
is a national |eader in equity and schoo

di scipline. Our code strictly limts
suspensi ons and takes a restorative justice and
skills building approach to responding to

m sbehavior. On a separate note, since we
started the school to create additional m ddle
school seats in District 15, we were commtted
to remaining there despite its notoriously
difficult real estate situation and our very

| ean budget. DOE space was not an option, so we
ended up renting at a high cost to our program
fromthe Bishop Ford Catholic Hi gh School which
suddenly announced its intent to close at the
end of June. Although we have been assured that
we will not have to nmove when the schoo

cl oses, the situation only adds to our

adm ni strative burden and highlights the needs
for a stable facility solution for charters. In

concluding, | hope I have given you a flavor of
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t he val ues that have guided us in the founding

and growi ng of the Brooklyn Urban Garden
Charter School, a truly grassroots project

serves a diverse population with a deep

t hat

comm tment to equity and sustainability and in

all its facets. Thank you

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. Next

pl ease?

AVI VA BUECHLER: Hi, my name is

Avi va Buechler, and I’m a kindergarten teacher

at Harlem Link Charter School. 1’'m speaking on

behal f of Harlem Link and my principal

unfortunately couldn’'t be here today. He's

| eadi ng a professional devel opment session

right now. Thank you for the opportunity to |et

me speak on behalf of my school. I'’ma proud

menber of the staff at Harlem Link, which is a

Kto five public school, public charter schoo

that |inks academ cs, values and comunity to

graduate articul ate scholars and active

citizens who | earn and serve in our conmmunity.

Harl em Li nk sets a high expectation for our

students, and we have a very strong beli ef

all of our students to achieve in their

in
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| earning. We have a strong curriculumthat
teachers are very nuch directly part of to
create to align with Common Core standards, and
Harlem Link is consistently re-eval uating our
curriculumto ensure it neets the needs of all
our students. We are data driven and Harlem
Link consistently | ooks at our data to nake
sure that we are communicating with our
students and their famlies about their
academ c performances. W have a co-teaching
nodel where there are two | ead teachers in
every classroomto ensure that we have targeted
smal |l group instruction for all of our students
and their needs. Our staff nmenmbers are constant
| earners and we aimto provide the best support
for our student needs. Our students are diverse
and our students conme from different
backgrounds. To give you some specifics, we
have 310 students currently enrolled at Harlem
Li nk. Ni neteen percent are special education,
seven percent are English |anguage | earners, 80
percent African-Anmerican, 19 percent Hi spanic,
one percent other. In this--in our school

system we provide targeted help for all of our
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students and work very closely with their
famlies to provide the best for our students.
| am proud to be part of Harlem Link staff and
I, at my school, have the ability to share ny
voi ce and opi nions and feedback with the
| eadership team consistently. My degree of
voice and flexibility isn’'t always available in
a district school, but HarlemLink tries to
take a denocratic spirit to every mgjor
deci sion for our school. Specifically, in terns
of our board, |I'’mhere to say that our school’s
board is an open board. We have neetings that
are open to the public, and my principal
specifically asked me to mention that our next
board meeting is on May 28'" and we're nore
t han happy and glad to host any comm ttee
menmbers to join us where we will actually be
di scussing the next budget for the upcom ng
school year and we’re nore than happy to share
all that information with you there, and it’s
publicly available. As a followup to the
board, specifically our school as well works in
a building council with other schools in the

district. We have specifically two district
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public schools, one other charter school and
one district 75 school. In this forum our
school has a strong col |l aboration with these
school s, specifically we have after schoo
prograns that work together with PS 208" s after
school program on several occasions. W teach
t hem about cabwera [sp?]. They teach us about
rugby. It’s very effective and a lot of fun for
our kids, and we’ve also been working with P--
with our District 75 school and PS 208 on a
peer mentoring program where students are
interacting and engagi ng on a consi stent basis
and the kids have an amazing tinme and |earning
experiences together. One |last coment. Harlem
Li nk was founded to provide choice for famlies
in our community, and we continue to work hard
to ensure that our students have these strong
educati onal experiences. |I’mhere to answer any
guestions, but again, | really highly recommend
you com ng to our next board meeting to really
hear nore about the work we’'re doing with our
students with their famlies to ensure that the

Commttee is well aware of the incredible
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successes and the strives that we make to re-
eval uate ourselves each day.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Okay. Thank you.
Next, please?

CHERYL DAVIS: Hi, good afternoon. My
name is Cheryl Davis, and |I'’ma former charter
school parent. My search for a school to enrol

my daughter began with nmy | ocal schoo

district. The school | was interested in, which
was across the street, | surprisingly found out
was not actually my zone school. After

submtting various letters and receiving
rejection notices, I went to my zone school for
a visit. The school that had |arge class sizes
seemed a bit unruly and it was in the process
of having a new principal. These were not good
signs. We, nmy husband and nmy daughter, went for
an interview at a Catholic school in my area
that turned into an emotional disaster. It
seemed that they were not very interested in a
child they would have to pay attention to,
special attention to. Despite the tuition
costs, they politely denied her admttance. So

what should | do? M ol dest daughter told me
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of a new school opening, a charter school named
Explore. | went there to the meetings, applied
and ny daughter was one of the first 168
schol ars enrolled. My second school -aged child
followed two years later. That was 11 years
ago. Both of my children now attend district
hi gh school and are performng to the highest
expectations of their ability. You see, one has
a learning disability, and the other is quite
gifted. Both were nurtured and educated at
Expl ore charter school with the same commi t nent
to excellence they give each student. The
school’s close knit famly structure all owed me
to have a voice in ny children’ s devel opnent.
was a nmenber of the PTA and also on the Board
of Trustees as a parent |eader. W’ ve had
di sagreenments, but there was al ways a
fundamental desire to resolve an issue in the
best interest of the children. | amtruly--I
truly regret that an education comm ttee such
as this was not established to inquire,
investigate the decline and deterioration of
urban schools which birthed the formation of

charter school module. | amintrigued that the
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term separate and unequal is being applied to
charter schools who co-locate with district
school s when the predom nately population is
bl ack and brown children when the practice of
separate and unequal festered and manifested in
Erm d [sic] versus Upper East Side and affl uent
nei ghbor hoods for decades. | believe in
transparency and pray that policy can be
established that allow all public schools to be
hel d accountable to all children, including our
speci al ed and ELL students for resources, art,
music, nutritional meals and rich, inclusive
curriculum | challenge parents to harness
their power and use their power to research for
t hemsel ves, to advocate and demand resources
and hold both charters and district schools
accountable in educating our children. Thank
you.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM  Thank you. Next,
pl ease?

MELANIE LEW S: | wholly agree with
my former parent here. My name is Ml anie
Lewis. | have two children that extend Exceed

Expl ore Charter School in Crown Hei ghts
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Brooklyn. 1'd actually always told nmy children
| wanted themto exceed expectations, so when |
heard this new school was comng to the

nei ghbor hood with the name Exceed Charter

School, | said, “Okay, there’'s power in the
name. So we’'re going to go with them” You
know, | really appreciate it and | was grateful

for this choice of a new school environment in
an existing network. So | did research about
this network before placing my children in a
particul ar school. | support the mi ssion for
themto help children to succeed in a college
preparatory high school, and |’ m today, you
know, 1’ m grateful that nmy children are
exhibiting the potential that | always believed
they had. So that’'s a blessing as a parent to
know t hat your children have the potential and
pl ace themin an environment where they did,
you know, did go ahead to succeed. So
appreciate that and | see that, and so that is
a bl essing. So our co-location is really
respectful and friendly. I"’min the school very
often. You know, | came out of a district

school, so | pay close attention, and so
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really appreciate that. Our PTA's have actually
partnered which is a big deal, you know. You
know, when you set the stage in a co-location
where there is friendliness and there is
communi cation, you are able to get things done.
It’s, you know, and so we’'re |ooking forward to
a really great outdoor novie night that we're
having in June and the community’s invited. And
so, you know, | just encourage people to
col | aborate, you know. When two people touch
and agree and come together and have a neeting
and have discussions, you can get things
t oget her, you know. So a negative plus a
negative is a negative. A positive plus a
positive is only be greater if the positive is
greater. So let’s work together so we can get
t hi ngs done for our district and charter
school s. Thank you.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you. Next,
pl ease?

RONALD CHALUI SAN: |’ m just going to
flip over.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Go ri ght ahead.
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RONALD CHALUI SAN: Good afternoon,

Chai rman Dronmm and Council Menber Barron.
Sorry.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM |t’s getting
| at e.

RONALD CHALUI SAN: | was facing the
other way. My nane is Ronald Chaluisan | amthe
Vice President of Charter Schools at New
Visions for Public Schools. Thank you for the
opportunity this afternoon to testify in
support of Intro Number 12. I'’mgoing to read a
nodi fied version of nmy prepared statenment. |
bring over 30 years of experience as an
educator to this work, 15 of those years here
in New York City, first as a teacher at the New
York City Lab School, and |ater as the founding
Principal of the New York City Museum School ,
prior to joining New Visions in 2002 as the
Director of Small Schools. Beginning in 2011,
New Vi si ons enmbarked on a new effort to create
charter high schools serving | ow inconme
children in New York City. QOur goal is not to
suppl ant district schools, but to use the

opportunity created by charter |aw, conbined
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wi th accountability for school operations and
student outcones to consolidate our
organi zati onal know edge around schoo
i mprovement and to innovate nmore deeply across
the system Currently, New Visions supports 81
public schools, six of which are charter high
schools. We're a nmenber of the Coalition for
Community Charter Schools and we strongly
support and participate in the inmportant work
that this coalition of schools is doing around
four maj or areas, collaboration, accessibility,
adaptability and transparent accountability. In
t he area of coll aboration we are a partnership
support organi zation that work with 75 district
hi gh schools across the city. We coll aborate
with DOE and charter schools in the areas of
curriculum devel opment, | eadership coaching,
met hods of supporting professional growth for
t eachers, programm ng students for success,
teacher certification and restorative justice
progranms for school’s discipline policies. W
partner with the UFT. Three of our schools are
uni oni zed, two of which have working contracts,

one which in process. We also collaborate with
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arts organi zati ons across the city, our mgjor
partner being Lincoln Center. In the second
area, accessibility, we believe very deeply in
broad outreach across the districts. We're very
proud to say that we serve 17 percent of our
students who have special needs with |EPs.

El even percent of our students who are English
| anguage |l earners. Fifty-five percent of the
students who on their eighth grade exams were
classified as low as third across the city, and
75 percent of our students were eligible for
free and reduced |unch. The area of
adaptability, we believe very strongly that
school s that are successful are schools that
meet the needs of the students that conme to
them not students--not schools that select
students in order to be successful. Finally, we
believe in transparent accountability. I’1]

just be one more mnute. We firmy support the
proposed amendnment to require a DOE reporting
on student denographics at co-located charter
school. We believe that access to accurate rea
time data on all schools, both district and

charter only makes us stronger as a district




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 319
and enables us to identify those schools that
are making significant progress with high needs
student popul ati ons. New Vi sions has |ong
hel ped its partner schools build capacity to
make data informed decisions. W’'d welconme the
opportunity to share our knowl edge in this area
with both our district and charter coll eagues
and to denonstrate the positive coll aborations
that can be forged between district and charter
schools in the city. Sinply having data is not
sufficient. It is the inplenmentation of this
knowl edge carried out in best practices that
will allow the departnment, its partners,
adm ni strators and teachers to inmprove the
quality of education for all of the students
across the city. On behalf of New Visions for
public schools, | urge you to support Intro
Number 12. Once again, thank you for the
opportunity to testify today and we’'ll be happy
to take any questions.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay. Thank you.
First et me just start of by saying that M.
Charl son [sic], sorry, Chalusian, Chal usian--

RONALD CHALUSI AN: There you go.
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CHAI RPERSON DROMM Chal usi an, thank
you for comng in and for testifying. | am
aware of the New Vision’s efforts. | do
appreci ate the fact that you are unionized. |If
you were here earlier, | think | described why
it’s so inmportant to me and to other educators
across the city to have those types of
protections. So | would |like to thank you for
that. | also want to say | have been inpressed
today by the Coalition of Community Charter
School s and the transparency by which the
organi zati ons that have come before us to
testify have shown in the information that they
have provided here to this commttee. And I
have to say that | am very disappointed in the
others that did not, and it’s not--1 think
we're talking to the converted here to a
certain extent, you know, that you know, you
al ready are being forthcom ng with information,
and | certainly think that that’s true,
particularly with New Visions. |'msorry, we
were a little confused about the names and

that’s why were rushing with the papers. This
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young woman here who was the teacher in the
school . Yes, and what’s your nanme again?

AVI VA BUECHLER: Aviva Buechl er.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay. So did you
say there were two teachers in every one of
your cl assroons?

AVI VA BUECHLER: There are two | ead
teachers in every classroom

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Two | ead

teachers?

AVI VA BUECHLER: Uh-hm

CHAl RPERSON DROVMM How many
students?

AVI VA BUECHLER: Approxi mately 28,
27.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM That's a big
advant age, really that we don’t have in the
public school system And so part, | think, of
what happens to us when we' re in the discussion
that we have is charters versus, and | don’t
even like to use the word versus, you know,
here, is that we don’'t have those resources in
t he public schools. And I think it was our

parent over here who spoke about this commttee




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 322
and the work that we’re doing in ternms of the
overall urban school system and public school s
in urban areas like this. That has been the
mai n focus of this commttee, certainly for the
four years before | was the Chairperson. That’s
all we have power over actually is over the
Departnent of Ed here, and we also try to have
transparency and to shine the Iight on what the
DOE is doing. That is our main focus. Today, we
focused on the charter schools to the extent
that those who are not DOE authorized charter
schools were willing to come in. | appreciate
that, but also nmy right as a Chair of this
Commttee is to focus just on those DOE school s
and in the DOE in general. So | just wanted to
make that maybe clear to you as well. So |

al so wanted to just go back to the testimony by

M. Ballen, as well. And thank you for being
forthcom ng with your salary. | appreciate
that. It’s still higher than even what the

Chancellor is making to be honest with you.
Al t hough there are concerns about the pension
packages that city educators, city enployed

educators make, and |I hear that. | do just
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want to al so point out about the option in the
nei ghbor hood that you feel that you offered. So
and that’s a point that |I think the commttee
is trying to make. When charter schools open
and |1’ ve spoken to this, about this with Stacy
Gaut hier as well from Renai ssance Charter
School, it doesn’'t necessarily deal with an
issue in the immediate conmmunity, because the
charter school is open to the whole district,
and the selection process for who gets in there
is based on the District wide lottery, am!|l

ri ght about that?

MORTY BALLEN: So, | think two
t hought, first--three thoughts. I’ m not part of
t he Coalition, just wanted to--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] No,
| understand.

MORTY BALLEN: clear. 1’m hear
representing Explore, that’s nunber one. Nunber
two is | don’t--1 thought the Chancellor said
it was 250, so | think that salary that | nanmed
is below the Chancell or.

CHAI RPERSON DROVM No, the

Chancel l or’s making, | think, 195.
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MORTY BALLEN: Okay. Third, you
know, the approach that we’ve taken at Explore
for the last 12 years, schools are a product of
a community, parents and kids and teachers
wor ki ng together to a common goal, and when we
saw parents in a specific school based
community | ose what was dear to them their
| ocal school, and having no option, we said
instead of just starting a new charter school
just for kicks, those parents need sonething
and that was a partnership. That was a
partnership with | ocal eclectics, the New York
City Departnent of Ed, and the parents
t hensel ves. So you're right, | mean, we did
somet hi ng unique and different. We made a
preference for those parents because they | ost
something in their comunity. So--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] So
for people that want to get into the charter
schools, their parents have to be fairly aware
of the process that’s necessary to get into
t hose charter schools.

MORTY BALLEN: So we- -
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] And
that’s part of the issue here, is that often
times then the public schools are for |ack of
better words, left with parents who may not
have t hat know edge about how to mani pul ate the
systemto get their kids into the charter
school s, number one, and that then becomes an
i ssue, and then the whole issue of choice, and
this is something that 1’'ve spoken to the
Depart ment about for the years that |’ve been
on the board. They cannot abrogate their
responsibility to inmprove the |ocal regularly
funded public school, and it seens to us and
many of the members of this commttee woul d
agree with me, |I’m sure, that by opening | arge
nunbers of charter schools they are abrogating
their responsibility to inprove the |oca
public school s.

MORTY BALLEN: | have a solution and
a recomendation. Our history in those school s,
we literally got a map of the catchment area
and ny team and | personally knocked on every
parents door to say this is an option in your

community, we want you to join us. | agree with
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you that access, without access it’'s an issue.
The recomendation, if we |ook at cities |ike
Denver, New Orl eans, Newark, they have a
uni versal enrollment system So district
school s, charter schools, they're all on the
sheet that parents pick from So A it
i nocul ates the charters from picking certain
parents, and then they have the marketing
machi ne of the district so that every parent
gets every option. Who cares if it’'s a
district? Who cares if it’s a charter? These
are the schools in your community, and then
parents have a way to choose. |’ve talked to
Deputy Mayor Beury about it. |I’ve talked to the
Council about it. A universal enrollnment system
is a solve.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM So one of the
i ssues moving forward, then, is for nme, wll
every school become a charter school? So
wi t hout those additional resources, w thout you
know, inmprovenment in the public schools, then--
M RI AM NUNBERG: Can | just add
something to the point you were making

previously about the parents who have to seek
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out charter schools. | really want to stress
that particularly in our situation as a m ddle
school in a district of choice where the DOE
process i s unbelievably burdensome on parents
of fifth grade students. The process of apply,
| cannot tell you how many parents have said to
me, “I wish all schools were sinple to as BUGS
because the process of applying to m ddle
school and then high schools is a full time
job.” And so even though, yes, parents have to
be aware of the fact that there is a lottery to
apply to, it is so much sinmpler and nore
straight forward than the charter choice
process. So, | just--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [interposing] |I'm
not even going to actually try to argue agai nst
t hat, because the process to get into the
schools is very, very difficult, but I wl
argue the idea of choice, and if it’s really a
choice, and that’s what I'"mtrying to get at.
We say that public school parents have choices,
but often tinmes they don’t, and when we nmake a
conpetitive model for our schools rather than

col l aborative there are educational questions
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t hat surround that as well, and that is really
at the heart of my concern with charter
school s, because it’s a false option to say
that there’'s really a choice.

M RI AM NUNBERG. |’ m sorry, but |
have to ask you a question, which is howis
that |l ess of a choice than, or less fair?

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Because
ultimately people that don’t know about the
choices that they can make, wind up in a public
school and you have only children who are | ower
performers by virtue of whatever reason it is
in the public school, the |l ocal public school

MORTY BALLEN: But that’'s what |
think we should solve. | nean, | can’t--1"m not
going to speak for Ms. Davis and Ms. Lew s, but
if you' re telling themthat they can’t have a
choice where they're going to send their child,
" m not going to speak for--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [interposing] |I'm
not selling--1"mnot telling themthat. |I'm
just saying that it’s not a real choice. \When
the DOE and Charter operators say that it’s a

choice, it’'s not a real choice. | believe that
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every public school should be a good public
school, and that’s what we should be fighting
for.

RONALD CHALUI SAN:  So, Chairman
Dronm | really do want to agree and | just
have to say that my career here in New York
City, maybe it was luck when | got back to New
York, but | did work with a group of really
strong col | eagues under the | eadership of
Superintendent Alvarado in the |late 80's and
early 90's, and | think the push to nake very
good strong schools that offer different
approaches to education in order to match the
needs of students is a critical agenda item
And so having worked over 30 years with many,
many students who |learn in many, many different
ways, it’'s inportant. | alluded to adaptability
as one of the key issues that | think is
i mportant, but the notion that students need to
find places that support the type of |earning
that they need in order to be successful, |
think we need to fighting for schools that
provi de high--you re point early in the

session, whether it’s through constructivi st
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and construction or it is through career and
technical, high quality career and technica
education or it is a really rigorous kind of
sit down and Latin type, right? There are very
different types of model, different types of
educati onal models, the question is how do we
support all of those at high |levels of rigor so
famlies can actually choose for the match with
their child, and if we're not really fighting

that fight, the whole pitting of one agai nst

the other--1 worked in--1"ve seen bad district
schools, |1’ve seen bad charter schools, neither
of those should be available. | think we’ve

seen amazing public district schools and
amazi ng public charter schools, and there
shoul d be nothing standing in their way.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Unf ortunately,
politicians have gotten a hold of this. |
don’t--1 do consider nyself to be a politician
but | consider nyself first and forenost to be
an educator, actually, and when the issue gets
politicized as it did up in Al bany a few weeks
ago, then you have all the other dynam cs of

t hings that go on, and you have an unequa
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system which then hurts and harns our public
school students--

CHERYL DAVIS: | would just--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM And so |’ m very
glad to see that people are nmaking a
distinction with this coalition for conmmunity
charter schools that sonmewhat separates
thensel ves from some of the shenani gans and the
peopl e that performthese shenanigans up in
Al bany, and I’ m specifically speaking about Eva
and some of these other charter schools as
well, and | hope that you stick to it. WII any
of you there on the panel today--

CHERYL DAVI S: [interposing] But,
excuse nme.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Let ne j ust
finish nmy thought and then I'Il come back to
you. Do you agree about the orange shirt today?
Are you all willing to condemn the Coney Island
Prep School for this code of behavior?

CHERYL DAVIS: There's two sides to
every story.

MORTY BALLEN: Most, when | was

t hi nki ng about your question earlier, the
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research and data |I'd want is what is the
parent and the child think? They nmade a choice
to be part of that school community. If they
are saying | need to--

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]

MORTY BALLEN: [interposing] That--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM So you actually
support having a child wear an orange shirt
around the school ?

MORTY BALLEN: | support the
contract between the parent and the--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Woul d you want that for your children?

MORTY BALLEN: We don't do that at

Expl ore.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM \What ?

MORTY BALLEN: We don’t do that at
Expl ore.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM No, but do you
want that for your own--1 don’'t know if you

have chil dren, maybe you don’'t. Alright, so

let’s just say for your school.
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MORTY BALLEN: We’ve nade that
choice not to do that for our school, but to--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nter posi ng] But
are you willing to come out and speak agai nst
the policies that are bad in charter school s?

MORTY BALLEN: If parents know that
that’s policy, and they--because the code of
conduct is posted, and they’ ve signed up for
that, that is an exercise of choice. And
don’ t - -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] |
hear many stories of parents who have conme into
t oday that had no idea, and | can’t believe
t hat you woul d support a policy like this. It’s
offensive to me as an educator actually that
you would for the dignity of our children.

MORTY BALLEN: |I'm sorry, you’'re not
heari ng- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Woul d the other--

MORTY BALLEN: [interposing] You' re

not hearing what |’ m sayi ng.
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CHAl RPERSON DROMM  Wel |, alright.
|’d like to hear fromthe other people at this
poi nt .

CHERYL DAVIS: Well, | just wanted
to make a point on your statenment and your
perception of what choice is in your opinion,
and | can understand where you're comng from
as an educator and as a menber of the
comm ttee. However for ne as a parent with ny
story, | had--this was a choice for ne. It was
a choice that came from out of nowhere, because
|”m tal king 2002 when Explore first opened, and
this was a viable choice for me and ny famly,
and had it not been there, |I don’'t know if nmny
children would have succeeded as well as they
have without this--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] And
that’s where we have to work with parents,
because ulti matel y- -

CHERYL DAVIS: [interposing] Now, |
am al so- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] |

bel i eve that--
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CHERYL DAVI S: [interposing] a
parent - -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Excuse nme, but ulti--

CHERYL DAVIS: [interposing]
advocate for education.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Excuse ne.

Excuse nme. But ultimately, | believe that you
really had no choice.

CHERYL DAVIS: Well, | understand
your perception of that.

CHAI RPERSON DROVM Because you
didn’t have a public school that was viable for
you to go to. So that’s the point I'"'mtrying to
make, and that’s why--

CHERYL DAVI S: [interposing] Had it
not been for Explore--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] we
have to have good public--

CHERYL DAVIS: [interposing] | would
not have had any choice. Had it not been for
Expl ore- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [interposing] |I'm

sorry?
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CHERYL DAVIS: Had it not been for
Expl ore Charter School | would not have had a
choi ce.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM So we're actually
in agreenment.

CHERYL DAVI S: [interposing]

However, | am an advocate of education, and

do vehemently believe that all schools should
be good, and this is why | said in ny statenent
that had it not been for the decline of the
public education school systemin the first

pl ace, maybe we woul dn’'t even be sitting here
having this conversation. But having said that,
if it had not been for Explore charter school |
woul d not have had a choice, | would have had
to go to ny district school which was not
capabl e of handling my child s needs at that
time.

MELANIE LEWS: Mel anie Lew s again.
|’ m just hoping that nmore parents can be
proactive so that we don’t get in positions
where we're just reactive to situations, and
t hat goes for our educational system W seem

to be reactive. Before charter schools even
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came to existence we had a problemin our

di strict schools that has not been resolved and
that’s the area that we do need to continue to
work on, and if we just take the best practices
and i nplement theminto our existing district
schools, we can see nore positive results.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM | agree, and |
think that’s what has not happened, and | think
we need to make sure that that does happen.
Where that does happen it’s been successful. |
just want to go to--

MELANI E LEW S: [interposing] Thank
you.

CHAI RPERSON DROVMM Ms. Nunberg. Your
opi nion on orange shirts?

M RI AM NUNBERG. Well, | woul d have
to go back to ny experience working for 14
years as an attorney in the US Department of
Educati on where | would hear all sorts of
clainms about all sorts of horrible practices
that | would i mmedi ately, being a good bl eedi ng
hard, condemm. And then | would do a | ot of
research into finding out the whole story, so |

can say that at BUGS we do not have a policy
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l'i ke that, and our policy is nmuch nore about,
as | said in ny testinony, restorative justice
and trying to have students work together in
things |ike peer nediation. So |I would want to
really understand where that policy cane from
before I would condemm it. It does not sound
l'i ke a choice | would make, however

CHAI RPERSON DROMM 1t’s amazi ng that
you don’t--1 read it. | told you were it canme
from

RONALD CHALUI SAN: | woul d say- -

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] And
that you’'re unwilling to condemm that is not

good as educators.

RONALD CHALUI SAN: | woul d say as a
statement of policy, | would really chall enge
that policy. | don’'t believe that exclusionary

polices are good for students. Having said
that, | do agree that there acts not policy

t hat need to be investigated. People act,
sonmetimes reactively, and you don’t have the
full story. So I'’m making a differentiation
bet ween policy and acts. And | would say that

having said that | would also want to | ook very
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closely at a practice that we do do regularly,
whi ch is suspensions, which also are
exclusionary, and | think we need to think very
deeply as a system what are the possibilities
ot her than suspension, because that is a
commonly used practice which is not questioned
as often. So | woul d broaden your conversation
to say what are the exclusionary policies that
are placed upon on your people and how do we
react differently to those in transition from
t he ones that we already accept onto things
that are nore restorative in nature.

CHAI RPERSON DROVMM Wel |, thank you.

| hope that you will all take a | ook at that
policy, it’s online, and that you will cone out
strongly against it. Thank you very nuch. 1°'d

i ke to ask Reverend Raynond Rivera to come up
pl ease fromthe Famly Life Charter School.
Sylvia Tyler fromthe Parents and Educators,
come up. Brooke Parker from District 14. Bob
Hi Duck [sic]--HuDock, |I'msorry, fromthe
Communi ty Educati on Council 20, Nancy Northrop,
Queens Hi gh School President’s Council. OCkay,

and we have received additional testinony for
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the record from Uncommon Schools, from Public
Prep, from Mriam Aristy-Farer, a parent at PS
314 and CEC 6 President, Zakiyah Ansari from
the Alliance for Quality Educati on, M ndy
Rosier [sp?] from PS 811 and the Annenberg
I nstitute, no name but from Annenberg Institute
as well. Alright, Reverend Rivera, would you
like to start? Thank you for your patience as
well. | really appreciate staying here the
whol e time. Thank you very much.

RAYMOND RI VERA: Thank you, M.
Chairman for having this nmeeting. It’s
certainly one of the public discourse issues
that is polarizing the city so | conmmend you
for having this hearing. I’mgoing to just make
a--read a brief paragraph and then |I'’m going to
shorten nmy presentation. I'"mgoing to try to
stay within the three m nutes, or maybe go a
couple of mnutes over if you allow me. My name
is Reverend Raynond Rivera. | am President of
the Latino Pastoral Action Center, as a pastor
and a founder of Famly Life Academy Charter
Schools. Our first school started 12 years ago.

We have a second one that’s three years old, a
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third one opening up now in Septenmber, and we
are a community-grown charter schools. That
means we’'re organic to the comunity. We cane
out of the community base organi zation, and as
an activist for 45 years in this city, |
participated in the battle for comunity
control of schools in the 60's that led to a
citywide strike led by the United Federati on of
Teachers. During that time many parents,
activists, and brave teachers crossed the

pi cket lines to open the schools and continue
to serve our children. VWhen charter schools
came to our state | saw it as the continuation
of our struggle to achieve a community contro
of our schools. When charters started, | saw
that it had the very things that we had fought
for such as being able to hire our own

t eachers, being able to hire our own
principals. 1t freed us fromthe Central
Board’'s bureaucracy. It allowed us to have
boards that reflected the ethnic conposition of
our students and parents. So when you hear the
rhetorical statements here of parents and

community, my board reflects the community. My
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PTA President and Vice President by charter
have to be nmenbers of the Board. So parents at
our charter schools are policy makers, and they
are, along with our comunity businessman and
ot her comunity | eaders, the board of our
school. So when we tal k about this public
accountability, there hasn’'t been public
accountability since Mayoral control. W | ost
that in decentralization and all of these other
configurations. While |I respect their work,
they really have been devoid of power and
really have no meani ngful power. Even under
decentralization we didn’'t have comunity
control of schools. So charters that are really
community grown are the closest thing that we
have to community control of schools, where the
board members actually reflect the communities
that they come from A couple of nore
statements that in nmy opinion have been

di storted here. Nunmber one, charter schools
have caused the tension within public schools
because they are co-located in public school
buil dings. Let me declare for the record, ny

t hree schools are not co-located. We own our
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own buildings. So I’m not defending our own
situation. The tension that exists in schools
and co-located sites did not start with charter
schools. This tension was highly evident during
the small school movenent, small acadeny
movement and the restructuring of alternative
schools. Most of the co-located schools are not
charter schools, and there’s tension when you
restructure a school froma min school, all of
t hose principals based on nmy experience as an
activist always had tension fighting for space,
and it had absolutely nothing to do with
charter schools. So to perpetuate that myth
that all tension started with charter school s,
respectfully is alnmost an intentional lie. It’'s
al nost an intentional lie. There's been

tensi ons al ways in schools. Number two, charter
public schools are given nore noney than public
schools, not true. The per pupil allocation for
charter schools is |less. Number three, all
charter schools do not serve English | anguage

| earners and children with special needs. MWy
school s were founded, in the charter is says we

are to serve English | anguage | earners and
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speci al need children. That was the reason for
a m ssion because the board of education
consistently during my lifetinme used English
| anguage | earners as an escape saying that it
was the fault of the famlies not the fault of
the children. Number four, all charter schools
are part of huge and wealthy managenent
organi zations. Not true. At |east 50 charter
schools are comunity based, struggling, and to
add injury to insult, M. Chairman, and | hope
you take our clause on this, the recent
| egi sl ati on passed by Governor Cuono gives the
nost weal thy charter schools reinbursenment for
their space and left us out. The snmaller
schools that are paying in private space
struggling that are comunity grown are not
part of that |egislation. Let me end by saying
this, as an activist for 45 years | w sh
Counci | Menber Barron was here because her
Past or Reverend Herb Daughtry [sp?] and her
husband, | wal ked across the bridge in the
fight for community control. | never thought I
saw t he day where we would romanticize the

Board of Education. | hope that you as a
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Chai rman and as a comm ttee chairman not only
focus on us. We wel cone your focus. We wel conme
for you to nmonitor us, to evaluate us. The six
percent, we invite you to come into the
school s, do what you have to do, but we hope
you focus on the 94 percent that historically
has faced our children. We hope you continue to
focus on this discipline party, on this
di scipline policy that | disagree with, the
orange shirt, but | hope you also focus on the
education to prison pipeline that consistently
our children that are being failed not by
charter schools, but by the system as a whol e
wind up in prisons. | hope we focus on that, on
how do we not only reform charter schools, but
we reformthe whol e educational public system
That’ s where our focus should be. That’'s where

| humbly ask you to work with this commttee

maki ng all public schools accountable. I'’m a
uni on man too. Matter of fact, | stood next to
you on denonstrations with m ni mum wage, |iving

wage, stop and frisk, and |’'ve always been pro-
uni on, but I"m no pro-union to the extent of

def endi ng i nconpetent teachers. |I’m not pro-
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union to the extent of consistently standing up
for failing schools after all the resources
have been given that historically fail our
children. The price is too high. For 45 years
we’ve tried to change 110 Livingston Street.
We’ve tried to change Tweed [sic] now. It
continues. We have to focus on the whole system
on the 94 percent that historically has not
serviced our children well. Thank you for
listening to me.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you.
Reverend Rivera, | just want to take a little
bit of issue with you in terms of defending
i nconpetent teachers. We have seen all the
focus over the last 12 years being on teachers,
and | think what we need to do is to take the
focus off of the teachers and put it squarely
where it belongs, which is on the Department of
Education. And the prior Admnistration is to
be hel d accountable for what they did. This
di scipline policy was inplemented, for exanple,
during the prior Adm nistration. No

accountability, no oversight was exercised
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there. How these things can happen, | don’t
know.

RAYMOND RI VERA: And | di sagree with
the policy, M. Chairman. | totally support you

on that, and let me say ny wife, so she would
kill me, so | don’t want you to take ny words
out of context. My wife is a career teacher, a
retired principal, she's been a life-I|ong
educator, so I'mtotally support of teachers.
What |’ m tal king about is inconpetent teachers,
is teachers that really have no calling for
teachers. They don’'t have a vocation to teach
Those people after they’ve been supported by
the district, after they get all the
professi onal devel opment that they need, after
they’'re fully backed by you and the districts,
if at the end of the line they still can't
teach, they got to go. They have to find
somet hi ng el se.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM The problemis
that they're--the problemis is that they're
rarely afforded those opportunities, and

there’'s a very small nunber- -
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RAYMOND RI VERA: [interposing] But |
support those opportunities.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM  Yeah, but
there’s a very small nunmber who fall into that
category. | have to tell you, when | was
teaching there maybe were three or four
teachers in nmy 25 year career who did not
bel ong in the classroom and nobody wanted
them the principal--1 was the UFT rep. The
princi pal nmoved agai nst them and | would often
times work to try to counsel them out of the
profession to say to them maybe it’'s time to
nove on, maybe you don’'t want to be here and
conme to sone type of a solution. Even | as a
teacher in the public school system didn t want
the kids if I would get them from another cl ass
or from a teacher who was inconpetent, because
then it created problens for me when those kids
came into ny cl ass.

RAYMOND RI VERA:  So- -

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt [ i nterposing] So
nobody has ever been pro inconpetence, but
uni ons by their nature do have to give

everybody a opportunity to present their side
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of it as well, and so I think actually you and
| - -

RAYMOND RI VERA: [interposing] On
t he same page.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM have many areas
of common ground here as | do with some of the
ot her members of the Coalition of Community
Charter Schools as well. So thank you for your
testi nony.

RAYMOND RI VERA: Thank you for
listening to me.

CHAI RPERSON DROVMM Let’s go to our
next witness.

RAYMOND RI VERA: Sorry | get
passi onate because |’ m a preacher.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM You are
i npassi oned and | appreciate that. It’'s good.

SLYVI A TYLER: Well, this has been a
wonder ful day for me. | alnost didn't cone.
Lots of tinmes | almpst didn't stay, but | want
to preface--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] And
can you just state your name for the record,

so?
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SYLVI A TYLER: Okay, | will. Sylvia
Tyler is nmy nanme. I'm-well, 1’1l read ny
statement, but | want to preface. |’m so happy

t hat we have an educator chairing this
commttee, because | go back to all of that,
the history that he’s tal king about and | was
very actively trying to not get the state to
not give the education systemto the Mayor, to
put himin charge. | |obbied the politicians,
but that’s another story. And another preface,
| want to say, ny educational training was

mai nly basically intrinsic values for |earning
was very significant and al so we believed in
positive reinforcenent, not orange shirts,
definitely not. Everything like that is very
detrimental. It’s not education. You're
preparing them for prison in ny view Okay?
Now, |'m going to read--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] And
incidentally, it’s the same color. And nmaybe
that’s not incidental. Maybe that’s purpose.

SYLVI A TYLER: But that’'s strange,
because that’'s ny favorite color. My living

roomis orange. It really is nmy favorite, but
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it’s a positive color, but anyway. MW
perspective: | have experienced the New York
City public school system from vari ous
perspectives. | was a student. My children
attended New York City public schools. My
grandchildren also attended them Finally, |
was an el ementary school teacher for 28 years.
| taught 13 years of those years in District 10
in the Bronx. Thank goodness | had real
educational adm nistrators to help nme become a
good teacher that | thought | was. And then 15
years | taught in District Five in Harlem and
| retired in 2003. M ssing nmy profession,
began to substitute the follow ng year. Now

t hese experiences have giving me the privilege
to view many different schools firsthand.
Overwhel m ngly, these experiences have been
positive. Overwhelm ng, | have to say.

However, my inpression of the inmpact of the
Success Acadeny Charter School co-location and
several schools where |I’ve worked have been
negative. And I won't go into the details, but
| ”ve observed firsthand negative. And one of

the main things, |’ve observed that the
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separation of the SA students from the regul ar
students has created a sense of superiority and
inferiority between the two sets of students,
and that is absolutely very, very serious. That
shoul d be dealt with. The use of genera
facilities, lunch room auditoriunms, gymmasiuns
for exanple greatly limt the time that
students get to use them Lunch schedul es can
be from 10: 00 a.m through 2:00 p.m Students
who are scheduled for the early and |late |unch
periods are very likely to have their already
serious food choice problenms conmpounded.
There' s already a serious problemw th bad diet
that | eads to bad health and those early
unches and |l ate lunch is terrible. The recent
debacl e about Mayor de Blasio cancelling a
percent age of the new co-|locations very clearly
illustrated the favoritismgiven to the Success
Acadeny Charter Schools. There was much outcry
in the media about unfairness toward the | ess

t han 200 of the SAC students and virtually no
mention of the unfairness toward all of the
much | arger nunber of regular school children

who have to find a place for thenselves in
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Sept ember. Not hi ng was sai d about them | never
even heard a reporter and say how many of those
students there were. | know the charter schoo
was 190 some students, but there were many nore
ot her students that were not mentioned. And I
have to inject that de Blasio |lost this one and
the Governor is with the charter schools. Eva
Moskowi tz won that fight, in nmy view There's
not hing fair about the media shining |light on
si x percent of our student population and only
giving mnimal attention to the other 94
percent of our students. AlIl of our students
are val uabl e and deserve the same | evel of
support and protection. Further, we nust have
more |ight shone on success in the public
school system And that’s ny statenent.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you very
much, and | deeply appreciate that, and you hit
some very good points there and thank you very
much. Who will be next?

NANCY NORTHROP: Okay, I'Il go. Is
t hat okay? Good afternoon. My nane is Nancy
Northrop. I'’mthe President of the Queens High

School President’s Council, which represents
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all the high school PA’s and PTA's in Queens. |
al so serve on the Chancellor’s Parent Advisory
Council’s Executive Board. So | just wanted to
interject. There was a question earlier about
charter schools and PTA's and whether they're
on CPAC [sic], and as far as we understand they
are not part of the President’s Council CPAC
structure. Although, we would wel cone them
We woul d wel cone them because we |ike to
represent all parents. | think it’s inportant
to note that ny kids attend traditional public
schools, and | don’t think that | even know any
kids that attend a charter school. Co-location
and over-crowdi ng are both significant problens
in Queens. We have written extensively to the
new Chancel | or about these issues, however |’ m
very concerned that the current debate over
charter schools has become a huge distraction,
paral yzing the DOE, Mayor’'s Office and City
Council from taking meani ngful steps to truly
address these issues. Recent debates over
charter schools have |l ed many to believe that
overcrowdi ng and co-l ocations are being caused

by charter schools. Queens schools at all
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grade |l evels are notoriously over-crowded with
wel |l over 30 students in some first grade
cl assroonms, high schools that operate in shifts
and trailers housed in spaces that should be
used for athletics, but overcrowding in Queens
has nothing to do with charter schools, nor do
charter schools have anything to do with the
huge co-location debacle in Queens. And | want
to just point out that when Noah tal ked earlier
about all these parents in Queens turning out
agai nst charter co-locations, we don’'t have
t hat issues. These issue--the co-locations that
are happening in Queens involve other public
schools. Alright. At the Queens’ high school’s
Presi dent Council, our opposition to co-
| ocati on does not center on the prograns. Many
of these progranms may be wonderful, new thened
school s and CT progranms created on a small
school model. None of the high school co-
| ocations in our high schools even involve
charters. Our concern center on the | ack of
parent and community involvement and input into
deci sion making at their own schools, parent

anger that struggling schools with new
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principals face a prospect of trying to turn
around their existing schools with the
di sruption, conmplication and culture shock of
co-location thrown into the m x, and fears of
even further over-crowding with science | abs
and art roonms being turned into classroom space
and adm nistrative offices. We are frustrated
that all the parents that have turned out
fighting against their co-locations and their
school s are somehow getting subsunmed into this
charter school issue that has nothing to do
with them Rather than focusing on charter
schools, | hope the City Council will focus on
the true issue at the heart of this debate,
which is sinply that more schools need to be
built. In Queens, this is true for al
education levels, elenmentary, m ddle and high
school. | hope the Mayor and City Council wil
show as much dedi cation and resolve in finding
ways to solve this much nmore difficult problem
as they have at focusing attention on the
relatively mnor distraction of charter
schools. And | just want to nake one | ast point

which is not in my testinmony, which is to say
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we’ ve tal ked about a | ot of issues today of
whi ch many |’ m very synpat hetic about. For
example, the humliating discipline issues that
you tal ked about, but | will prom se you there
are schools, and | can do it nyself or parents
that can tal k about the humliation that sone
of their own children have faced in public
schools. This is not unique to charter school s.
Unfair resources in Queens, we have school s
that are converted warehouses next--w thout
gyms, without auditoriuns, with barely a
cafeteria next to gorgeous new beautifully
built high schools, some that offer AP courses
and have great athletic prograns and some that
can offer none of that. There are huge
di sparities within the public school system
that need to be addressed, not to nention every
other issue. It’s not a--to nme, it’s not a
charter school issue, so | hope we can all join
t oget her and work to inprove the education
system regardl ess of charter or not charter.
There are huge fundanental issues that need to
be addressed and | hope we can do that. That’'s

al | .
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CHAl RPERSON DROMM Okay, so thank
you. Just before | let the | ast speaker speak,
just a point of clarification. There are sone
charter schools now that are going to be com ng
in, particularly into the Jamaica area of
Queens, | believe at PS 59. I’m not exactly
sure. AmI| right? Yes. And so it’s Success
Acadeny that’s comng in. So that is happening
in Queens- -

NANCY NORTHROP: [interposing] But
t he high school |evel the Aug Smart [sic] and
t he magnet charter school, the Martin Van
Buren- -

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] But

| was at a conmunity meeting in Canmbria [sic]

Hei ght s.
NANCY NORTHROP: Yeah, | was there.
CHAI RPERSON DROMM You wer e both
t here?
NANCY NORTHROP: | heard you. We
were--1 was there. You heard me speak.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Yes, and so

they’ re getting the co-location. That was what -
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NANCY NORTHROP: [interposing]

They' re getting--but it’s not--1 was--because |
asked. | asked the parent, the PTA President
fromthe school, it’s not--but it’s not a

charter. It’s just a regular school. OQur
probl ems, as a rule, not charter schools.
They’' re- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Okay, well, | thought it was charter, could be
wrong. You know.

NANCY NORTHROP: Yeah, 1’ m tal king
hi gh school .

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Al right, so |et
me--are you going to testify? Okay, so we'll
hear fromyou in a nmonment. Yeah, okay. So the
other thing is that there’'s a different
situation when we tal k about discipline codes,
DOE versus charter, in particular in this case.
Okay? Because this is unique in the sense that
it’s protocol for that school. It’s witten in
their policies. The DOE does not have this
written in their policy and if a teacher in a
DOE school did this, I'"'mtell you right here

and now they would be arrested.
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NANCY NORTHROP: 1’'m just going to--

|’m just going to say my experience is that

there are simlar things that happen all the

time in public school s--
CHAI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]

They happen but they’'re not in the code.

NANCY NORTHROP: And they may not--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
This is actually in the code.

NANCY NORTHROP: be in the code,
parents conpl ain and not hing happens. So I’
not--1 mean, nmy understandi ng- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]

there is an area--1 hear you

but

m

And

NANCY NORTHROP: So what |’ m sayi ng

is | would encourage you to | ook at discipl

i ne

issues. It’s not just charter schools. | think

they' re--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]

Ri ght, so we do | ook at discipline issues and

as a matter of fact, | think in June if not

June then Septenber when we reconvene after

sumer, we’'re going to have a hearing on

restorative discipline practices. The fact

t he

t hat
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there are nore school safety agents in the
public schools than there are gui dance
counselors is a huge issue of concern to ne.

NANCY NORTHROP: | agree.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM We're going to
| ook at that, but there' s a distinction to be
made between having a school that has the
orange shirt policy wwitten into their
di sci pline code and the DOE policies. | am
going to go after and I"'m going to | ook at the
DOE policies as well, but this is unique in
t hat sense.

NANCY NORTHROP: | just want to get
t he one exanple that was horrendous out of
Queens, though, which was at a | ocal mddle
school with the little girl who was writing
with a sharpie on her desk. She was escorted
out by policeman, the policeman for the 112'M
precinct who came over, which was outrageous.
mean, |’ m just saying--

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [ i nter posi ng]
Ri ght .

NANCY NORTHROP: they’'re horrible. So

|’ m synpathetic to what you' re saying. | just--
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| just think it’s a broader issue. That’'s al
|’ m saying. It’s a broader issue.
CHAI RPERSON DROMM So we’ ve

addressed the issues with the Chancell or as

well, and we’'re going to, but there' s a place
to come to for that. Wthout the oversight, we
don’t have that. So anyway, |’'m basically

agreeing. And just to go to Reverend Rivera
again, if you re tal king about charter school s,
and | think you said this in your testinony as
wel |, as being places where parents have nore
community control, nobody can argue with that.
| use Renai ssance as an exanpl e of where that
really does occur. And so that I'min full
agreement with and but there's also from some
of the testimony that we heard here today, a

di stinction to be made between charter school s

who live up to that prom se and then those who

don’' t.

RAYMOND RI VERA: Right. And M.
Chairman, | appreciate you recognizing that and
affirmng that. All I’m saying is that--and the

reason we organi zed the Community Coalition of

School s is whether intentionally or not there’'s
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one person that has becone the face of charter
schools as evident in this neeting. It really
coul d have been called the public hearing on
Eva Moskowitz. | mean, she dom nated this
meeting so nmuch. That just creates, and |
respect her. |’ m not denoni zing her. She has a,
you know, whatever she’'s doing | support all
school s, parochial schools, alternative
school s, private schools, anything that hel ps
us reform Tweed [sic] Street, I'’mfor all kind
of schools, but to paint all charter schools
with one brush in the continuing public
di scourse, that doesn’t help anybody. And
that’s all 1’m saying. We have to have a nore
bal anced approach that Eva does not--is not the
whol e face of the charter school movenent, and
that’s all | call for--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] And
| couldn’t agree with you--

RAYMOND RI VERA: this balance, this
bal ance.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM: | coul dn’t agree

with you nmore, and |I actually tried today to
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take, to go to extents to make sure that this
was not all about Eva. It’s amazing.

RAYMOND RI VERA: | know, but she’s
S0, you know.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM She’ s not even
here.

RAYMOND RI VERA: | know.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM  Okay? And that
to me is a statenment in and of itself about
where she’s at. But | will say this also, when
| asked several of the other charters, they did
not di stinguish thenselves from Eva, and that’s
a problemw thin the charter novenment that you
within the charter novenment need to deal with,
| hope that that’'s part of what’s going to go
on with the community base charter schoo
organi zation, the coalition.

RAYMOND RI VERA: Well, one nore

response. This is not speaking for the

coalition. | want to state unequivocally |I'm
for all schools. If billionaires want to conme
into High Bridge and give ne a mllion dollars,
"1l take it. I"mfor private academes. |I'm

for parochial schools. I'"'mfor alternative
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schools. I’mfor public schools. Those are just
tools in our arsenal. Anything that hel ps
children of color not to fail, |’ m supportive
of it.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMMt Al right. Let’s
hear from our final wi tness on this panel

BROOKE PARKER: Hi, nmy nane is
Brooke Parker. Thank you for giving me the
opportunity to speak to this. I'm sure some of
what ||l speak to will ring true for a | ot of
the testinony that you’ve previously heard and
| hope to shed some new |light and offer sonme
suggestions. | ama parent, a former nember at
CC for District 14 and a foundi ng nenber of
grassroots, 100 percent grassroots, no funding
group called WAGPOPS, W I |iansburg and
Greenpoi nt Parents at Our Public Schools. W’ ve
di scovered--we’'re 900 strong and grow ng, and
we represent schools from Buschwi ck and Bed-
Stuy all the way to Greenpoint. W' ve
di scovered significant problenms with the
charter schools in our district. Some are
specific to the charters in our district and

some are endem c. Unlike you, charters are our
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problem Now, it’s inmportant to repeat that
nei ghbor hood public schools represent very
hyper local communities. We have--1I am data
driven, and | believe in best practices, and |
believe that there’'s a whole set of data that
we haven’'t seen that sheds |ight on this
particular issue, and | praise this bill, and I
woul d like to push it farther. Sone people have
al ready tal ked about the rampant resegregation
that occurs with unfettered school choice. This
has i npacted district 14 significantly, nostly
because we al so have magnet schools that were
designed to end Latino isolation in our
schools. Charter schools comng into that m x
have only increased segregation. So that when
one charter school praises itself for having 50
percent free and reduced lunch, well our
nei ghbor hood public schools have |ike 100
percent, most of them And the charters, every
singl e one of them has between 20 and 30
percent |ess free reduced |unch than the public
schools in that area. And | think it’s
i mportant that we be hyper | ocal about this. |

think it’s inportant that we di saggregate data,
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because the citywi de data may be 12 percent
ELL's, but we have nei ghborhood public schools
K through five that are 28 percent English

| anguage | earners. You know, these are very

| ocal issues and the inmpact of this is felt
very locally. So when you talk cityw de zoning
district, you need to very careful about the
numbers that you use because you can push and
pull data any way you choose. And we need to be
aware of that. If we’'re going to be proactive
versus reactive, we need to be proactive about
segregation. We need to have very real and
current data regarding charter schools. So I'm
going to nove on beyond that. It’'s inmportant to
note that in the authorization of charter
schools, they' re irrespective of sound city

pl anni ng, 100 percent. SUNY charter school has-
-institute has--you know, |I've met with them
and they have reaffirmed that City Planning is
not in their rubric at all. Meaning, in ny
district, which where the census nunbers of
school aged children has rapidly decreased, we
keep getting nore and nore charter elenmentary

schools. We don't have the students for them
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It’s forcing schools to be under enrolled and
to hurt their budget. So in addition to
resegregati ng our schools, we now have sonme
school s that should have nore students that
don’t. | also want to discuss--oh, actually
before I nmove onto that, this is very
important. | have a few very inportant issues
and | really beg your patience and I'Il try and
be quick about all of them When we talk about
the wait lists for schools |ike Success
Acadeny, but many nore, it is essential to note
t hat we cannot get any first year enroll nent
nunbers, and the reason why we can’'t get any
first year enroll ment nunmbers, we discovered
because we | ooked at the School Construction
Aut hority’s nunbers. That’s the only place you
can get first year charter school nunbers. It’s
because so many of them are under the | egal
[imt that would allow themto open. The | aw
says they have to be 20 percent of their target
figures, and so many Success Academ es don’t
make that mark. So many other charter school s
don’t make that mark, including Citizens of the

Worl d Charter School WIIliamsburg in ny
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district that was at 56 students they opened
with, and their target was 126. So SUNY wi sely
put them on probation when we forced themto,
and their response was to cone up with an
enrol Il ment plan, and I’m going to get to
mar keti ng next. Their response was to cone up
with an enroll ment plan that SUNY approved of,
whi ch included a whi sper canpai gn, where they
quietly told parents to hurry, seats are
filling fast. So they willfully deceived
parents, pulled them out of the schools that
they were in making all kinds of prom ses to
get themto fill their numbers because students
mean noney, and they didn’t want to close. This
is another org--Citizen’ s of the World, I'm
going to talk about them as exanples, but
they're reflective of | think other problens,
the system c problem of obfuscation, where we
are not able to get to the facts. We tried
foiling Success Acadeny’s figures. For their
enrol I ment numbers for their first years, they
told us they didn’'t have them You know? Harsh
di scipline practices have cone up and I am so

happy that they have, because there is--we
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shoul d no | onger talk about high quality
charter schools without at the same nmoment

| ooking at their school climte. It’'s
irresponsi bl e and you know, we discussed how

t he Departnment of Ed, the Federal Department of
Ed has made exclusionary discipline practices a
big focus. It is inportant to note that the
nost egregi ous exanples of them come from our
charter schools. I’Il put it out there right
now, | think that orange shirt is repulsive.
woul d never accept that happening to my child,
and as tax payers, we should accept that
happening to any child, and it doesn’'t even
matter if the parents agree, because can agree
that their children can be spanked and we woul d
not allow tax payer dollars to go towards that.
It is abusive. The padded room for KIP Charter
El ementary School is abusive where kids urinate
and vomt in that room and they're still

al l owed to have this. W' ve also noted through
FO L that Citizens of the World Charter school
whi ch markets itself as progressive has amassed
34 out of school suspensions in its first year

with just kindergarten and first graders, 34
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out of school suspensions and over 450 office
referrals. And this is a school, again, that
mar kets itself as progressive. \When near by
nei ghbor hood public schools with a full span of
K through Five have zero suspensions. The
deceptive marketing practices really speaks to
choice. And again, | apologize. Parents are not
aware of what they’'re choosing. They--it’s one
thing to tal k about outreach, but there are no
fine print to the marketing materials. There’'s
no fine print. Parents aren’t told. The Success
Acadeny Student Handbook wasn’t put in Spanish
until 2013. And you can try foiling this
information, and it’'s nearly inpossible to get
it. Every other industry has regul ations on
fal se advertising and it’s unacceptable that we
have all owed charters to market their schools
any way they please, making any prom se they
want when tax payers and fam lies pay the
price. Board issues: Every charter school is
run by its Board of Directors, yet their
m nutes are not captured for the public. Very
few of them publish their m nutes. Very few of

t hem publish when their meetings happen. You
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can’t find a Success Acadeny agenda anywhere.
VWho knows when their board neetings take place.
This is very troubl esone. We’'ve seen utterly
i nept Board of Directors at Citizens of the
Worl d when they were operating and executing
docunents without a full board for months. W
have no agency that keeps track of these boards
and ensures that they re doing their job. So
|’ mgoing to end with this. The recent, you
know, the State Conmptroller can’t do his job to
audit charter schools, and there is no state
agency. We’'ve uncovered fraud at Citizens of
the World Charter Schools, where their outside
organi zation is charging eight percent
licensing fees sinmply for the right to use
their name, and we have all kinds of docunments
that attribute to this fraud and there’s
nowhere to go. The buck doesn’'t stop anywhere.
VWhile we are offering greater and faster
funding streans to charter schools, it’s our
belief and experience that SUNY Charter School
I nstitute has a very high turnover and is too
understaffed to manage the wei ghty

responsibility that they have to New York City
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students and tax payers. It is essential that
we have a watch person. We'd |like to see the
m nut es of board meetings published in one
single place, and we would like the fine print
published in the marketing materials. That’s
one thing, and also the accountability of every
single aspect, teacher attrition, services for
| EPs, nunbers and | engths of suspensions so
t hat parents know what it is that they' re
choosi ng and what rights they give up when they
sign that contract.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Wl | thank you
for that thorough testimny. | do appreciate
it, and shining the Iight of transparency on
these issues is vitally inmportant to this
commttee and that’s why we held this hearing
today, and | thank you for your contributions
very, very nmuch. Thank you. Thank you to this
panel, and we’ll call up our next panel. So
Angel a Garsus [sp?], Uderka Val dez [sp?]
Tandrea Lang, Maria Valtista [sp?] and Jim
McCay [sp?]. Okay. Tiffany Liston? She's gone?
G na Sardi fromthe Montessori Charter School .

Okay. Shubert Jacobs from the Bronx Charter
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School for better |earning. No, okay. And
Mel i ssa Pl owden- Norman [sp?] from Excell ence
Boys Charter School. No? Here we go. Lorraine
G ttens-Bridges. [off m c] Okay, please raise
your right hand. | need to swear you in. Do
you swear or affirmto tell the truth, the
whol e truth and nothing but the truth in your
testinony before this commttee and to respond
honestly to Council Menmber questions?

PANEL AS A WHOLE: [off mic] | do.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Okay, thank you.
Where shoul d we begin?

MELI SSA PLOWDEN- NORMAN: My name is
Mel i ssa Pl owden- Norman [sp?] and |'m a parent
of a young man at Excell ence Boys Charter
School . | have the honor of being a very
i nvol ved parent in charter school, and also |

had the honor of being a very involved parent

in traditional school as well. | was very
active. | have been the Parent Associ ation
President. 1’ve been the President of CEC 13

and |’ve al so was one of two representatives on
t he high school council. | was in two

traditional school co-locations with my ol dest
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son. On the m ddle school level it was a
positive relationship with the two
adm ni strations. However, it was not--1'm
sorry, it was not a positive relationship with
the two Adm nistrations. However, on the high
school level, the co-location was excellent. It
was three high schools in the buil ding.
Adm ni stration were together and put their egos
aside. They do all their sports together, nusic
and performng arts together, and I’'m able to
say that when it comes to co-location, it did
start with traditional and not charter school,
and serving in the capacities that |I have |I’'ve
seen a |l ot of problemwith co-location and it
had nothing to do with charter school. You
woul d not even know that the three school s that
were in the building were separate school s.
There are nmore of the traditional co-locations
than charter, and like | said, many of them
have extensive problems. On the charter side
|”m very involved with activities, teacher
staff, principals and head of school. | have
everyone’ s personal cell nunbers. | |love the

fact that | do not have to m cromanage
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academ cs. | have been ny two son’s first
teacher. I’mglad to have a choice, even though
you say it’s not a choice, but |I’m glad because

| was very instrumental in doing nmy homework
when it canme to applying for schools, and | was
educat ed about nmy choices. | went into
everything fully know ng what each school had
to offer, and |I took that job very seriously.

It was |like a college process for ne. So | did
choose the lottery process for nmy son who has
been in charter school for seven years, and |I'm
still just as pleased as | was from day one,
and when we did the college, | mean--1"msorry,
t he charter school process, they knew nothing
about my son. My son did not attend preschool

| was his first teacher. When he got into
school he could read, wite, do math,
everything, but they did not know that when he
was accepted into the school. And dealing with
both traditional and charter school, | have

wi tnessed a huge difference in class
managenent. My son attends the all boys charter
school, Excellence and we’'re under unconmon

schools where there is no fighting and no
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bullying. | believe alarm ngly that we have
bi gger issues to address |like the suicide rates
of our children due to peer bullying and
children dying at the hands of their own peers.
My ol dest son is finishing his second year of
college two years early. He has just turned 18
and he’ll be finishing his second year of
college. His high school was already aligned
with the Common Core standards prior to its
roll out. My other son who is in charter school
al so was already aligned as well with the
Common Core standards. At his charter school,
they do not teach to the test, they incorporate
everything into their teaching and have
children focused on college from ki ndergarten
My son’s first college fair was at six years
old and he could identify most of the coll eges
and universities there. He was al so sel ected
one of 30 students in the New York City area to
attend VASA [sic] College for this nonth of
July as an on-canpus student. He is 11 years
old and is in his second year of m ddle school
Adm ni stration engaged parents and addressed

their concerns. While my child does not have a
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behavi or issue, | was instrumental in changing
t he behavi or system at my son’s school s.
suggested that they put in a reward system
instead of a punitive one. They listened. MW
concern was not for ny child but all the boys.
| have witnessed a great inmprovenment in many of
our young nen behavi or. Brotherhood and
accountability is being promted and it works.
The comm tnment |evel of the staff and teachers
is tremendous. They are in the building late
into the evening, Saturdays, and sonetines even
on Sunday. My son recently had surgery and from
t he head of school, principal, director of
operations, social worker and teachers, they
were all very attentive and on point in dealing
with him For the |ast three years | have
assisted with recruitment in the heart of our
community, excuse me, and that’'s Bed-Stuy of
Br ookl yn. We have children on all |evels,

i ncludi ng speci al needs who are flourishing. |
am actively involved in the community, DOE
ACS, foster care, preventive, Brooklyn
Fat her hood Partnership, Bed-Stuy Community

Partnership Program and |I’'m a founding menmber
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of the Bed-Stuy Advocacy. | believe it takes a
village to raise a child and in enmpowering
famlies. | have many extended chil dren and
concerned about all children. Eva Moskow tz do
not represent all charter schools. | amsorry
to hear the awful stories, however, some of the
charter schools are doing great. | believe data
is very--

CHAl RPERSON DROMM [interposing] |I'm
going to ask you to wrap it up.

MELI SSA PLOWDEN- NORMAN: i mportant,
and nore inportantly school visits. Excellence
Boys Charter Elementary and M ddl e Acadeny
wel come visits. We are a part of uncommon
schools, like | said before. I'"'ma proud parent
of seven years and excited about the
acconmplishments of our Excellence famly. Thank
you for your tine.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you very
much for your testimony. Next, please?

TANDREA LANG. Good evening. My nane
is Tandrea Lang. | am the current PTA

Pr esi dent - -
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]

This is a great conmittee | got to tell you,
and great people that stay this long. Thank
you.

TANDREA LANG. You're wel cone. | am
the current PTA President at IS 59 who is--
which is slated for a co-location of a Success
Acadeny in Septenmber. The IS 59 schoo
comunity’s official position is that we are
agai nst co-locations. W are against co-
| ocati ons because co-locations have already
happened in our building and it is proven to be
a challenge. We had an Eagl e Acadeny put into
our school two years ago. Once they grew to
their second grade, they realized that the
space utilization just was not there, and so
t hey began a process and they obtained their
own building. We currently have two grades from
PS 176 co-located into our school for
approximately the next two to three years due
to construction on their building. So we
al ready have a school co-located in our
bui Il ding, which will be going on for the next

coupl e of years, and again it has presented the
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traditional co-location and not enough space
probl ems where as many people stated earlier,
students are going to lunch really early in the
day and really late in the day. A perfect
exanpl e of that, | have a seventh grader who
goes to lunch at the 10: 30 period, every single
day. Every single day by 2:30, 3:00 when she’s
slated to go to an after school program the
child is calling because she is hungry. Okay?
And that is a problem So IS 59's issue is that
we don’t have space for a whole another school
We would like to see the resources put into the
exi sting school. When the Eagle Acadeny cane,
the Adm nistration prom sed us resources for

t he existing school that have not shown up. At
the end of |ast year as the Adm nistration was
goi ng out, Dennis Wal cott again came to us

prom sing us all kinds of resources for the
school that is existing there, but those
resources have not come. The Departnment of
Educati on prom sed us because our current

school grade has been a “C’ consistently for
the |l ast three years. They prom sed us changes,

whet her it be Adm nistration, whether it be
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t eachers, whatever. No changes have come. So
naturally, the people in the comunity are
concerned about a school comng in that is not
goi ng to address the needs of all the students
in the community. We had heard horror stories

t hrough literature about Success Acadeny, but
hearing so much here today, it’'s really

di sheartening to know that this school has been
slated for our community w thout conmunity

i nput. Our position is that if there is room
for another school and if that’s the Depart ment
of Education’s policy that they're going to put
anot her school in, a charter school, then the
comunity should have a say in ternms of what

ki nd of school is going to come into our
bui I di ng, because from what |’ m heari ng,
Success Acadeny has a | ot of questionable
practices that we don’t need in our community,
and it’s not welcomed. Also, IS 59 is a mddle
school. They’ re bringing in kindergarten
classes. So you essentially have five year ol ds
with teenagers, which is problematic in many
people’s eyes. You know, if you sign on for a K

to Eight, that’s one thing, but to have that
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put upon you to me is not fair to the
community. And so | would like to thank the
Council for this hearing. | stayed because |
know that it’s inmportant that you know how we
feel and from our school’s perspective, and
that’s why | did stay, and | appreciate the
time. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON DROVM Wel |,
definitely appreciate you staying, because |
t hi nk having your voice here is vitally
i mportant, and when | went out to PS 59 | saw
the conditions firsthand. It happened to be a
very nice nei ghborhood to begin with. It’s a
| ovely area of Queens, and the parents who
turned out to that neeting overwhel m ngly, I
don’t think there was anybody, any parent who
did not speak out against the co-location in
t hat school. And when Reverend Rivera was here
as well, he mentioned about parental
i nvol vement and hearing the voices of our
parents. And what has happened during the | ast
12 years under the Bloonmberg Adm nistration is
t hat our parent’s voices were not heard. And

you gave a perfect exanple of what was tried

383
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and did not work, and now they're going to try
again and | wonder if it’s going to work.
have ny doubts, but | want to thank you for
com ng and for sharing this story, because |
think it’s really inmportant that we have that
on the record as well. Thank you.

TANDREA LANG. Thank you

CHAl RPERSON DROMM  Next, pl ease?
We got you covered.

Gl NA SARDI: Good eveni ng, Chairman
Dronm and t hank you for the opportunity to
testify. | did stay because | think 1'd like to
speak about something slightly different. M
name is G na Sardi, and |'’mthe Principal and
Co- founder of the New York City Montessor
Charter School. |I’m here to speak on behal f of
an innovative program one that’'s very
different froma |ot of what we’ve heard today,
but I think we’'re doing a | ot of what charter
school s are supposed to do. The New York City
Mont essori Charter School opened its doors in
Septenber of 2011 in the Mott Haven area of the
Sout h Bronx. Our idea was to provide an

alternative for famlies in a district where
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school s are over-crowded, test scores are anong
the lowest in the city and poverty |levels are
very high. We had a vision of a school that
offer children a uni que opportunity, a schoo
where not only was high academ ¢ performance
i mportant, but where children could benefit
from an educati onal approach that up to now has
only been accessible to affluent famlies. W
created the first Montessori public school in
New York City and the first Montessori Charter
School in the State. We’re now in our third
year. Our enrollment is 220 students, K through
three. Our denographics reflect the district
where we are, the community school district
seven. We have 89 percent of our students are
eligible for free and reduced price lunch, 23
percent of them are students with disabilities,
and 13 percent are English | anguage | earners.
The Montessori approach creates and environment
for |l earning that encourages children to beconme
i ndependent | earners. Fromthe youngest ages
starting in kindergarten, and hopefully soon in
pre-k, children learn to take responsibility

for their | earning and become self-directed and
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sel f-motivated. Each class has two teachers.
The individualized approach inherit in
Mont essori allows for the type of
differentiation that is needed with a
popul ati on of children who come from a broad
range of backgrounds, ability |evels and
educati onal needs, including students with
di sabilities and English | anguage | earners.
We're conpletely commtted to nmeeting the needs
of all of the children in our school. To this
end, we have added our special education staff
so that we can provide children with the needed
addi tional supports. We have our own speech
pat hol ogi st, speci al education teachers and
literacy specialists, and this past August we
opened our first self-contained classroom W
filled the class. It was very successful, and
next year we’'re going to add a second class for
children. Our curriculumis rich. It is
includes art and disciplinary part of the arts
and nusic--interdisciplinary project work al ong
with individualized and small group instruction
and the children receive a very strong academ c

f oundati on. The school’s curriculumis based on
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an alignment of the Montessori approach with
the core curriculum standards using specially
desi gned Montessori |essons and materials. A

| onger school day al so provides the children
wi th nore opportunities for academ c support.
At the same tinme that we're commtted to
student performance by |aw and by choice, we
focus on the types of students that we want to
prepare and what they will need in order to
succeed in their future education, work, and

i ndeed, in their life. We prepare our students
to be life-long | earners who are curious,

i ndependent, creative, perseverant and
nmotivated. As future |eaders, we want themto
come to the peace table in their classroons to
work out their differences with words, to learn
di sci pline rather than have it inposed on them
We want them to becone caring, conpassionate,
entrepreneurial creative problem solvers. As a
charter school, we have the unique opportunity
to be innovative and to inmplement a model that
is successful in thousands of private schools
and some hundreds of public schools around the

country. At the sane tine we're faced with the




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 388
chal l enge of doing this while spending over 20
percent of our rent, of our budget on rent in
the private facility. Wthout that added
expense, we could add nore supports for our
students and reduce our class size. Thank you

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you very
much. | thank you for staying as well, and for
passi ng the endurance test here. | have to say,
I’ma fan of Montessori. My nother had a
Mont essori school at one time as well, and ny
counsel went to a Montessori school, so | don’t
know i f | was supposed to give away that
secret, but she did. Let me just ask you as
| " ve asked other charter school operators, what
do you think of the orange shirt?

GINA SARDI: | think it’s awful.
lt’s--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] Can
you just speak a little bit into the mc,
because we’'re not getting it.

GINA SARDI: |I'’menraged by it. |
think humliating children, singling them out
t eaches them not hi ng but anger and rage, and it

doesn’t do anything to change behavior. |
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firmy believe that in order to change a
child s behavior they have to | earn sonething,
and what they' re learning fromthat situation
is just that I am not good, | am not accepted.
They’'re not | earning anything positive. There’s
many, many things that children do need to
| earn to prevent behavi or discipline issues,
because they do happen, but once it happens
there are--there’s things--there’ s other ways
to deal with it, and not singling out or
hum liating a child. I'"mvery firmy against
it.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. Thank
you very nuch. Next, please?

SHUBERT JACOBS: Thank you, Chairman
Dronm for this opportunity. My name is Shubert
Jacobs, and I'’m the Principal at the Bronx
Charter School for Better Learning. \When |
wrote ny testinony, it had good norning. |’ ve
heard good afternoon, good evening, and the
thing I’ m happy | wrote that |’ m not saying
good night. So |I’m Shubert Jacobs. I’ m foundi ng
Princi pal of the Bronx Charter School for

Better Learning, and again, thank you for this
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opportunity to testify today. The Bronx Charter
School for Better Learning, BBL for short, is a
K through Five elementary school and is | ocated
at 3740 Baychester Avenue in the Northeast
Bronx. BBL opened its doors in 2003 to 50
students and we currently have on register 420.
Our school is primarily first generation from
Jamai ca, West Indies and West Africa. BBL
caters to all population, the speci al
education, English |anguage |earners as well as
t hose who qualify for free lunch. | want to
make a point here. It’s not in the testinony,
but I want to make a point about the ELLS,
because we have tal ked about the discrimnation
and sort. One of the things about BBL we
realize is that because of where we are | ocated
we don’t have a lot of ELLs. So what we have
done, all the nmoney that we have really spent
on advertising is primarily towards that
popul ation. It is our plan in 2005 to replicate
our school by opening anot her campus. We wil
start with Kinder, and we'll grow K through
Five in five years. The current BBL is co-

| ocated with PS 111, and we share a very good
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relationship with that school. |I’ve been an
educator for the past 27 years and of which
were spent in teaching. One of the purposes for
whi ch charters were established was to provide
opportunities for innovative approaches to
learning and 1’ m here to testify about
i nnovation at BBL. Our approach to education is
cal l ed subordination of teaching to I earning
and it was devel oped by an Egyptian professor
by the name of Caleb Gattegno. Now
subordi nation of teaching to learning I know is
a nmout hful, and |I could spend hours telling you
about the nethodol ogy, but | think the time
woul d be better spent telling you about what
happens in our school on a day to day basis. At
BBL, our children’s spirits soar and that is
key. We don’t give them answers. We help them
figure out things for themselves. In this
nonments are students get chances to see what
they can do, and with joyful enthusiasmthey
express the satisfaction that they have figured
out a problemor arrived at a solution by
t hemsel ves, an acconplishnment they can cal

their very own. The phrase “Ah-ha, | got it”
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rings out in many classroonms on a daily basis.
OQur children are eager to answer, eager to take
on any chall enge we put in front of them
because we support them knowi ng that they are
capabl e |l earners who can take on the work. Like
doubl e be its [sic], we believe that education
is not filling a bucket, it is lighting fires.
We [ight fires at BBL at every day, and it is
not unusual to see kids running to cone to
school each morning or expressing reluctance
interestingly in the afternoons to go hone.

Dyl an, a six year old, and I want to just read
two testinonies here if you'll allow me, one
froma child who was at our school and anot her
froma parent who had to mgrate to Florida
with her kids. Dylan, a six year old in 2003
and a nmember of our first batch of students,
was asked in 2013 about his experience at BBL.
He said, and | quote, “lt--meaning BBL--nmade ne
strive for better. There was nothing that they
said | could not do. Because of what 1’'ve

| earned | have become who | am today. | have
faith in nyself because | used to think | was

the word master.” Interestingly, Dylan spent
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only one year with us and this is the inpact it
had on him One year because his famly had to
nove to Virginia. The other testinmony is of a
parent who had to nove to Florida with her two
kids. One was with us in first grade, the other
was in fourth grade, and 1’11 give their nane,
Steph and Jewel [sic]. And this is what the
not her says about Steph. “Steph has excelled up
to the gifted program She will be skipping
second grade and heading to third grade in
August. Her reading and math skills are on a
fifth grade |level. We owe her success to BBL.
Jewel is a straight A plus student and he’s on
the Dean’s |list. She has excelled into an
outstanding witer, which places here in the--
as the first student in our school to have her
own colum in the school newsletter. W just
received word that her colum will now be added
to our county’s school’s district newsletter.
There are 36 schools in the county, and all of
themw ||l read her colum. Again, we say we owe
the girl’s success to BBL. The care and
ki ndness, dedication of the teachers and staff

show the students that BBL is a prine exanple
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of how excellent school truly is.” W at BBL
unquot e, have hi gh expectati ons of our
students. As a result, we ask them things that
may be a little beyond them at first, but
because of previous successes, they are
confident they can do it. Challenges are not a
deterrent. Tenporary confusion is not seen as
final or fatal. In fact, it is a step in
learning. It’s common practice to see students
spont aneously cheering on each other when
they’ re working hard on sonet hing new and
difficult. Al of this has resulted in high
academ c achi evenent. More inportantly to ne
are teachers and Board of Trustees nurture that
extraordi nary power to |learn that resides in
all our students. The truth though, is that if
you're really want to know our school, you have
to visit it, and | invite you to cone and wal k
our hallways, visit our classroonms, and talk to
our children. Talk to our parents as well, and
you' Il be convinced that the Bronx Charter
School for Better Learning is a great place to
grow and | earn. Our Council man, Andy King, he

has been there. He liked it. And I’ m not just
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inviting you. I'’minsisting that the Counci
comes to the Bronx Charter School for Better
Learning, and |I’m sure you' |l enjoy the visit.
Thank you. Thanks again for your tinme.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. I'd
enjoy comng. |'’mgoing to ask my assi stant,
Sebastian McGuire, to make sure that we do
that, conme up and visit your school and see
what’ s going on there. | appreciate your
testimony, and | thank you for having stayed as
long as you did with us today. Thank you very,
very much.

SHUBERT JACOBS: You're wel conme.
What’'s several hours to tal k about grade
school ?

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Oh, ny goodness.
lt’s unbelievable, but thank you. Next, Ms.

G ttens?

LORRAI NE Gl TTENS- BRI DGES: Good
evening. My name is Lorraine G ttens-Bridges,
and first of all | would like to thank you for
this opportunity to speak on behalf of New York
City public schools, and I'’m going to get into

my high school. First of all, my son just
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recently graduated from New York City public
school. He was the class of 2013. During ny
time, | served as the President--the PTA
President of nmy school, the President of the
President’s Council for District 29. | served
as the menmber of the CDEC, and | al so was one
of the co-Chairs of the Chancell or Parent

Advi sory Council. So I have many years of
experience. | was out there during the years of
t he wars when we was battling for having our
voi ces heard, when we was battling with the--
trying to make sure that, you know, because
went on the actual wal k through for the Eagle
Acadeny, and even at that time, the principal,
when he saw what was--that there really wasn’t
no space, he seen that we was right when we
said there wasn’t any space. So |I'm here to
tal k about co-locations, because |I’'ve had an
opportunity to speak with the parents over the
years. |’ve had a chance to see, you know, the
whol e i ssues, the inpact on this because it was
an IS 231 before that, and also there’'s the

i ssue of co-location. What |’ m going to nove

onto right nowis right now I’m concerned about
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the co-location for August Martin Hi gh School,
okay, because | am a graduate of August Martin
Hi gh School, and when | was at August Martin
Hi gh School, we had prograns. As a matter of
fact, it’s that programthat has led me to go
onto coll ege and graduate and pursue the career
of my choice, which is human resources. So when
we tal k about preparing our children to be
coll ege and career ready, you have to make sure
t hat the prograns are in the school for
students to grow and thrive and to give them
the same exposure that me and several, and Ms.
Lang is even graduate from high school. W al
had a opportunity to go onto pursue our
careers, because there was exposure in our high
schools. Right now the DOE did a great thing by
stoppi ng the Success Charter School from going
into August Martin High School because that
really was not a good match at all, but while
we was cheering about that happening, we found
t hat another co-location is going into the
bui I ding, and I’ m hearing that there’'s a space
commttee that’s going on but yet the panel for

education policy is going to be deciding on
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this May 29'". So where is this new policy
where we’'re going to be |ooking at schools
before we decide to co-locate any schools, when
you're already maki ng decisions and they have
not even been in--the Adm nistration hasn't
even been in long enough to see, you know,
what’' s the beauty of that school. Let nme just
go over the progranms that’s in this. They have
an aviation acadeny right there by La Guardi a.
We're right there by JFK. That program if they
have a opportunity to get back on track because
over the years they’ ve destroyed August Martin
Hi gh School. You see it’s already |listed as one
of the | owest perform ng, |ower enroll ment
schools in the city, okay, because of the bad
i mage. They have a communi cati ons acadeny, a
culinary arts acadeny, a |aw acadeny, a nmedica
technol ogy acadeny. These progranms are going to
be lost if they put another school. They
al ready have a school in there. They have the
Voyager High School in there, okay? And if you
put anot her school or if you co-located another
school inside of that school, these prograns

are going to be lost and if we’'re tal king about
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preparing our children to be career and coll ege
ready, how are you going to take away the
programs that they need. Okay? So |I'm here to
speak on behalf of that, and I will be, you
know, avail able to speak on behalf of co-
| ocations, period, because |I’ve had the
experience. |’ve sat at hearings. |’ve talked
with students. It really also give the kids a
| ow noral e when they’'re hearing the school is
going to be co-located, |like Ms. Lang said, and
there’s others that could really get up there
and testify for it. Having the kids eat |unch
at off hours, you know, and going to after
school programs. A lot of the kids, they don't
even get to go honme. They go straight to an
after school program Okay? So we really need
to tal k about how--you know, | appreciate the
oversight. I’min favor of the oversight. That
is very much needed, because we heard prom ses
here today about what the DOE s going to do,
but the Panel for Education Policy meeting is
May 29'". So | would suggest a hold on that co-
| ocati on before, you know, and give these new

programs that they say that they're going to
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gi ve an opportunity to happen before they co-
| ocat ed anot her school .

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt | coul dn’t agree
with you more. | think that they should stop
t hat co-location to August Martin. | know that
a nunber of the Council Members fromthe area,
Council Menmber Mller, WIlls, Richards fromthe
area over there were at the forumthat |
attended as wel | .

LORRAI NE Gl TTENS- BRI DGES: And | was
t here too.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM | know you wer e,
that’s why |’ m saying it, because that’s where
we first met, although |I didn't recognize you
when you were sitting out there at first, and |
just remenbered what had happened at 59 with
the co-location when it was brought up that we
don’t have them You know, Success Acadeny is
trying to nove into other areas and ot her well
to do areas as well, not just the |low inconme
areas, and they' re trying to make their mark
wherever they can go, and ultimately | don’t
know where we’'re going to--where it’s all going

to stop, but just in regard to the co-location
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itself at August Martin, the | egislation that
we are tal king about here today is an attenpt
to try to address sonme of those concerns about
the effect that it will have on those existing
schools. Now, in the case of August Martin, you
were right, they did not succeed in destroying
it the first time around, so they’'re going to
come around. They're going to try to destroy it
again. And | had a simlar situation with the
New Town Hi gh School. One time, they said New
Town Hi gh School was going to be a turnaround
school. | can get the termnology a little bit
wrong. Then that didn’'t work, so they decided
it was going to be a closure. So then they
tried to close the school

LORRAI NE GI TTENS- BRI DGES: And t hen
they try to renane the school s.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Then the UFT
sued. Okay? Then the UFT won the suit. All the
t eachers who had been I et go and the principal
who had been let go now all had a return. Al
t he kids who have been put into other schools
had to return to the school, and what do they

decide to do? They decided to co-locate an
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i nternational school into New Town. So it’s
just like, you know, damed if you do, dammed
if you don’t, and there still going to just go
ahead and do what they want to do. And so what
has happened in terns of the charter versus the
co-locations versus the public schools that are
pushing to them is effectively they’ve begun
to pit parent against parent, and that is what
is wong, and that is what we have to avoid,
allowing themto be able to do that. In sone
circumstances, not charter versus non-charter,
it’s space versus is there space or not space.

LORRAI NE Gl TTENS- BRI DGES: Exactly,
and you don’t want to | ose the prograns that
the children need, and that’'s we're really
concer ned about - -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Exactly.

LORRAI NE Gl TTENS- BRI DGES: as
alumi, you know, because ny son is already
out, but I--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]

Exactly.
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LORRAI NE Gl TTENS- BRI DGES: care
about my high school. That’'s the high schoo
t hat gave us our wi ngs. You know, it’s called
August Martin Aviation Fly, that’'s what it did
for us, and we would like to see it done for
t he next generation com ng up behind us.

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt Absol utely, and
that’s why | thank you all for com ng in,
particularly my Canbria Heights crowd over
t here and everybody el se as well, but your
statements have been heard and we want to help
you work on that. So thank you very much
everybody for comng in today.

LORRAI NE Gl TTENS- BRI DGES: Thank
you.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you.
Alright. We think this is our |ast panel. Let’s
see. Jojo [sic] Hutchinson from M d- Manhatt an
Adult Learning Center. 1|Is he here? Shinon
War onker, New Anerica Charter School. M chae
Catlyn from Brooklyn Charter? Steven Zi mmer man
fromthe Acadeny of City Charter School, and
Bar bara Denham from CEC 3. Okay, would you

rai se your right hand, please? I’mgoing to
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swear you in. Do you swear or affirmto tell
the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the
truth and to answer Council Menber questions
honestly? Okay, who would |like to begin?

M CHAEL CATLYN: MWy name is--1 too
had to strike out the word good norning, M.
Chairman. It’'s good evening at this point.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Thank you.

M CHALE CATLYN: Good afternoon,
Chai rman Dromm and nmenbers of the commttee,
and | see you're representing them boldly. MW
name is Mchael Catlyn and |I'’mthe Vice
Chai rman of the Board of Trustees of the
Br ookl yn Charter School, and we thank you for
this opportunity to testify. The Brooklyn
Charter School is an independent charter that
opened its doors in August of 2000, and we are
presently a kindergarten to fifth grade school.
BCS opens its doors to 78 students, and since
then has grown to 239. BCS is a community
school that has about 79 percent free and
reduced lunch, 12 percent special education,
and five percent English | anguage | earners. BCS

prides itself on having small class sizes with
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20 students per class as well as having two
teachers in each classroom BCS structures its
approach to 21°' learning by offering high
| evel state of the art technol ogy infused into
its education. BCS provides a well-rounded
education for all students K through five using
bal ance literacy, constructivist math, inquiry
based science, project based social studies and
geography and traditional and nontraditional
dance and music. BCS, Brooklyn Charter School,
currently shares space in PS 23 conpl ex and
we’' ve shared this space since September of
2004. BCS and PS 23 have worked col | aboratively
since then on several school activities. W
have conbi ned Afro-Cuban percussion group that
we work with daily and entails |earning and how
to play drunms and master percussions, and we do
our winter fest and summer fest performances
t oget her. Brooklyn Charter School and PS 23 has
enjoyed its relationship since then and
continue, plan to continue this coll aboration
into the future.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Okay, thank you.

Next, please?
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STEVE ZI MMERMAN: Buenos tardes,

[ speaki ng Spani sh] | know you are high school --

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Buenos tardes.

STEVE ZI MVERMAN:  you were a high
school Spanish teacher.

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt [ speaki ng
Spani sh] .

STEVE ZI MMERMAN: And that takes care
of everything after 2:00 p.m MW name is Steve
Zimmerman. |’ve lived in Sunnyside Queens for
the |l ast 23 years. |’ m an educati onal software
devel oper and I’ m also the founder of two
comunity based charter schools in Queens, OQur
Wor |l d Nei ghbor hood Charter School, and nost
recently, Acadeny of the City Charter School in
Wbodsi de. So thank you for the opportunity to
testify and I’ mgoing to go off note here for a
mnute. 1'd actually like the commttee to
di scount testinmony from charter schoo
advocates who do not acknow edge the probl ens
within the sector. They have been brought out
here and they exist. Likewi se, | would |ike the

Comm ttee to discount testinmony from charter
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school distractors who do not understand the
true contributions of charter school to
education and the basic paradigmthat gives us
the ability to innovate and the autonony to do
so. This autonony is now recognized in the new
t eacher contract, which has been discussed here
previously, which is allow ng, you know, these
sort of schools that alnost seemto nme a little
bit like charters. So | think that there is
some debt or some acknow edgenment that things
within the sector are, you know, are worKking,
but one sided myopic thinking does not make for
a very good di al ogue and makes me want to
channel John Stewart, our only news caster, you
know, saying, “Charter Schools, a good thing,
bad thing, good, bad.” | mean, we’ve got to get
beyond this good thing/bad thing here. W
started Acadeny of City. It’s a SUNY charter
school. It’s nowin its third year. We're in
district 30 represented by you, by Jinmmy Van
Bramer, Costa Constantinides. Our kids conme
from LI C, Astoria, Sunnyside, Wbodside, Jackson
Hei ghts, East El mhurst, as you and all the

folks who live in these nei ghborhoods can
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attest, incredibly diversity of these
nei ghbor hoods. I1t’s our |ifeblood. There’'s no

pl ace on earth that has the great nosaic that
we do, and in fact, we created Acadeny of the
City Charter Schools, and ode to the Anerican
Dream and to the hardworking people from
around the world who have made their hones
here. I’"m going to read a short piece from our
m ssion statenment. Our standards driven
curriculum encourages comunity, honors
diversity, and reflects our deep comm tment to
multiculturalismand to making the Anmerican
experience accessible to new Anericans. As
such, Acadeny of the City has a speci al
interest in ensuring students identified as
English | anguage | earners and their famlies
enter the school. Our nessage is clear. If your
kids are just |l earning English, we want them
We deliver this nessage through community
outreach, imm grant advocacy organizations,

mer chants, daycare centers. VWhen we first
opened our doors in 2011, our EL popul ation was
about 25 percent. Sixteen different |anguages

are spoken in the honmes of our children. OQur
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initial facility was |located right in the

m ddl e of Queens Bridge and Ravens Wbod, one of
the |l argest stretches of public housing in the
US, and when we recently noved into private
space into Wbodsi de, 95 percent of the famlies
made the nmove with us. The |oyalty we’ ve
inspired fromour famlies isn't just due to
the extra attention we pay to literacy for non-
English speakers. It’'s really due to what a | ot
of us call for lack of a better term
progressive education. | actually haven't heard
this used a whole | ot today, but we are diehard
believers of a strong |liberal arts education
with music, dance, drama; technol ogy and vi sua
arts is the greatest way to instill Iifelong

| earning for everyone’ s children. And that
while testing, while inportant, should be

di agnostic and not a pursuit. We stole our
principal from Bank Street and we really

beli eve that public--you know we want our
school to be like Saint Anne’s. It should be

l'i ke the greatest schools in New York. There’'s
no reason why public schools can’'t be these

great progressive institutions. So due to the
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autononmy of our charter, our ability to be
unabashedl y progressive has had an interesting
effect. So not only are we a school of first
choice for new i nm grants and poor people, but
actually hundreds of mddle class famlies are
now putting their kids in our |ottery because
they | ove what they re doing. We have a school -
wi de e-portfolio systemthat we' re devel opi ng
for authentic assessnent and we plan to share
this with other schools in the DOE. W' re
becom ng one of the great, | believe,
educational stories in this great city. The
council will also be pleased to know that we’ ve
negoti ated union contract, the thin one, with
our teachers and it works for everyone in the
school. We al so want council to know that we
pay very dearly for our private space and hope
that this disparity will be addressed. Our only
significant funding comes fromthe public for
peopl e allocation and there is so nuch nore
that we could do with our kids with that 20
percent of revenue that goes to facilities. So
our story really is great in many ways, but it

is not well known. We're a small independent
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community based charter school quietly going
about our work in an environment that is
becom ng needl essly polarized. We're proud to
be associated with our coll eagues fromthe
Coalition of Community Charter Schools who |ike
us believe that a charter can provide the neans
for a community to create neani ngful and

i nnovative educati onal experience for their
kids. OQur wish is to work coll aboratively with
the Adm nistration and to hel p advance all of
public education. One thing | would want to
mention, | heard a |ot of ire today, and |

don’t really want to go into it, but | really
believe that a lot of the stuff, and it’s well-
-and some of it is well directed, really cones
from ki nd of our national obsession with
outcomes, and that especially in charter
school s where our charter is held over our

head. Perform or |ose your charter. Out perform
your district or |ose your charter. What are
your test scores? When you | ook at academ c
outcomes as the bottom |ine of education,
you’'re kind of perverting the true goals of

education. A lot of the things that go on are
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really the result of schools being sort of
forced into test scores matter nore than
anything else. So rather than concentrate all
the time on the symptons of it. Because | think
some of those things are synptomatic. | think
we want to concentrate a little bit nore on the
root causes of this. Let’s help--let us help
you get education back to the true goals of
education. | thank you for allowing ne to
testify today, Dani el

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Thank you. And
next? And then I’'Il have some comments.

SHI MON WARONKER: Good afternoon,
Chai rman Dromm Counci | .

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM Good eveni ng.

SHI MON WARONKER: Good eveni ng.
Al most - -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nt erposing] |
got a chance it, so.

SHI MON WARONKER: Thank you. And al
of those who are still here. It shows your
dedi cation to the cause of education, not only
as being an educator, but your stam na to be

here, and the statement that you are making
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wi th your orange shirt, | just want to say
since |’mthe closer, | would--if you could

allow me to wear your orange shirt so | can
stand in solidarity with you, because it is
outrageous. My nanme is Shinon Waronker, and |

t he founder of the New Anerican Academnmy Charte
School. |1’ m al so supervising principal in the
New York City Departnment of Education. So
that’s why | raised ny hand a little earlier
on, and | let Carnmen know, but | want to thank

you- -

413

m

r

CHAI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] And

in fairness, they did cone back. Thank you.

SHI MON WARONKER: Wel | - -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposi ng] Not
here now, but they did come back. Okay.

SHI MON WARONKER: So the New
Anmeri can Acadeny Charter School is located in
East Fl at bush. Our el ementary schools is
| ocated at the Tildon [sp?] High School canpus
It’s actually a very nice co-location. The hig
school students mentor our youngin's [sic] and
it’s really good. 98.6 black or Hispanic, 10.7

percent special education, which is three

h
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percent nmore than the district, 81.9 percent

free and reduced neals. | also closely
supervise two district schools that share t
same nodel, one in the Bronx in district,
community school district nine and anot her
in Brooklyn in Crown Heights, Brooklyn in

District 17. The three schools have a joint

sumer training, five weeks of sumer train
One week is up at Harvard. Chairman, | invi
you to cone and | invite you to visit the

schools. Joint nmonthly | eadership professio
devel opment training--we share hiring and
onboardi ng practices. We share peer review
systens which M chael MIlgrew [sp?] would
to pilot, and I’m doing a coll aboration wt
t he Nati onal Education Association, the
Anmeri can Federation of Teachers to do peer
revi ew beyond New Americans. To give you an
i dea, because you’ ve been an educator, peer
review, the way we do it at New Anerican is
group of teachers observes the practice of
teacher. They give them feedback. Guess who
writes the observation?

CHAl RPERSON DROMMt The teacher?

he

one

i ng.

te

nal

i ke

h

t he

a
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SHI MON WARONKER:  Yes, sir.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [t’s very good.
Let you finish, and then I'Il comment.

SHI MON WARONKER: Yes, sir. So | was
assigned. 1’1l give you a little bit of
hi story. | was assigned in the year 2004 to be
a principal in the Bronx, in mddle schools 22.
It was an inpact school, one of the 12 nost
violent. | was the seventh Principal there in
three years. Those 12 schools conprised 60
percent of the crime data out of the 1,200 plus
schools. This one school conprised by itself 20
percent of the crinme data out of the 12. And so
this little Hasidic Jew went there and thank
God I’malive to tell the tale, but in one year
we reduced major crime by 100 percent, al
other crime by 90 percent. We renoved the
school from SUR [sic] and there was a front
page story in the New York Tinmes, which I’ve
i ncluded as an appendi x so that you can take a
| ook at it and see what happened at the school.
Joel Klein, the Chancellor at the tinme, was
really excited. He said, “Well, Shinmn, how can

you do this at other schools?” | said, “Quite
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frankly, sir, I don’t know.” And so he sent ne
to Harvard’s Urban Superintendents Program
it’s a doctoral programso | could learn how to
do it beyond M ddl e School 22. So when |
returned from Canbridge, | spent a year with
Joel. | served as his nentee. So, | spent a
year cl osely watching how he I ed the schoo
system and | created in collaboration with
M chael M I grew and Randy W neguard [sic], a
thin contract. The only contract that got
signed in that cold era between the union and
t he Bl oonberg Adm nistration, this is the only
contract they signed, sir. And it provided a
career |l adder, the first in New York City,
based on not years of service, but an ability.
One and a half hours of coll aborative tine
dai ly, and you know what that nmeans to
teachers. It’s gold. Five weeks of summer
training for the first year for onboarding
pur poses, and this is all contractual. The
contract is also included as an appendi x, sir,
So you can |look at it. As you notice, it’'s
only five pages long, so | know | awers took a

long time, council, | just want to share with
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you, to boil it down to five pages. But | had
difficulty opening additional district school s,
and so | nmet with Merryl Tish [sp?] and we
opened one charter school, which is the New
American Acadeny Charter School, and that’s
what |'mrepresenting right now And then
afterwards, the DOE said, “Well, Shinon, why
don’t you open another district school and get
your contract signed?” And | did, and you’'l
notice it’'s signed by Dennis Walcott. My issue,
sir, and |I’ve heard it all day today,
everybody’s fighting. Who's better, charter or
district? | don’t want to get involved in that
debate. | told Joel I'"mnot interested in that
fight. What | aminterested is all of us
col l aborating for the benefit of children, and
we need to find a way to do that. And so there
are two statenments, one from Joel Klien and one
from Randy W neguard about New American. |’ m-
if you Il allow.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Yes, you can just
wrap it up.

SHI MON WARONKER:  Yes, sir, yep.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON 418

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM A coupl e of
m nut es.

SHI MON WARONKER: Thank you sir. Joe
Kl ein, “The New American Acadeny is an
i nnovative, potentially very powerful way to
provi de education to children. it is both
brilliant and scal abl e and hol ds out the hope
of change in Kto 12 education in major ways.
This is a big idea, sonmething we desperately
need if we are going to significantly change
t he educational outcomes for our children.”
Randy W neguard, “The New American Acadeny in
Crown Hei ghts Brooklyn, New York is creating a
power ful, conpelling nmodel of what a public
school in a new knowl edge econony shoul d be.
Built in a foundation of teacher collaboration
and professional reflection, the New American
Acadeny is a wonderful place of |earning for
ki ds precisely because of its culture of trust
and caring.” The children stay with the sanme
teachers from ki ndergarten through fifth grade.
They | oop, so they know the parents. They know
the kids. Our parents love the teachers. It’s

built on trust and |ove. What you'll notice is
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in the back there’s an article by David Brooks,
which calls it the Relationship School, because
| believe that wi thout relationships, you don’t
have real education. That orange shirt tells ne
it’s a scarlet letter on a kid. It’'s
outrageous. It is wong. Not in this great
country, and | admre you for standing up for
that sir. I’mjust going to share with you.

had a group of teachers when | was in the
Bronx, they removed--as penalty, if a child
didn't bring a pencil to school, they renmoved
one of the shoes. You got to understand, this
was one--poorest congressional district in the
United States of Anerica. So | met with the
teachers, and they said, “Well you’ ve enpowered
us.” | said, “lI may have enpowered you, but it
goes against mnmy values to renove a shoe because
the kid forgot his pencil as collateral.” And
| said to them “You will not remove the shoe
of children or humliate the child. It is not
what we stand for as American citizens.” |
think we need to work coll aboratively, sir. The
argunents that | heard today, it’'s just a | ot

of wasted energy. The reality is we all have to
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wor k together. My dad was a | abor union
organi zer and I’m Joel Klein's nmentee. So it
can be done. We can do and design a better
contract, better outcones for our adults and
for our children. And | want to say, as a
menber of the coalition of comunity charters,
when the Reverend spoke with passion, when ny
col | eagues here, M chael--1"m sorry--Steve, and
all of these charters--all these fol ks who
really just want better outcomes for kids, you
know? And they’ re caught in the crossfire of
folks saying it's all about noney and this. For
us, look, | earn 138,000 and no bonus. Not
about money. It’s about the kids, sir. And I
know that’s why you' re serving on this
comm ttee, and | know that’s why you’ ve stayed
all this day and respectfully acknow edged
everyone and their pains and their aspirations.
| hope, sir, under your |eadership you can help
take this city to the next level with our new
Chancell or. Thank you so nmuch. | can entertain
any questions.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Thank you very

much. So much has been presented that the
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guestions that | had, sonetines | forget
actually at this point of the day. But | just

want to focus on this idea of working
col | aboratively with especially the Coalition
for Charter Schools. | think that’'s a very good
objective. | think that it’s something we want
to work toward. | appreciate your efforts to do
outreach in that regard. | appreciate your
support for the orange shirt issue, and for
your willingness to speak out against that as
well, and | think that’s vitally inmportant to
havi ng di scussions further down the road that
when we see sonet hing wrong, and | don’t know
whi ch the panelist it was that said, maybe it
was Steve, that said when we see things wong
in the charter nmovenent we need to tal k about
that. \When we see things wrong in the public
school s movement, we need to speak out about
that as well. | think that’s really inmportant
to the discussion.

SHI MON WARONKER: Sir, | served in
the US Arny, and | just want to share with you,
in special operations, and there’'s a Gener al

who once said, “If you walk by sonething
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substandard and say nothing, it becomes the new
standard.”

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt Absol utely. And
Steve, thank you. And just tell me a little
bit. You' re going for the union contract, you
sai d? What’s the--you nentioned that in your
testimony. WAs that you?

STEVE ZI MMERMAN:  We have the thin
con- - we- -

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [i nterposing] A
t hi nk contract?

STEVE ZI MMERMAN: Yeah, we
negoti ated a contract several years ago.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay. And that’s
with the UFT, obviously?

STEVE ZI MMERMAN: Yes.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM Okay, very good.
And the arrangenent with you, |I’m sorry,
regardi ng being principal in the Bronx and al so
the charter, | don’t understand that. Can you
just explain that arrangenent to nme?

STEVE ZI MMERMAN:  Yes, sir. So when
t he DOE asked ne to have a school in the Bronx,

so | said |l can do that as long as | can
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supervise. There are principals at both, at all
t hree schools. Now, | don’t supervise the
charter school because it’s a separate entity.
| only supervise the Department of Education’s
schools. | was the founder of the charter
school, but I'"mnot--I"mnot tied in any way
ot her than we share the nmodel. We share
training together, and all of these things that
are done coll aboratively is because | don’t
| ook at the students or teachers as if they're
foreign just because they’'re in a different
outfit.

CHAI RPERSON DROMMt Okay, great. Now,
| got it. | just didn't understand it when you
had originally mentioned it.

STEVE ZI MMERMAN:  Yes, sir.

CHAI RPERSON DROMM And M. Catlyn,

t hank you also for comng in. | think you have
a great situation there, two teachers and cl ass
sizes of 20 seens to be to be ideal. So keep up
t he good work, and--yes, do you want to say
somet hi ng?

M CHAEL CATLYN: We have 60 to four

rati o. So we have a--
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CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
Wait, what is it?

UNKNOWN: A 60 to four ratio, 60
students with four teachers. So it’s a 15 to
one, sir. I'mnot trying to--

[cross-tal k]

CHAl RPERSON DROMM No, ri ght.

UNKNOWN: But al so included--

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM [ i nt er posi ng]
It’s a great ratio. It’s part of the issue and
t he problenms that | also have to deal with the
DOE, because we have class sizes in the DOE, |
taught classes with 38 kids in them

UNKNOWN: And t hat’s outrageous.

CHAl RPERSON DROMM Okay, 38, and
t hat was as of 2009. Okay? So we need to work
t oget her on those issues to bring those class
Si zes down.

UNKNOWN: So on average, our
teachers make 38 percent nore than the DOE. We
have a 15 to one student ratio, and it is the
same budget, sir. I'’mjust sharing with you. It
is the same budget. | don’t get any extra

funds. It can be done within the current
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exi sting budget. |I’m nore than happy to share
with you how. | shared with city OMB, they
couldn’t believe it, and now we have two
physi cal schools that do it, sir.

CHAlI RPERSON DROMM We' d | ove to have
that discussion. It’s a little late in the
evening to continue that, but 1'd definitely be
interested in hearing nore about that. So |
don’t think we have anybody else, no. | want to
t hank you for comng in. I want to thank
everybody for attending today’s hearing. |
think that it’s been quite productive. | think
we got at a |lot of inportant issues. | hope
t hat we had a reasonabl e di scussion about not
just the headlines that often make it out
there, but also a discussion about the
underlying real education issues that confront
this commttee on a daily basis. And so | think
with that it is now 5:47, and |’ m going to say
this meeting is adjourned. Thank you.

[ gavel ]

[of f mic]
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